
Notice of Meeting

Northern Area Planning 
Committee

Date: Thursday 25 October 2018

Time: 5.30 pm

Venue: Conference Room 1, Beech Hurst, Weyhill Road, Andover, 
Hampshire, SP10 3AJ

For further information or enquiries please contact:
Sally Prior - 01264 368024
sprior@testvalley.gov.uk

Legal and Democratic Service
Test Valley Borough Council,

Beech Hurst, Weyhill Road,
Andover, Hampshire,

SP10 3AJ
www.testvalley.gov.uk

The recommendations contained in the Agenda are made by the Officer and these 
recommendations may or may not be accepted by the Committee.

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION SCHEME
If members of the public wish to address the meeting they should notify the 
Legal and Democratic Service at the Council's Beech Hurst office by noon 

on the working day before the meeting.

Public Document Pack

http://www.testvalley.gov.uk/


Membership of Northern Area Planning Committee

MEMBER WARD

Councillor C Borg-Neal (Chairman) Andover (Harroway);

Councillor T Preston (Vice-Chairman) Andover (Alamein);

Councillor I Andersen Andover (St Mary's);

Councillor P Boulton Broughton & Stockbridge;

Councillor A Brook Andover (Alamein);

Councillor Z Brooks Andover (Millway);

Councillor J Budzynski Andover (Winton);

Councillor D Busk Broughton & Stockbridge;

Councillor I Carr Charlton;

Councillor J Cockaday Andover (St Mary's);

Councillor D Denny Andover (St Mary's);

Councillor D Drew Harewood;

Councillor B Few Brown Amport;

Councillor M Flood Anna;

Councillor P Giddings Bourne Valley;

Councillor K Hamilton Andover (Harroway);

Councillor S Hawke Andover (Millway);

Councillor A Hope Over Wallop;

Councillor P Lashbrook Penton Bellinger;

Councillor J Lovell Andover (Winton);

Councillor C Lynn Andover (Winton);

Councillor P Mutton Penton Bellinger;

Councillor J Neal Andover (Millway);

Councillor P North Andover (Alamein);

Councillor B Page Andover (Harroway);

Councillor G Stallard Anna;

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018



Northern Area Planning Committee

Thursday 25 October 2018

AGENDA

The order of these items may change as a result of members
of the public wishing to speak

1  Apologies

2  Public Participation

3  Declarations of Interest

4  Urgent Items

5  Minutes of the meeting held on 4 October 2018

6  Information Notes 4 - 9

7  16/00544/OUTN - 03.03.2016 10 - 50

(OFFICER RECOMMENDATION: PERMISSION)
SITE: Land north of Walworth Road, Picket Piece, 
Andover, SP11 6LY, ANDOVER TOWN (ST MARYS)
CASE OFFICER: Miss Emma Jones

8  18/01615/FULLN - 22.06.2018 51 - 78

(OFFICER RECOMMENDATION: PERMISSION)
SITE: Plot 35, South Way, Walworth Business Park, SP10 
5LH, ANDOVER TOWN (ST MARYS)
CASE OFFICER: Miss Emma Jones

9  18/02019/LBWN - 03.08.2018 79 - 84

(OFFICER RECOMMENDATION: CONSENT)
SITE: Farley Farm, Farley Street, Nether Wallop, SO20 
8EL, NETHER WALLOP
CASE OFFICER: Mrs Samantha Owen

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018



TEST VALLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL

NORTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE

INFORMATION NOTES

Availability of Background Papers

Background papers may be inspected up to five working days before the date of the 
Committee meeting and for four years thereafter.  Requests to inspect the 
background papers, most of which will be on the application file, should be made to 
the case officer named in the report or to the Development Manager.  Although there 
is no legal provision for inspection of the application file before the report is placed on 
the agenda for the meeting, an earlier inspection may be agreed on application to the 
Head of Planning and Building.

Reasons for Committee Consideration

The majority of applications are determined by the Head of Planning and Building in 
accordance with the Council’s Scheme of Delegation which is set out in the Council’s 
Constitution.  However, some applications are determined at the Area Planning 
Committees, or the Planning Control Committee instead, and this will happen if any 
of the following reasons apply:

 Applications which are contrary to the provisions of an approved or draft 
development plan or other statement of approved planning policy where 
adverse representations have been received and which is recommended for 
approval. 

 Applications which the Head of Planning and Building Services considers are 
of significant local interest or impact. 

 Applications (excluding notifications) where a Member requests in writing, with 
reasons, within the stipulated time span that they be submitted to Committee. 

 Applications submitted by or on behalf of the Council, or any company in 
which the Council holds an interest for its own developments except for the 
approval of minor developments. 

 Notifications on which material planning objection(s) has been received within 
the stipulated time span (the initial 21 day publicity period) and no agreement 
with the Chairman of the appropriate Committee after consultation with the 
appropriate Ward Member(s) has been reached.

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 4



 Determination of applications (excluding applications for advertisement 
consent, listed building consent, and applications resulting from the withdrawal 
by condition of domestic permitted development rights; Schedule 2, Part 1, 
Classes B, C, D, E, F, G, and H of the Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 or as amended) on which a 
material planning objection(s) has been received in the stipulated time span 
and which cannot be resolved by negotiation or through the imposition of 
conditions and where the officer’s recommendation is for approval, following 
consultation with the Ward Members, the latter having the right to request that 
the application be reported to Committee for decision.

Public Speaking at the Meeting

The Council has a public participation scheme, which invites members of the public, 
Parish Council representatives and applicants to address the Committee on 
applications.  Full details of the scheme are available from Planning and Building 
Services or from the Committee Administrator at the Council Offices, Beech Hurst, 
Weyhill Road, Andover.  Copies are usually sent to all those who have made 
representations.  Anyone wishing to speak must book with the Committee 
Administrator within the stipulated time period otherwise they will not be allowed to 
address the Committee.

Speakers are limited to a total of three minutes per item for Councillors with 
prejudicial interests, three minutes for the Parish Council, three minutes for all 
objectors, three minutes for all supporters and three minutes for the applicant/agent. 
Where there are multiple supporters or multiple objectors wishing to speak the 
Chairman may limit individual speakers to less than three minutes with a view to 
accommodating multiple speakers within the three minute time limit.  Speakers may 
be asked questions by the Members of the Committee, but are not permitted to ask 
questions of others or to join in the debate.  Speakers are not permitted to circulate 
or display plans, photographs, illustrations or textual material during the Committee 
meeting as any such material should be sent to the Members and officers in advance 
of the meeting to allow them time to consider the content.

Content of Officer’s Report

It should be noted that the Officer’s report will endeavour to include a summary of the 
relevant site characteristics, site history, policy issues, consultations carried out with 
both internal and external consultees and the public and then seek to make a 
professional judgement as to whether permission should be granted.  However, the 
officer’s report will usually summarise many of the issues, particularly consultations 
received from consultees and the public, and anyone wishing to see the full response 
must ask to consult the application file.

Status of Officer’s Recommendations and Committee’s Decisions

The recommendations contained in this report are made by the officers at the time 
the report was prepared.  A different recommendation may be made at the meeting 
should circumstances change and the officer’s recommendations may not be 
accepted by the Committee.

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 5



In order to facilitate debate in relation to an application, the Chairman will move the 
officer’s recommendations in the report, which will be seconded by the Vice 
Chairman.  Motions are debated by the Committee in accordance with the Council’s 
Rules of Procedure.  A binding decision is made only when the Committee has 
formally considered and voted in favour of a motion in relation to the application and, 
pursuant to that resolution, the decision notice has subsequently been issued by the 
Council.

Conditions and Reasons for Refusal

Suggested reasons for refusal and any conditions are set out in full in the officer’s 
recommendation.

Officers or the Committee may add further reasons for refusal or conditions during 
the Committee meeting and Members may choose to refuse an application 
recommended for permission by the Officers or to permit an application 
recommended for refusal.  In all cases, clear reasons will be given, by whoever is 
promoting the new condition or reason for refusal, to explain why the change is being 
made.

Decisions subject to Completion of a Planning Obligation

For some applications, a resolution is passed to grant planning permission subject to 
the completion of an appropriate planning obligation (often referred to as a Section 
106 agreement).  The obligation can restrict development or the use of the land, 
require operations or activities to be carried out, require the land to be used in a 
specified way or require payments to be made to the authority.

New developments will usually be required to contribute towards the infrastructure 
required to serve a site and to cater for additional demand created by any new 
development and its future occupants.  Typically, such requirements include 
contributions to community facilities, village halls, parks and play areas, playing fields 
and improvements to roads, footpaths, cycleways and public transport.

Upon completion of the obligation, the Head of Planning and Building is delegated to 
grant permission subject to the listed conditions.  However, it should be noted that 
the obligation usually has to be completed sufficiently in advance of the planning 
application determination date to allow the application to be issued.  If this does not 
happen, the application may be refused for not resolving the issues required within 
the timescale set to deal with the application.

Deferred Applications

Applications may not be decided at the meeting for a number of reasons as follows:

* The applicant may choose to withdraw the application.  No further action 
would be taken on that proposal and the file is closed.

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 6



* Officers may recommend deferral because the information requested or 
amended plans have not been approved or there is insufficient time for 
consultation on amendments.

* The Committee may resolve to seek additional information or amendments.

* The Committee may resolve to visit the site to assess the effect of the 
proposal on matters that are not clear from the plans or from the report.  
These site visits are not public meetings.

* Where the Committee has resolved to make a decision, which in the opinion of 
the Head of Planning and Building, has a possible conflict with policy, public 
interest or possible claims for costs against the Council, those applications 
shall be referred to the Planning Control Committee for determination.

Visual Display of Plans and Photographs

Plans are included in the officers’ reports in order to identify the site and its 
surroundings.  The location plan will normally be the most up-to-date available from 
Ordnance Survey and to scale.  The other plans are not a complete copy of the 
application plans and may not be to scale, particularly when they have been reduced 
from large size paper plans.  If further information is needed or these plans are 
unclear please refer to the submitted application in the reception areas in Beech 
Hurst, Andover or the Former Magistrates Court office, Romsey.  Plans displayed at 
the meeting to assist the Members may include material additional to the written 
reports.

Photographs are used to illustrate particular points on most of the items and the 
officers usually take these.  Photographs submitted in advance by applicants or 
objectors may be used at the discretion of the officers.

Human Rights

“The European Convention on Human Rights” (“ECHR”) was brought into English 
Law, via the Human Rights Act 1998 (“HRA”), as from October 2000.

The HRA introduces an obligation on the Council to act consistently with the ECHR.

There are 2 Convention Rights likely to be most relevant to Planning Decisions:

* Article 1 of the 1st Protocol - The Right to the Enjoyment of Property.

* Article 8 - Right for Respect for Home, Privacy and Family Life.

It is important to note that these types of right are not unlimited - although in 
accordance with the EU concept of “proportionality”, any interference with these 
rights must be sanctioned by Law (e.g. by the Town & Country Planning Acts) and 
must go no further than necessary.

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 7



Essentially, private interests must be weighed against the wider public interest and 
against competing private interests.  Such a balancing exercise is already implicit in 
the decision making processes of the Committee.  However, Members must 
specifically bear Human Rights issues in mind when reaching decisions on all 
planning applications and enforcement action.

Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006 (NERC)

The Council has a duty under the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 
2006 as follows: "every public authority must, in exercising its functions, have regard, 
so far as is consistent with the proper exercise of those functions, to the purpose of 
conserving biodiversity".

It is considered that this duty has been properly addressed within the process leading 
up to the formulation of the policies in the Revised Local Plan.  Further regard is had 
in relation to specific planning applications through completion of the biodiversity 
checklists for validation, scoping and/or submission of Environmental Statements and 
any statutory consultations with relevant conservation bodies on biodiversity aspects 
of the proposals. Provided any recommendations arising from these processes are 
conditioned as part of any grant of planning permission (or included in reasons for 
refusal of any planning application) then the duty to ensure that biodiversity interest 
has been conserved, as far as practically possible, will be considered to have been 
met.

Other Legislation

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that 
determination of applications be made in accordance with the Development Plan 
unless material considerations indicate otherwise.  The Development Plan for the 
Borough comprises the Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016).  Material 
considerations are defined by Case Law and includes, amongst other things, draft 
Development Plan Documents (DPD), Supplementary Planning Documents (SPD) 
and other relevant guidance including Development Briefs, Government advice, 
amenity considerations, crime and community safety, traffic generation and safety.

On the 24 July 2018 the Government published a revised National Planning Policy 
Framework (NPPF). The revised NPPF replaced and superseded the previous NPPF 
published in 2012.  The revised NPPF is a material consideration in planning 
decisions.  

So that sustainable development is pursued in a positive way, at the heart of the 
revised NPPF is a presumption in favour of sustainable development.  Decisions 
should apply a presumption in favour of sustainable development.  This does not 
change the statutory status of the development plan as a starting point for decision 
making.  Planning law requires that applications for planning permission must be 
determined in accordance with the development plan unless material considerations 
indicate otherwise.  Where a planning application conflicts with an up to date 
development plan, permission should not usually be granted.  Local planning 
authorities may take decisions which depart from an up to date development plan, 

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 8



but only if material considerations in a particular case indicate that the plan should 
not be followed.  

For decision-taking, applying the presumption in favour of sustainable development 
means:

 Approving development proposals that accord with an up to date development 
plan without delay; or

 Where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies which 
are most important for determining the application are out of date, granting 
permission unless:

o The application of policies in the revised NPPF that protect areas or 
assets of particular importance provides a clear reason for refusing the 
development proposed; or 

o Any adverse impact of doing so would significantly and demonstrably 
outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in the 
revised NPPF when taken as a whole.  

Existing Local Plan policies should not be considered out of date because they were 
adopted prior to the publication of the revised NPPF.  Due weight should be given to 
them, according to their degree of consistency with the revised NPPF (the closer the 
policies in the Local Plan to the policies in the revised NPPF, the greater the weight 
that may be given).  

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 9



APPLICATION NO. 16/00544/OUTN
APPLICATION TYPE OUTLINE APPLICATION - NORTH
REGISTERED 03.03.2016
APPLICANT Dunsmere Developments Ltd
SITE Land north of Walworth Road, Picket Piece, Andover, 

SP11 6LY, ANDOVER TOWN (ST MARYS) 
PROPOSAL Outline planning application for the residential 

development (Class C3) of up to 30 dwellings; with 
associated car parking, turning, public open space, 
landscaping, and improvements to existing vehicular 
access to Walworth Road, external access not 
reserved.

AMENDMENTS
CASE OFFICER Miss Emma Jones

Background paper (Local Government Act 1972 Section 100D)

1.0 INTRODUCTION 
1.1 This application was considered by the Northern Area Planning Committee on 

4 August 2016 when it was resolved to:  

 Delegate to the Head of Planning and Building that subject to the 
completion of a S106 legal agreement to secure financial contributions 
for transport/highways, public open space (including its maintenance), 
educational provisions, landscape maintenance and management 
arrangements, affordable housing and skills/training provision then 
OUTLINE PERMISSION subject to condition and notes.

1.2 Since the consideration of the application at NAPC on the 4 August 2016, an 
updated National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) has been published (July 
2018). This updated version of the NPPF replaces the previous version (March 
2012) that was current at the time the application was considered by the 
NAPC. It is therefore necessary for the Committee to consider the application 
in light of the new material planning consideration before a decision can be 
issued. This report is an update dealing with an assessment of these changes 
in relation to the application. In other respects, the reports to the NAPC on the 
4 August 2016 apply and these are included as follows:

 The report presented in the NAPC agenda for its meeting on 4 August 
2016 is attached at Appendix A.

 The Update Paper reported to the NAPC meeting on the 4 August 2016 
is attached at Appendix B. 

1.3 The application was originally brought to the Northern Area Planning 
Committee because the proposal was considered to be of significant local 
interest.

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 10



2.0 REPRESENTATIONS Expired 26.07.2016
2.1 1 x letter received since the application was considered by the NAPC on 

4 August 2016; Objection from Alfred Cottage, 23 Walworth Road, raising;
 Character of Area;
 Noise;
 Over Development;
 Overlooking;
 Traffic Generation Parking and Safety;
 Trees;
 We will be blighted by headlights directed into our living room and 

bedrooms in the evenings and at night from vehicles exiting the 
development, not to mention the additional noise;

 Walworth Road has already become a busy main road with many 
vehicles not adhering to the 30mph speed limit. With the pavements and 
road in poor condition there is an accident waiting to happen. We 
already have difficulty pulling out of our drive with vehicles speeding, the 
increased traffic flow and with the additional access road opposite will 
make access in and out of our property even more difficult;

 Picket Piece was a nice peaceful village which drew us to move here 
but is being changed by over development in the immediate area. We 
already suffer the noise of a ball being kicked constantly against the 
fence at the rear of our property from the development south of 
Walworth Road, making it difficult to enjoy sitting in the garden;

 The increase of traffic noise for longer hours;
 When we first moved here in 2014 owls could be heard in the evenings 

but I fear that with all the development their habitat and prey have 
disappeared. What other wildlife has these developments had an impact 
on?;

 The road condition from increase traffic of all sizes is getting worse and 
is a hazard to cyclists, pedestrians and road users. There have been 
numerous attempts to patch it but has not improved the road condition;

 There is an increase in litter especially from local takeaways;
 The residents of Picket Piece are losing all of our green spaces to 

developments with the fields between Picket Piece and Walworth 
Industrial Estate to be developed also. I would much rather see the land 
north of Walworth Road turned into a community parkland/nature 
reserve and opened up for the residents to make use of as there is no 
safe place left in Picket Piece for kids to run around and for dog owners 
to let dogs off leads;

 The pavements along Walworth Road are narrow and do not continue 
the length of the road so people are forced to cross over. With some 
road users travelling at break neck speeds I fear for the parents walking 
along with small children and pushchairs/prams;

 It is pleasant to be able to look out to the trees and hope that these 
would be protected in the plans of the development and no trees would 
be cut down;

 I would hope that there would be no development north of Walworth 
Road, and would not be given permission and our green spaces are 
preserved, Walworth Road does not become massively over developed 
and the residents of Picket Piece have some space to enjoy.

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 11



3.0 POLICY
3.1 Government Guidance

National Planning Policy Framework 2018 (NPPF)
National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)

3.2 Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016)(RLP)
SD1 – Presumption in favour of sustainable development
COM1 – Housing provision 2011-2029
COM2 – Settlement hierarchy
COM6 – New neighbourhood at Picket Piece, Andover
COM7 – Affordable housing
COM15 – Infrastructure
E1 – High quality development in the Borough
E2 – Protect, conserve and enhance the landscape character of the Borough
E5 – Biodiversity
E7 – Water management
E8 – Pollution
E9 – Heritage
LHW1 – Public open space
LHW4 – Amenity
T1 – Managing movement
T2 – Parking standard

3.3 Supplementary Planning Documents (SPD)
Affordable Housing
Infrastructure and Developer Contributions
Cycle Network and Network
Andover Town Access Plan

4.0 PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
4.1 The main planning considerations are:

 Whether, in considering the guidance contained in the NPPF as a 
material planning consideration that has been published since the 
NAPC meeting on the 4 August 2016, the proposed development is 
considered acceptable. 

4.2 National Planning Policy Framework – background 
Paragraph 2 of the updated NPPF states that applications for planning 
permission must be determined in accordance with the Development Plan. 
Paragraph 12 recognises that the NPPF does not change the statutory status 
of the development plan as the starting point for decision making. It goes on to 
advise that where a proposed development conflicts with an up-to-date 
development plan, permission should not usually be granted and that local 
planning authorities may take decisions that depart from an up-to-date 
development plan, but only if material considerations in a particular case 
indicate that the plan should not be followed. Paragraph 213 reinforces that the 
policies of local plans should not be considered out of date because of their 
adoption prior to the publication of the updated NPPF and confirms that due 
weight should be given to them, according to their degree of consistency with 
the NPPF. 

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 12



4.3 Considerations detailed in the 4 August 2016 agenda report 
With respect to the following considerations in the original Officer’s report 
(Appendix A):

 The principle of development
 Character and appearance
 Trees and landscaping
 Highway network
 Water management
 Ecology
 Archaeology
 Affordable housing
 Public open space
 Educational provision
 Skills and training
 Amenity

it is considered that the updated NPPF does not introduce a materially different 
approach to these matters such that the original officer assessment of the 
proposal as set out in the original report to NAPC is now unsound. The 
corresponding Development Plan policies are not inconsistent with the updated 
NPPF such that a different recommendation on these matters arises. 

4.4 Comments and considerations in response to additional third party 
representation
The comments made in the additional third party representation (see 
paragraph 2.1) have largely been considered within the reports already present 
to NAPC (Appendix A and B), including in relation to the principle of developing 
land to the north of Walworth Road, ecology, highway matters including 
mitigation/improvements, amenity, and trees.  

4.5 The third party representation raises concerns with regards to headlights from 
the proposed access road being directed into the living room and bedrooms of 
23 Walworth Road.  The access to the site would be on a similar ground level 
to this property (i.e. not directing headlights upwards), and there would be a 
separation distance of approximately 20m between the access and the front 
elevation of this neighbouring property, and there is an intervening boundary 
treatment.  It is not considered that this would result in any significant detriment 
to the amenities of the occupants of existing dwellings on Walworth Road.

4.6 It has also been suggested in the third party representation that there is an 
increase in litter especially from local takeaways.  The proposed development 
is not located close to any generators of this type of litter, nor does the 
proposal include provision for such establishments. Litter bins are generally 
provided within the existing developments at Picket Piece in the areas of public 
open space, and provision can also be made within the application site at such 
a time as the specific details are proposed at condition/reserved matters stage. 

4.7 Legal agreement 
The required legal agreement has not yet been completed. Consequently the 
recommendation reflects the need to secure the same obligations to those set 
out in the previous NAPC recommendation.

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 13



5.0 CONCLUSION
5.1 It is clear that the publication of the revised NPPF represents a new material 

consideration compared to the position as it existed when the NAPC met on 
the 4 August 2016. However, it is not considered that the revised NPPF, or the 
additional letter of representation received, introduces a materially different 
approach to considering the planning considerations relevant to this application 
as outlined above. The proposal does not conflict with the revised NPPF and 
on this basis there is no reason to reach a different outcome to that of the 
NAPC on 4 August 2016.

6.0 RECOMMENDATION
Delegate to the Head of Planning and Building that subject to the 
completion of a S106 legal agreement to secure financial contributions 
for transport/highways, public open space (including its maintenance), 
educational provisions, landscape maintenance and management 
arrangements, affordable housing and skills/training provision then 
OUTLINE PERMISSION subject to:
1. Applications for the approval of all the reserved matters referred to 

herein shall be made within a period of three years from the date of 
this permission. The development to which the permission relates 
shall be begun not later than which ever is the later of the following 
dates:

i) five years from the date of this permission: or
ii) two years from the final approval of the said reserved matters, 

or, in the case of approval on different dates, the final 
approval of the last such matter to be approved.

Reason:  To comply with the provision of S.92 of the Town & 
Country Planning Act 1990.

2. Details of the appearance, landscaping, layout and scale (hereinafter 
called "the reserved matters") shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority before any development 
begins and the development shall be carried out as approved.
Reason:  To comply with Article 4 of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Development Procedure) Order 1995 (or any order revoking 
and re-enacting that Order).

3. The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in 
complete accordance with the details shown on the submitted 
plans, numbers; 140126-01; 4797.002 Rev. B
Reason:  For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning.

4. No construction above foundation level shall take place on the 
dwellings until samples and details of the materials to be used in the 
construction of all external surfaces hereby permitted have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details.
Reason:  To ensure the development has a satisfactory external 
appearance in the interest of visual amenities in accordance with 
Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan 2016 policy E1.

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 14



5. No development shall take place (including site clearance within the 
application site/area indicated red) until the applicant or their agents 
or successors in title has secured the implementation of a 
programme of archaeological assessment in accordance with a 
Written Scheme of Investigation which has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
assessment should initially take the form of a geophysical survey of 
the site, followed by trial trenching targeted on potential 
archaeological features identified by the geophysics and also within 
any ‘blank’ areas in between.  The Written Scheme of Investigation 
shall also include a programme of archaeological mitigation of 
impact, based on the results of the trial trenching.
Reason:  Archaeological work is required prior to construction of 
the development in order to assess the extent, nature and date of 
any archaeological deposits that might be present, to assess the 
impact of the development upon these heritage assets, to mitigate 
the effect of the works associated with the development upon any 
heritage assets, and to ensure that information regarding these 
heritage assets is preserved by record for future generations in 
accordance with Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan 2016 
policy E9.

6. Following completion of the archaeological fieldwork a report shall 
be produced in accordance with an approved programme including, 
where appropriate, post-excavation assessment, specialist analysis 
and reports, publication and public engagement.  The report shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.
Reason:  To contribute to our knowledge and understanding of our 
past by ensuring that opportunities are taken to capture evidence 
from the historic environment and to make this publicly available in 
accordance with Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan 2016 
policy E9.

7. All landscape works forming part of the approved reserved matters 
shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details and 
with an implementation programme that shall have first been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority 
prior to any development above foundation level taking place.
Reason:  To provide a satisfactory landscape setting to the 
development having regard to policy E2 of the Test Valley Borough 
Revised Local Plan 2016.

8. A landscape management plan, including long-term design 
objectives and arrangements for its implementation, including 
management responsibilities and maintenance schedules (for a five 
year period), for all landscape areas other than privately owned, 
domestic gardens, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority prior to the first occupation of the 
development hereby permitted. The landscape management plan 
shall be carried out as approved.
Reason:  To ensure appropriate maintenance of all non-domestic 
landscaped areas in the development having regard to policy E2 of 
the Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan 2016.

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 15



9. The development hereby approved shall be designed and built to 
meet Regulation 36 2 (b) requirement of 110 litres/person/day water 
efficiency set out in part G2 of Building Regulations 2015.
Reason:  In the interests of improving water usage efficiency in 
accordance with policy E7 of the Test Valley Borough Revised Local 
Plan 2016.

10. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in 
accordance with the provisions set out within the submitted 
Arboricultural Impact Assessment (SJ Stephens Associates, 26th 
May 2016).
Reason:  To ensure the enhancement of the development by the 
retention of existing trees and natural features during the 
construction phase in accordance with Test Valley Borough Revised 
Local Plan policy E2.

11. Tree protective measures installed (in accordance with the tree 
protection condition above) shall be maintained and retained for the 
full duration of works or until such time as agreed in writing with the 
Local Planning Authority Arboricultural Officer.  No activities, nor 
material storage, nor placement of site huts or other equipment 
what-so-ever shall take place within the barrier without the prior 
written agreement of the Local Planning Authority. 
Reason:  To ensure the avoidance of damage to existing trees and 
natural features during the construction phase in accordance with 
Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan policy E2.

12. All service routes, drain runs, soakaways or excavations in 
connection with the same shall remain wholly outside the tree 
protective barrier without the prior written agreement of the Local 
Planning Authority. 
Reason:  To ensure the avoidance of damage to existing trees and 
natural features during the construction phase in accordance with 
Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan policy E2.

13. Details of the layout and specification for the children’s play area 
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning 
authority prior to its installation. The development shall be carried 
out in accordance with the approved details.
Reason:  To ensure its layout and equipping is of a high standard in 
accordance with Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan 2016 
policy LHW1.

14. No work relating to the construction of the development hereby 
approved, including works of demolition or preparation prior to 
operations, shall take place before the hours of 0730 nor after 1800 
on Mondays to Fridays; before the hours of 0800 nor after 1300 on 
Saturdays; and at all on Sundays and public holidays. 
Reason:  In the interests of amenity in accordance with Test Valley 
Borough Revised Local Plan 2016 policy E8.

15. No development shall take place until a method of demolition and 
construction has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. Development shall be carried out in 
accordance with the approved scheme unless otherwise agreed in 
writing by the local planning authority. No piling or any other 
foundation designs using penetrative methods shall take place. The 
scheme should include dust control measures.

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 16



Reason:  In the interests of amenity in accordance with Test Valley 
Borough Revised Local Plan 2016 policy E8.

16. No development shall take place (other than any approved 
demolition and site clearance works) until an assessment of the 
nature and extent of any contamination and a scheme for 
remediating the contamination has been submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The assessment must be 
undertaken by a competent person, and shall assess the presence 
of any contamination on the site, whether or not it originates on the 
site, in accordance with the recommendations set out in the 
submitted Geoprobe Environmental Limited report (Ref: GPE 
15/202). In the event that contamination is found, or is considered 
likely, a scheme containing remediation proposals designed to bring 
the site to a condition suitable for the intended use shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The site shall not be brought in to use until a verification 
report, for the purpose of certifying adherence to the approved 
remediation scheme, has been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason:  To ensure a safe living/working environment in 
accordance with Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan 2016 
policy E8.

17. In the event that contamination that was not previously identified is 
found at any time during demolition and/or construction works, the 
presence of such contamination shall be reported in writing to the 
Local Planning Authority without delay and development shall be 
suspended on the affected part of the site until a remediation 
scheme for dealing with that contamination has been approved by 
the Local Planning Authority. The approved remediation scheme 
shall be implemented and, if requested, a verification report, for the 
purpose of certifying adherence to the approved remediation 
scheme, shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority prior to 
the site being brought in to use.
Reason:  To ensure a safe living/working environment in 
accordance with Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan 2016 
policy E8.

18. The development hereby permitted shall not commence until a 
surface water drainage scheme for the site, based on sustainable 
drainage principles and an assessment of the hydrological and 
hydro geological context of the development, has been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  Details 
shall include the responsibilities of each party for the 
implementation of the scheme; a timetable for its implementation; a 
management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the 
development; arrangements for adoption by any public authority or 
statutory undertaker and any other arrangements to secure the 
operation of the scheme throughout its lifetime. The scheme shall 
subsequently be implemented in accordance with the approved 
details before the development is occupied.

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 17



Reason:  Details are required prior to the commencement of 
development to ensure the prevention of an increased risk of 
flooding and to ensure the improvement and protection of water 
quality, habitat and amenity in accordance with policy E7 of the Test 
Valley Borough Revised Local Plan 2016.

19. No dwelling hereby permitted shall be occupied until the crossing 
points on Walworth Road as shown on drawing 4797.002 Rev B have 
been implemented to the satisfaction of the Local Planning 
Authority.
Reason:  This is required prior to the commencement of 
development in the interests of highway safety in accordance with 
Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan 2016 policy T1.

20. The development hereby permitted shall not commence until details 
of the roads, footways, footpaths and cycleways to be offered to 
HCC for adoption have been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority.  The development shall be carried 
out in accordance with the approved details.  Details shall include; 

a) the width, alignment, gradient and surface materials including 
all relevant horizontal and longitudinal cross sections 
showing existing and proposed levels  

b) the type of street lighting including calculations, contour 
illumination plans and means to reduce light pollution  c) the 
method of surface water drainage including local sustainable 
disposal.  

Reason:  Details are required prior to commencement to ensure that 
the roads, footway, footpath, cycleway, street lighting and surface 
water drainage are constructed and maintained to an appropriate 
standard to serve the development in accordance with Test Valley 
Borough Revised Local Plan 2016 policy T1.

21. Prior to the commencement of development full details of the layout 
for the parking and manoeuvring onsite of contractor's and delivery 
vehicles during the construction period shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved 
scheme shall be implemented prior to the commencement of 
development and retained for the duration of the construction 
period.
Reason:  Details are required prior to the commencement of the 
development to ensure that construction of the proposed 
development will be in the interest of highway safety in accordance 
with Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan 2016 policy T1.

22. The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until space 
has been laid out and provided for the parking and manoeuvring of 
vehicles to enable them to enter and leave the site in a forward gear 
in accordance with the approved plan and this space shall thereafter 
be reserved for such purposes at all times.
Reason:  In the interests of highway safety in accordance with Test 
Valley Borough Revised Local Plan 2016 policies T1 and T2.

23. At least the first 4.5 metres of the access track measured from the 
nearside edge of carriageway of the adjacent highway shall be 
surfaced in a non-migratory material prior to the use of the access 
commencing and retained as such at all times.

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 18



Reason:  In the interest of highway safety in accordance with Test 
Valley Borough Revised Local Plan 2016 policy T1.

24. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in 
accordance with the mitigation measures set out in Section 5.0 
‘Conclusions and Recommendations’ of the submitted Ecological 
Appraisal and Phase 2 Surveys Report (Lindsey Carrington 
Ecological Services Ltd., update August 2016), unless varied by any 
relevant European Protected Species (EPS) license issued by 
Natural England.  All mitigation and compensation habitats shall be 
permanently maintained and retained in accordance with the 
approved details.  
Reason:  To avoid impacts to protected species, to maintain the 
favourable conservation status of dormice, and to conserve and 
enhance biodiversity in accordance with Test Valley Borough 
Revised Local Plan 2016 policy E5.

25. No deliveries of materials or removal of spoil during the 
construction of the development shall take place before 0915 or 
after 1500 on Mondays to Fridays, or before 0800 or after 1300 hours 
on Saturdays. There shall be no deliveries of materials or removal of 
spoil during the construction of the development on Sundays and 
public holidays. 
Reason:  In the interests of amenity in accordance with Test Valley 
Borough Revised Local Plan 2016 policy E8.

Notes to applicant:
1. In reaching this decision Test Valley Borough Council (TVBC) has 

had regard to the National Planning Policy Framework and takes a 
positive and proactive approach to development proposals focused 
on solutions. TVBC work with applicants and their agents in a 
positive and proactive manner offering a pre-application advice 
service and updating applicants/agents of issues that may arise in 
dealing with the application and where possible suggesting 
solutions.

2. Attention is drawn to the requirements of the Agreement dated 
XXXXXX  under Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990 which affects this development.

3. A formal application for connection to the public sewage system 
and the water supply is required in order to service this 
development.  Please contact Southern Water, Sparrowgrove House, 
Sparrowgrove, Otterbourne, Hampshire, SO21 2SW (Tel: 0330 303 
0119 or www.southernwater.co.uk).

4. Permission is required under the Highways Act 1980 to 
construct/alter/close a vehicular access. Please contact the Head of 
Highways, Hampshire County Council, Jacobs Gutter Lane 
Hounsdown, Totton, Southampton, SO40 9TQ. (0300 555 1388) or 
highways-transportwest@hants.gov.uk at least 6 weeks prior to 
work commencing.

5. Birds nests, when occupied or being built, receive legal protection 
under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended). It is 
highly advisable to undertake clearance of potential bird nesting 
habitat (such as hedges, scrub, trees, suitable outbuildings etc.) 

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 19



outside the bird nesting season, which is generally seen as 
extending from March to the end of August, although may extend 
longer depending on local conditions. If there is absolutely no 
alternative to doing the work in during this period then a thorough, 
careful and quiet examination of the affected area must be carried 
out before clearance starts. If occupied nests are present then work 
must stop in that area, a suitable (approximately 5m) stand-off 
maintained, and clearance can only recommence once the nest 
becomes unoccupied of its own accord.

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 20



APPENDIX A

Officer Report to Northern Area Planning Committee on 4 August 2016

APPLICATION NO. 16/00544/OUTN
APPLICATION TYPE OUTLINE APPLICATION - NORTH
REGISTERED 03.03.2016
APPLICANT Dunsmere Developments Ltd
SITE Land north of Walworth Road, Picket Piece, Andover, 

SP11 6LY,  ANDOVER TOWN (ST MARYS) 
PROPOSAL Outline planning application for the residential 

development (Class C3) of up to 30 dwellings; with 
associated car parking, turning, public open space, 
landscaping, and improvements to existing vehicular 
access to Walworth Road, external access not 
reserved.

AMENDMENTS Amended/additional plans and information received:
 14.06.2016
 12.07.2016
 14.07.2016

CASE OFFICER Miss Emma Jones

Background paper (Local Government Act 1972 Section 100D)

1.0 INTRODUCTION 
1.1 The application is referred to the Northern Area Planning Committee because 

the proposal is considered to be of significant local interest.

2.0 SITE LOCATION AND DESCRIPTION
2.1 The application site comprises land to the rear (north) of the existing dwellings 

fronting Walworth Road, Picket Piece, and extends to the railway line to the 
north.  The application site is currently a field of approximately 1.17 hectares in 
size.  There is some vegetation within the site, and the boundaries consist of 
mature trees.  The ground levels at the site rise gently from Walworth Road up 
to the northern boundary adjacent to the railway line, which is situated on an 
embankment.

3.0 PROPOSAL
3.1 The proposal seeks outline planning permission for a development of up to 30 

residential dwellings with associated car parking, turning, public open space, 
landscaping, and improvements to existing vehicular access to Walworth 
Road.

3.2 The proposal is in Outline form with only the matter of access submitted for 
approval at this stage.  All other matters (Layout, Appearance, Landscaping 
and Scale) are reserved for later approval.  

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 21



3.3 The application proposes the erection of up to 30 dwellings comprising a range 
of house types and sizes.  An indicative dwelling mix has been set out as 
follows;

12 x 1 bedroom
1 x 2 bedroom
3 x 3 bedroom
5 x 3/4 bedroom
9 x 4 bedroom

It is proposed that 12 dwellings would be affordable units.

3.4 Amended/additional plans and information have been received during the 
course of the application, in relation to: the position of the public open space; 
the position of dwellings in relation to existing trees and further arboricultural 
assessment; acoustic impact assessment; updated ecological appraisal; 
revised access/internal road arrangements.

4.0 HISTORY
4.1 There is no relevant planning history relating to the application site itself, 

however the land to the south of Walworth Road, opposite the application site, 
is subject of outline planning permission (application 10/00242/OUTN) for a 
mixed use development comprising up to 530 dwellings, local centre offering 
community facilities and retail units, public open space, vehicular, pedestrian 
and cycle access and landscaping.  Whilst the site subject of this current 
planning application did not form part of this outline planning permission, it was 
shown indicatively on the submitted plans with that outline application as being 
a “subsequent phase”.

4.2 A planning application relating to the adjacent land to the east of the 
application site has also been submitted (as set out at para.4.3 below).  The 
Northern Area Planning Committee (NAPC) considered that application on 21 
April 2016, and resolved to instruct the Head of Planning and Building to issue 
Outline permission subject to the completion of an appropriate legal agreement 
to secure financial contributions for transport/highways, public open space 
(including its maintenance), educational provisions, landscape maintenance 
and management arrangements, affordable housing and skills/training 
provision.  The S106 is still being progressed, and Outline permission has 
therefore not yet been issued.

4.3 15/03150/OUTN; Outline planning application for development of up to 53 
residential dwellings with associated access, parking, open space and 
landscaping. Access into the site to be considered, all other matters reserved – 
Outline permission – pending decision.

5.0 CONSULTATIONS
5.1 Planning Policy; No objection, subject to public open space contribution.

5.2 Landscape; No objection, subject to conditions.

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 22



5.3 Trees; No objection, subject to conditions.

5.4 Highways; Comments raising;
 Seek amended plan with regards to access;
 Expected comprehensive statement on safety merits of design in road 

safety audit.

5.5 Transport Planner; Comments;
 There are some concerns regarding this site - as it forms part of a larger 

allocation and with it coming forward in a small piecemeal way it is 
difficult to be assured that access, and permeability are adequately 
provide for. It is difficult to ensure that the layouts for each deliver a 
permeable layout, conforming with Manual for Streets and offer good 
design principles.

 Each of the small development areas needs to ensure that it relates well 
(and acknowledges) the neighbouring one, providing a comprehensive 
network of footway/cycleways and good permeability through the 
development/s and to Walworth Road. Routes/footways should not just 
end at hedge lines or boundaries.

 Also, we would want to look at access to Walworth Road and the ability 
of pedestrians/cyclists to cross it to access nearby services and 
facilities. So crossings, signage etc need to be considered.

 Contribution should be sought towards the Picket Piece Travel Plan.

5.6 Economic Development; Comments;
 The applicant should contribute to construction skills training. This 

should be set out in a S.106 Agreement to provide an Employment and 
Skills Plan, based on the CITB Client Based Approach.

5.7 Leisure; Planting/management plan required and contribution towards long 
term management of public open space.

5.8 Housing; Support. 

5.9 Environmental Protection; Suggested conditions.

5.10 Southern Water; Comments summarised as follows;
 Southern Water can provide foul sewage disposal to serve the site.  

Informative note requested in relation to connecting to the public sewer;
 Condition requested in relation to surface water;
 Southern Water can provide a water supply to the site.  Informative note 

requested in relation to connecting to water supply.

5.11 HCC Archaeology; Suggested conditions.

5.12 HCC Ecology; Suggested conditions/notes.

5.13 HCC Local Education Authority; No objection subject to a contribution 
towards educational infrastructure.

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 23



5.14 HCC Lead Local Flood Authority; The general principles for the surface 
water drainage proposals are acceptable, however, we would recommend that 
further information on the proposals be submitted as part of a more detailed 
design phase.  

5.15 Natural England; No objection.

6.0 REPRESENTATIONS Expired 28.04.2016
6.1 Andover Town Council; Objection, with comments as follows;

 Submitted plans do not show the cycle access or footpaths;
 Acoustic fencing will mean the entrance will feel very enclosed.  

Concerned about height of the acoustic fence;
 Concerned about the visibility splays for access and egress of the site;
 Concerned about sustainability of site, on foot pedestrians will have to 

cross the road to get to the nearest shops;
 All footpaths should be accessible to all.  A crossing should be provided 

on the south side of the development to enable access to local 
amenities, such as shops and community centre;

 Play grounds and shops are not easily accessible, therefore it is 
suggested that 106 monies could contribute to better access.

6.2 2 x letters; Objection and comments from Brambles and Ridge House 
(Walworth Road), summarised as follows;

 Walworth Road is already being overused, is considerably noisy, and 
can be a rat run.  Crossing the road can be dangerous;

 Picket Piece was once a quiet village.  It will lose the character that it 
currently has;

 Village is now being overdeveloped and the road infrastructure is not 
suitable;

 During summer months it is lovely sitting in back garden listening to 
birds and enjoying views across the field;

 Small village is already being ruined by the housing development to the 
south and now the proposal is to squeeze another 30 houses behind us 
and more in the adjoining land around;

 Concerned that the proposed houses are being built too close to the 
existing properties, and that the boundary fences and hedgerows will be 
insufficient to maintain privacy.  New properties directly overlook house 
and garden at Brambles;

 No detail regarding area of land around three trees with TPO protection.  
Understand the trees will not be touched but how will area around the 
trees be contained or controlled;

 Proposed development is overcrowded and unsympathetic to the 
existing residents;

 Plot 5 will affect privacy of Ridge House.  Properties across the road 
have become overlooked by the ongoing development and would hope 
not to be so badly affected;

 Landscape screening proposed.  Would like to think this will be 
sufficient height to provide level of privacy;

 Will tree line to west of development remain or be taken down if 
development continues that way?;

 Average speed through village is over the 30mph limit, and with the 
increase of vehicles and pedestrians, road safety needs a proactive 
approach.

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 24



7.0 POLICY
7.1 Government Guidance

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)
National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)

7.2 Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016)(RLP)
SD1 – Presumption in favour of sustainable development
COM1 – Housing provision 2011-2029
COM2 – Settlement hierarchy
COM6 – New neighbourhood at Picket Piece, Andover
COM7 – Affordable housing
COM15 – Infrastructure
E1 – High quality development in the Borough
E2 – Protect, conserve and enhance the landscape character of the Borough
E5 – Biodiversity
E7 – Water management
E8 – Pollution
E9 – Heritage
LHW1 – Public open space
LHW4 – Amenity
T1 – Managing movement
T2 – Parking standard

7.3 Supplementary Planning Documents (SPD)
Affordable Housing
Infrastructure and Developer Contributions
Cycle Network and Network
Andover Town Access Plan

8.0 PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
8.1 The main planning considerations are:

 The principle of development
 Character and appearance
 Trees and landscaping
 Highway network
 Water management
 Ecology
 Archaeology
 Affordable housing
 Public open space
 Educational provision
 Skills and training
 Amenity

8.2 The principle of development
Policy COM6 of the RLP makes provision for a new neighbourhood at Picket 
Piece, comprising approximately 400 dwellings together with a range of 
associated facilities.  The application site lies within this designated new 
neighbourhood (as defined by Map E of the RLP). The proposed development, 
consisting of up to 30 dwellings, is therefore acceptable in principle, subject to 
the provision of:

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 25



a) Affordable housing provision in accordance with policy COM7;
b) Improvements to community and education facilities;
c) Public open space provision in accordance with policy LHW1;
d) Landscaping to be provided including

i) A landscape belt of approximately 5 metres width south of the 
railway line

ii) A landscape belt to complement that already permitted north of Ox 
Drove

e) Access to the development via;
i) Vehicular access to Walworth Rd
ii) Pedestrian/ cycle links to Walworth Rd

f) Off-site improvements to the transport network to manage the impact of 
additional movements including:
i) Junctions of the A3093/A3057/A303(T)
ii) Pedestrian/ cycle links along Ox Drove.

The proposed development makes provision for the above, as discussed 
further below, and it is considered to comply with policy COM6 of the RLP.  An 
assessment of the proposed development against the other relevant policies of 
the RLP has also been carried out below.

8.3 Character and appearance
Policies E1 and E2 seek to protect the landscape of the Borough through the 
provision of high quality development that integrates with and 
respects/complements the character of the area, and through the 
retention/provision of appropriate landscaping and landscape features.

8.4 The application is an Outline Application only, the matter of access is for 
consideration with this current application, but the layout, appearance, 
landscaping and scale are not for consideration at this stage and should 
approval be granted, these would be reserved matters. The proposed layout is 
provided for illustrative purposes only at this outline stage.  

8.5 The application site consists of land between the existing line of properties 
along, and facing onto, the northern side of Walworth Road and the railway line 
to the north, which is at an elevated ground level in relation to the application 
site.  The site has a gradual slope to it, rising to the north up to a steep 
embankment upon which the railway line is situated.  Public views of the 
proposed development would be achieved through the existing dwellings and 
the proposed access along Walworth Road and from the railway line by train 
users, and wider public views would be available from the rising land to the 
south of Walworth Road up to Ox Drove.

8.6 The proposed development would be largely seen against the backdrop of the 
railway line embankment to the north, and would be visually well contained as 
a result of this.  The submitted indicative plans suggest that the proposed 
dwellings would consist of a mix of 2, 2.5 and 3 storeys, which is in keeping 
with the proposals at the adjoining site to the east (15/03150/OUTN), and the 
recently constructed housing development to the south of Walworth Road.  

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 26



8.7 Policy COM1 of the RLP requires development across the Borough to help 
provide an inclusive mix of housing to meet the choice and needs of the 
community.  The supporting text to this policy sets out that the density of 
proposals should be informed by the character of the site and its surroundings 
and be sympathetic to it, and that proposals should provide a mix of sizes and 
types of new homes to meet the demographic changes of the Borough.  The 
site is approximately 1.17 hectares in size, and up to 30 dwellings are 
proposed.  This equates to a housing density of approximately 25.6 dwellings 
per hectare on the site.  This is a relatively low density, with 35-40 dwellings 
per hectare being typical densities found within the new housing development 
to the south of Walworth Road.  This lower density does, however, reflect 
proposals at the adjoining site to the east (25.5 dwellings per hectare – 
15/03150/OUTN), and takes into account that buffers are required to be 
provided between the proposed dwellings and existing trees, and between the 
proposed dwelling and the railway line to the north (as required by policies 
COM6 and E2 of the RLP).  

8.8 On-site public open space would also being provided within the site.  The 
provision of this, together with the buffers set out above, would reduce the 
developable area of the site, and in doing so would maintain the existing 
spacious and rural/verdant character of the site and its surroundings.  The 
submitted indicative layout shows the public open space located centrally 
within the site, which in particular would allow more open views across the site 
through the site access from Walworth Road.  It is considered that the density 
of the proposed development is acceptable and appropriate in the context of 
the character and appearance of the site and its surroundings. The submitted 
indicative layout for the development shows a mix of detached and semi-
detached properties, as well as flats, together with a mix of bedroom numbers.  
The proposal is considered to accord with the provisions of policy COM1 in this 
respect.

8.9 There are a number of existing trees within the application site, although the 
proximity of many of these trees to existing public vantage points, and their 
size, limits their amenity value.  There are also mature trees along the 
boundaries of the site which do have a high landscape amenity value, 
contributing to the verdant and rural character of the site, and providing an 
extent of screening.  The proposals would see the removal of many of the 
small/poor quality trees, and the retention of those which are of a better quality 
and of a higher amenity value.  This is considered to be acceptable, subject to 
their protection during construction in accordance with the provisions set out 
within the submitted Arboricultural Impact Assessment.  

8.10 The supporting text to policy E2 sets out that on housing developments, 
buildings should be placed sufficiently far away from trees to allow adequate 
daylight and sunlight to reach the proposed properties, and that based on past 
experience, a distance of 15 metres should be provided between the dwelling 
and the outer edge of any mature canopies of trees.  An amended indicative 
layout has been provided which shows that this can generally be achieved at 
the site.  The exception to this is in relation to the proposed dwellings adjacent 
to the western boundary of the site, on the other side of which is a row of off 
site mature conifer trees.  The submitted Arboricultural Impact Assessment 

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 27



acknowledges a reduced distance between the proposed dwellings and these 
trees, but clarifies that they are in a poor condition and are beginning to 
windblow, and will need to be managed before the new dwellings are 
occupied.  The Council’s Tree Officer has agreed that these trees will need to 
be managed appropriately, and that agreement of this should be sought by 
way of condition.  This matter can also be comprehensively assessed at the 
Reserved Matters stage of the development.

8.11 The submitted indicative layout shows the provision of new planting within the 
site and on the boundaries, and this is encouraged.  Landscaping is a reserved 
matter, and therefore the specific details in respect of this are not being 
considered at this outline stage.  The future responsibility for the maintenance 
of the landscaping would need to be secured as a planning obligation through 
the S106 agreement that is currently being progressed with the applicant.

8.12 It is considered that the submitted indicative layout and scale parameters 
demonstrate that a development can be achieved that would integrate 
successfully with the existing character and appearance of the area, with 
height, scale and massing being similar to other existing properties in the 
vicinity.  

8.13 Highway network
Access
Policy T1 of the RLP seeks to ensure that proposed developments are 
connected with existing and proposed pedestrian, cycle and public transport 
links to key destinations and networks, and that its impact on users of the 
networks is minimised.  The development, in terms of layout and access, 
should also be safe, attractive, functional and accessible to all, and should not 
impact adversely on the function, safety or character of and accessibility to the 
highway network.  Provision should also be made to support and promote the 
use of sustainable transport.  Access is a matter for consideration under this 
outline planning application.

8.14 The proposed development would be served by one vehicular access from 
Walworth Road, which is an existing access.  Discussions are ongoing with 
regards to this, between the Council’s Highway Officer and the applicant, and 
further plans have been sought to demonstrate that the access would enable 
safe movement for all vehicles entering/exiting the site from/onto Walworth 
Road.  In particular, amendments have been sought to reduce the width of the 
access road, and subsequently increase the radii at the junction with Walworth 
Road.  This would ensure that large construction vehicles and refuse lorries, 
for example, can access/exit the site safely.  This will be reported on further in 
an update report to Committee.  It is also acknowledged that the plans 
submitted for the adjacent site to the east (15/03150/OUTN), which has three 
accesses onto Walworth Road (one vehicular and two 
pedestrian/cycle/emergency), show the internal road within that site extending 
up to the common boundary with this site, providing a link through to the 
internal road proposed at this site.  In the event that the proposals at the 
adjacent site are constructed, access would therefore also be available 
through this site from Walworth Road, the accesses onto which are considered 
to be safe and functional. 

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 28



8.15 In addition to the above, a footway would run along the vehicular access 
serving the site, providing a pedestrian link to Walworth Road, and to the 
residential development to the south of Walworth Road, which when completed 
will contain public open space (including playing fields/courts, parkland and 
allotments) and retail units.  Details of the provision of a crossing point on 
Walworth Road have been sought from the applicant.  The submitted indicative 
layout plan also shows that the internal road layout at the site would allow 
access into the adjacent site to the west.  This site, whilst not forming part of 
the application site, does also form part of the allocated new neighbourhood at 
Picket Piece (policy COM6 of the RLP), however part of this adjacent site is 
also highlighted on map E of the RLP (which identifies the extent of the Picket 
Piece new neighbourhood) as being an existing employment site.  

8.16 The submitted indicative layout shows that the proposed internal road at the 
application site would join the common boundary with the adjacent existing 
employment site, as opposed to the remaining vacant areas surrounding it that 
might form part of a proposal in the future for housing development.  Whilst 
there is nothing to suggest that the existing employment site would not form 
part of a future proposal for housing development, it cannot be assumed that 
this would be the case.  An alternative indicative layout has therefore been 
sought from the applicant to demonstrate that a link could be provided into the 
adjacent site at a point that would avoid conflicts with the existing employment 
site.

8.17 On the basis of the above, subject to further clarification with regards to 
visibility splays and the internal road layout, it is considered that the proposals 
would provide safe access and connections to existing and proposed transport 
networks for all users, and would therefore comply with policy T1 of the RLP.

8.18 Parking
The indicative layout submitted with this application shows that there is likely to 
be adequate space within the site to be able to provide a parking provision in 
accordance with the standards set out by policy T2 and Annex G of the 
TVBRLP and this can be secured by condition.  Also specific details of the 
parking provision would be provided with the Reserved Matters application(s).  

8.19 Mitigation
The proposed development is a travel generating development which would 
result in an additional demand on the existing transport network.  Policy 
COM15 of the RLP sets out that development will be permitted provided that 
appropriate investment has been secured either in the form of works and/or 
financial contributions to mitigate the impact on existing infrastructure.  The 
requirement for such contributions is discussed within the adopted 
Infrastructure and Developer Contribution SPD.  The Test Valley Access Plan 
SPD sets out schemes where improvements to the highway network are 
necessary, and where schemes would help meet sustainability objectives.  A 
S106 legal agreement can be used to secure the provision of these mitigation 
measures involving a financial contribution.   In considering the need for 
developer contributions towards mitigating for the impact of development on 
the highway network, due consideration has been given to the three tests as 
set out within the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Regulations 2010, 

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 29



namely that a planning obligation must be (a) necessary to make the 
development acceptable in planning terms; (b) directly related to the 
development; and (c) fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the 
development, and to Government guidance on planning obligations contained 
within the National Planning Practice Guidance.   

8.20 Confirmation is awaited from the Council’s Highway Officer with regards to 
which specific infrastructure projects within the Ward the proposed 
development would contribute towards as mitigation for the additional burden 
that it would place on the transport network.   Clarification will also be sought 
as to whether the specific projects meet the CIL Regulations 2010, and that the 
pooling limits have not been reached.  This clarification will be provided in an 
update paper.  A legal agreement has not been completed but is being 
progressed with the applicants to secure contributions towards mitigating the 
additional burden that would be placed on the transport network.  The 
application recommendation reflects this.

8.21 A Travel Plan was submitted as part of the application for the development to 
the south of Walworth Road (10/00242/OUTN), which included consideration 
of future development taking place to the north of Walworth Road, as is now 
proposed with this current application.  A Community Development Worker 
(CDW) for the Picket Piece area has been employed through the provisions of 
the previously approved application, whose role, among other things, is to act 
as the Travel Plan Co-ordinator for Picket Piece.  As the Travel Plan is relevant 
to the wider Picket Piece area, including the application site, it is considered 
reasonable and necessary to require that this proposal contributes towards 
supporting the work of the CDW in promoting sustainable travel habits through 
the wider development of Picket Piece.  It is considered that this provision 
meets the CIL Regulations 2010 set out above.  A S106 is being progressed 
by the applicant to secure this provision, and the recommendation reflects that 
the S106 Legal agreement has not yet been completed.

8.22 Water management
Policy E7 of the RLP seeks to ensure that development is acceptable in 
respect of flood risk (including from surface water), and water consumption. 
The application is supported by a Flood Risk Assessment, setting out details of 
the proposed surface water drainage strategy.  This is likely to consist of 
Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDs), including infiltration systems such as 
soakaways or above ground ponds/basins, and pervious 
pavements/hardstandings.  A condition is recommended requiring specific 
details of the surface water drainage strategy to be submitted prior to the 
commencement of the development.  The site is not defined as an area at risk 
of flooding (flood zone 1), and it is considered that such means of surface 
water disposal is acceptable, and will not give rise to additional flood risk 
elsewhere, or leave the development itself at risk of flooding.

8.23 Policy E7 of the RLP requires new homes to achieve a water consumption 
standard of no more than 110 litres per person per day in order to secure 
increased water efficiency.  A condition to this effect has been recommended.

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 30



8.24 Drainage
Southern Water have confirmed that they can provide foul sewage disposal to 
service the proposed development, as well as a water supply.  

8.25 Ecology
Policy E5 (Biodiversity) of the RLP requires development to conserve, and 
where possible restore and/or enhance biodiversity.  The application is 
supported by an Ecological Appraisal and Phase 2 Surveys Report. The site 
comprises a field of semi-improved grassland, with areas of scrub, hedgerows 
and mature trees.  The submitted ecological report identifies dormice, badgers, 
slow worm and birds being present at the site. 

8.26 As the proposed development would impact on protected species and their 
habitats, the proposals must be considered against the three derogation tests 
in the Habitats Regulations.  Policy E5 of the RLP also requires compliance 
with criteria which are consistent with these Regulations.  A Natural England 
licence will only be issued for the development where it is considered to meet 
the requirements of the Regulations, which consist of the following three tests;

1. It preserves public health or public safety or other imperative reasons of 
overriding public interest including those of a social or economic nature 
and beneficial consequences of primary importance for the 
environment; and 

2. There is no satisfactory alternative; and
3. The action authorised will not be detrimental to the maintenance of the 

population of the species concerned at a favourable conservation status 
in their natural range.

8.27 It is considered that the proposed development, in being an allocated site for 
residential development within the RLP, and which would contribute to the 
Borough’s housing requirements, would comply with the first test of the 
Regulations, and the first criteria of policy E5 of the RLP, in terms of the 
purpose/need for the development.

8.28 The second test of the Regulations, and the second criteria of policy E5 of the 
RLP, relates to there being no satisfactory alternative to that being proposed.  
The third test of the Regulations, and the third criteria of policy E5 of the RLP, 
requires consideration to be given to mitigation measures to be implemented to 
avoid the injury/killing of protected species, and to address the impacts on their 
habitats. The submitted ecological report sets out that the indicative layout 
shown on the plans has been designed to maintain the main badger sett in its 
current location, provide suitable replacement reptile habitat, whilst preserving 
the most dormice habitat and allowing creation of new species rich hedgerows 
for dormice.  The submitted ecological report also sets out mitigation and 
enhancement measures to be incorporated into the proposed development.   
On this basis, it is considered that the second and third tests of the 
Regulations, and the associated criteria of policy E5 of the TVBRLP, would be 
met.  Conditions/notes are recommended in respect of securing appropriate 
mitigation.

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 31



8.29 Archaeology
Policy E9 (Heritage) of the RLP sets out that the merits of a development 
affecting an undesignated heritage asset (such as non scheduled 
archaeological remains) will be balanced against the scale of the harm or loss, 
either directly or indirectly, to the significance of that heritage asset.

8.30 The application is supported by an Archaeological Assessment which has 
assessed the archaeological potential of the area, and concludes that there is 
a potential for archaeological remains to be encountered at the site. The 
archaeological remains are likely to be of local importance, and a condition is 
therefore recommended to secure further archaeological assessment and 
mitigation at the site. 

8.31 Affordable housing
Policy COM7 of the RLP sets out that on proposed housing sites consisting of 
a net gain of 15 or more dwellings, the Council will negotiate for up to 40% of 
dwellings to be affordable.  It is confirmed within the submitted Design and 
Access Statement that this level of affordable housing would be provided (12 
units if 30 dwellings overall are proposed), and this is to be secured through 
the provision of a S106 legal agreement which is currently being progressed 
with the applicant.  The specific details of which units will be affordable units 
can be agreed at the stage when detailed plans are available.

8.32 Public open space
Policy LHW1 of the RLP requires the provision of public open space where 
there is a net increase in population to ensure that development does not 
cause or exacerbate deficiencies in the provision or quality of recreational 
open space.  There is a deficiency within the St Mary’s Ward of Outdoor Sports 
Facilities, Parks and Gardens, and Provision for Children and Teenagers.  The 
supporting text to the policy indicates that the Council will seek open space 
provision, or contributions towards open space provision, from new housing 
developments.  If open space is not being provided on site, it should be 
provided off site, and a S106 Legal agreement can be used to secure this 
provision, which will involve a financial contribution in order to mitigate against 
the impact of the proposed development.  

8.33 The provision of parkland to the south of Ox Drove was included within the 
outline planning application for the housing development to the south of 
Walworth Road (10/00242/OUTN), and this provision would exceed the 
requirement generated by this current outline planning application.  No 
parkland provision, either on site or off site, is therefore sought from this 
development.  It is considered appropriate, however, to ensure that this 
application site has access to the approved parkland.  This would be possible 
using proposed and existing pedestrian and cycle routes through this 
application site, and through the housing development to the south of 
Walworth Road.  A children’s play area is proposed to be provided on site, 
thereby mitigating the deficit in Provision for Children and Teenagers within the 
Ward as a result of this development.   A condition is recommended requiring 
specific details of this to be provided.

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 32



8.34 No on site provision of Outdoor Sports Facilities is proposed in this instance. 
Mitigation for the impact of the proposed development on Outdoor Sports 
Facilities within the Ward can be provided through a financial contribution 
towards the enhancement of the pavilion facilities at Andover Cricket Club. 
The Public Open Space Audit (2012) identifies this mitigation scheme, and the 
Infrastructure and Developer Contributions SPD sets out how the contribution 
is calculated.  The mitigation accords with the CIL Regulations 2010, which are 
set out at paragraphs 8.19 and 8.20 of this report.  

8.35 A legal agreement is being progressed with the applicant to secure 
contributions towards mitigating the additional burden that would be placed on 
public open space, in lieu of none being provided on site, and subject to its 
completion, the proposals would comply with policy LHW1 of the RLP. The 
application recommendation reflects this.

8.36 Educational provision
Policy COM15 of the RLP sets out that development will be permitted provided 
that appropriate investment has been secured either in the form of works 
and/or financial contributions to mitigate the impact on existing infrastructure, 
including schools.  The proposal would generate increased demand for school 
places, and currently there are deficits in primary school capacity within the 
area serving the development in this respect.  Hampshire County Council as 
Local Education Authority has confirmed that mitigation for the additional 
burden that the proposed development would place on the existing educational 
provision can be provided by a S106 legal agreement securing financial 
contributions towards additional educational provision.  The contribution would 
be used towards the expansion of the proposed new primary school at East 
Anton, which is within close proximity of the application site.  The mitigation 
accords with the CIL Regulations 2010, which are set out at paragraphs 8.19 
and 8.20 of this report.  

8.37 A legal agreement is being progressed with the applicant to secure 
contributions towards mitigating the additional burden that would be placed on 
the existing educational provision, and subject to its completion, the proposals 
would comply with policy COM15 of the RLP in this respect. The application 
recommendation reflects this.

8.38 Skills and training
Policy ST1 (skills and training) of the RLP requires, where a development has 
a significant impact on the labour market, contributions towards the 
enhancement of skills training and the provision of apprenticeships within the 
local community.   In this instance, an Employment and Skills Plan is 
requested in accordance with the Construction Industry Training Board (CITB) 
Client Based Approach, in order to identify and provide skills needs and 
training delivery.  A S106 is being progressed by the applicant to secure this 
provision, and the recommendation reflects that the S106 Legal agreement 
has not yet been completed.

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 33



8.39 Amenity
Policy LHW4 of the RLP sets out that development will be permitted provided 
that; it provides for the privacy and amenity of its occupants and those of 
neighbouring properties; in the case of residential developments it provides for 
private open space in the form of gardens or communal open space which are 
appropriate for the needs of residents; and it does not reduce the levels of 
daylight and sunlight reaching new and existing properties or private open 
space to below acceptable levels. Policy E8 of the RLP sets out that 
development will be permitted provided that it does not result in pollution which 
would cause unacceptable risks to human health, the natural environment or 
general amenity, and that development that would or could potentially generate 
pollution will only be permitted if it can be demonstrated that there would not 
be any adverse impact on human health, the natural environment or general 
amenity.  For the purposes of this policy, pollution includes noise and vibration, 
light and air.  

8.40 The application is in Outline form only with all matters, other than access, 
reserved for later approval.  An indicative layout has been provided as part of 
this application showing siting and juxtaposition with neighbouring properties 
including those existing dwellings along Walworth Road to the south.  This 
layout indicates that residential development can be achieved on this site 
without resulting in an adverse impact on the amenity of neighbouring 
properties by virtue of overlooking, or loss of light and shadow. The Local 
Planning Authority retains the ability to influence and determine the 
acceptability of the relationships between existing and proposed development 
via any future Reserved Matters application(s).

8.41 In addition to the above, further key considerations with this application relate 
to the impact of noise and vibration on future occupiers of the proposed 
residential development.  This is as a result of the proximity of the proposed 
development with the railway line, which runs along the northern boundary of 
the site, and there is an established commercial/industrial site to the west.  It is 
also noted that the main vehicular access serving the site would run in 
between two existing dwellings fronting onto Walworth Road.  The application 
is supported by an Acoustic Impact Assessment, which provides details of 
existing noise and vibration levels at the site.  The report also makes 
recommendations with regards to noise mitigation measures that could be 
adopted, including in respect of the treatment of facades overlooking noise 
sources, ventilation within dwellings, and boundary treatments (i.e. acoustic 
fencing along the proposed access road).  Specific details of any mitigation 
measures to be incorporated into the proposed development have not been 
provided with this outline planning application, however the LPA retains the 
ability to influence and determine the acceptability of any mitigation 
required/proposed via future submission of details.  Conditions are also 
recommended in respect of this.

8.42 Other matters
The loss of (or harm to) a private view is not a material planning consideration.

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 34



9.0 CONCLUSION
9.1 Subject to conditions, the proposed development is considered to be 

acceptable in respect of the principle of development (as the site is allocated 
for residential development in the RLP), the character and appearance, 
existing trees and landscaping, the highway network (in terms of parking), 
ecology, water management/drainage, archaeology, and amenity.  The 
proposal would thereby comply with the relevant policies of the RLP in these 
respects.  

9.2 A legal agreement is currently progressing in relation to off-site highway 
infrastructure/delivery of travel plan, affordable housing provision, off-site 
public open space provision, skills and training, and education provision, and 
the recommendation reflects the need for this to be completed.  In addition the 
agreement is required in relation to the adoption and/or management of on-site 
communal land.  Subject to the completion of the legal agreement, the 
proposed development would be in accordance with the relevant policies of the 
Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan 2016 in these respects.  

9.3 Further information and clarification is awaited, and discussion ongoing, in 
respect of the access to the site.  An update on the position of this matter will 
be included in a committee update paper.  If the issue is not satisfactorily 
resolved then the recommendation below could be altered accordingly.

10.0 RECOMMENDATION
Delegate to the Head of Planning and Building that subject to the 
completion of a S106 legal agreement to secure financial contributions 
for transport/highways, public open space (including its maintenance), 
educational provisions, landscape maintenance and management 
arrangements, affordable housing and skills/training provision then 
OUTLINE PERMISSION subject to:
1. Applications for the approval of all the reserved matters referred to 

herein shall be made within a period of three years from the date of 
this permission. The development to which the permission relates 
shall be begun not later than which ever is the later of the following 
dates:

i) five years from the date of this permission: or
ii) two years from the final approval of the said reserved matters, 

or, in the case of approval on different dates, the final 
approval of the last such matter to be approved.

Reason:  To comply with the provision of S.92 of the Town & 
Country Planning Act 1990.

2. Details of the appearance, landscaping, layout and scale 
(hereinafter called "the reserved matters") shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before any 
development begins and the development shall be carried out as 
approved.
Reason:  To comply with Article 4 of the Town and Country 
Planning (General Development Procedure) Order 1995 (or any 
order revoking and re-enacting that Order).

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 35



3. The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in 
complete accordance with the details shown on the submitted 
plans, numbers; 140126-01
Reason:  For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning.

4. No construction above foundation level shall take place on the 
dwellings until samples and details of the materials to be used in 
the construction of all external surfaces hereby permitted have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details.
Reason:  To ensure the development has a satisfactory external 
appearance in the interest of visual amenities in accordance with 
Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan 2016 policy E1.

5. No development shall take place (including site clearance within the 
application site/area indicated red) until the applicant or their agents 
or successors in title has secured the implementation of a 
programme of archaeological assessment in accordance with a 
Written Scheme of Investigation which has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
assessment should initially take the form of a geophysical survey of 
the site, followed by trial trenching targeted on potential 
archaeological features identified by the geophysics and also within 
any ‘blank’ areas in between.  The Written Scheme of Investigation 
shall also include a programme of archaeological mitigation of 
impact, based on the results of the trial trenching.
Reason:  Archaeological work is required prior to construction of 
the development in order to assess the extent, nature and date of 
any archaeological deposits that might be present, to assess the 
impact of the development upon these heritage assets, to mitigate 
the effect of the works associated with the development upon any 
heritage assets, and to ensure that information regarding these 
heritage assets is preserved by record for future generations in 
accordance with Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan 2016 
policy E9.

6. Following completion of the archaeological fieldwork a report shall 
be produced in accordance with an approved programme including, 
where appropriate, post-excavation assessment, specialist analysis 
and reports, publication and public engagement.  The report shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.
Reason:  To contribute to our knowledge and understanding of our 
past by ensuring that opportunities are taken to capture evidence 
from the historic environment and to make this publicly available in 
accordance with Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan 2016 
policy E9.

7. All landscape works forming part of the approved reserved matters 
shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details and 
with an implementation programme that shall have first been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority 
prior to any development above foundation level taking place.

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 36



Reason:  To provide a satisfactory landscape setting to the 
development having regard to policy E2 of the Test Valley Borough 
Revised Local Plan 2016.

8. A landscape management plan, including long-term design 
objectives and arrangements for its implementation, including 
management responsibilities and maintenance schedules (for a five 
year period), for all landscape areas other than privately owned, 
domestic gardens, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority prior to the first occupation of the 
development hereby permitted. The landscape management plan 
shall be carried out as approved.
Reason:  To ensure appropriate maintenance of all non-domestic 
landscaped areas in the development having regard to policy E2 of 
the Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan 2016.

9. The development hereby approved shall be designed and built to 
meet Regulation 36 2 (b) requirement of 110 litres/person/day water 
efficiency set out in part G2 of Building Regulations 2015.
Reason:  In the interests of improving water usage efficiency in 
accordance with policy E7 of the Test Valley Borough Revised Local 
Plan 2016.

10. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in 
accordance with the provisions set out within the submitted 
Arboricultural Impact Assessment (SJ Stephens Associates, 26th 
May 2016).
Reason:  To ensure the enhancement of the development by the 
retention of existing trees and natural features during the 
construction phase in accordance with Test Valley Borough Revised 
Local Plan policy E2.

11. Tree protective measures installed (in accordance with the tree 
protection condition above) shall be maintained and retained for the 
full duration of works or until such time as agreed in writing with the 
Local Planning Authority Arboricultural Officer.  No activities, nor 
material storage, nor placement of site huts or other equipment 
what-so-ever shall take place within the barrier without the prior 
written agreement of the Local Planning Authority. 
Reason:  To ensure the avoidance of damage to existing trees and 
natural features during the construction phase in accordance with 
Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan policy E2.

12. All service routes, drain runs, soakaways or excavations in 
connection with the same shall remain wholly outside the tree 
protective barrier without the prior written agreement of the Local 
Planning Authority. 
Reason:  To ensure the avoidance of damage to existing trees and 
natural features during the construction phase in accordance with 
Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan policy E2.

13. Details of the layout and specification for the children’s play area 
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning 
authority prior to its installation. The development shall be carried 
out in accordance with the approved details.

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 37



Reason:  To ensure its layout and equipping is of a high standard in 
accordance with Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan 2016 
policy LHW1.

14. No work relating to the construction of the development hereby 
approved, including works of demolition or preparation prior to 
operations, shall take place before the hours of 0730 nor after 1800 
on Mondays to Fridays; before the hours of 0800 nor after 1300 on 
Saturdays; and at all on Sundays and public holidays. 
Reason:  In the interests of amenity in accordance with Test Valley 
Borough Revised Local Plan 2016 policy E8.

15. No development shall take place until a method of demolition and 
construction has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. Development shall be carried out in 
accordance with the approved scheme unless otherwise agreed in 
writing by the local planning authority. No piling or any other 
foundation designs using penetrative methods shall take place. The 
scheme should include dust control measures.
Reason:  In the interests of amenity in accordance with Test Valley 
Borough Revised Local Plan 2016 policy E8.

16. No development shall take place (other than any approved 
demolition and site clearance works) until an assessment of the 
nature and extent of any contamination and a scheme for 
remediating the contamination has been submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The assessment must be 
undertaken by a competent person, and shall assess the presence 
of any contamination on the site, whether or not it originates on the 
site, in accordance with the recommendations set out in the 
submitted Geoprobe Environmental Limited report (Ref: GPE 
15/202). In the event that contamination is found, or is considered 
likely, a scheme containing remediation proposals designed to bring 
the site to a condition suitable for the intended use shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The site shall not be brought in to use until a verification 
report, for the purpose of certifying adherence to the approved 
remediation scheme, has been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason:  To ensure a safe living/working environment in 
accordance with Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan 2016 
policy E8.

17. In the event that contamination that was not previously identified is 
found at any time during demolition and/or construction works, the 
presence of such contamination shall be reported in writing to the 
Local Planning Authority without delay and development shall be 
suspended on the affected part of the site until a remediation 
scheme for dealing with that contamination has been approved by 
the Local Planning Authority. The approved remediation scheme 
shall be implemented and, if requested, a verification report, for the 
purpose of certifying adherence to the approved remediation 
scheme, shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority prior to 
the site being brought in to use.

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 38



Reason:  To ensure a safe living/working environment in 
accordance with Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan 2016 
policy E8.

18. The development hereby permitted shall not commence until a 
surface water drainage scheme for the site, based on sustainable 
drainage principles and an assessment of the hydrological and 
hydro geological context of the development, has been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  Details 
shall include the responsibilities of each party for the 
implementation of the scheme; a timetable for its implementation; a 
management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the 
development; arrangements for adoption by any public authority or 
statutory undertaker and any other arrangements to secure the 
operation of the scheme throughout its lifetime. The scheme shall 
subsequently be implemented in accordance with the approved 
details before the development is occupied.
Reason:  Details are required prior to the commencement of 
development to ensure the prevention of an increased risk of 
flooding and to ensure the improvement and protection of water 
quality, habitat and amenity in accordance with policy E7 of the Test 
Valley Borough Revised Local Plan 2016.

19. No dwelling hereby permitted shall be occupied until the crossing 
points on Walworth Road as shown on drawing XXXXXX have been 
implemented to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority.
Reason:  This is required prior to the commencement of 
development in the interests of highway safety in accordance with 
Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan 2016 policy T1.

20. The development hereby permitted shall not commence until details 
of the roads, footways, footpaths and cycleways to be offered to 
HCC for adoption have been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority.  The development shall be carried 
out in accordance with the approved details.  Details shall include; 

a) the width, alignment, gradient and surface materials including 
all relevant horizontal and longitudinal cross sections 
showing existing and proposed levels  

b) the type of street lighting including calculations, contour 
illumination plans and means to reduce light pollution  c) the 
method of surface water drainage including local sustainable 
disposal.  

Reason:  Details are required prior to commencement to ensure that 
the roads, footway, footpath, cycleway, street lighting and surface 
water drainage are constructed and maintained to an appropriate 
standard to serve the development in accordance with Test Valley 
Borough Revised Local Plan 2016 policy T1.

21. Prior to the commencement of development full details of the layout 
for the parking and manoeuvring onsite of contractor's and delivery 
vehicles during the construction period shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved 
scheme shall be implemented prior to the commencement of 
development and retained for the duration of the construction 
period.

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 39



Reason:  Details are required prior to the commencement of the 
development to ensure that construction of the proposed 
development will be in the interest of highway safety in accordance 
with Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan 2016 policy T1.

22. The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until space 
has been laid out and provided for the parking and manoeuvring of 
vehicles to enable them to enter and leave the site in a forward gear 
in accordance with the approved plan and this space shall thereafter 
be reserved for such purposes at all times.
Reason:  In the interests of highway safety in accordance with Test 
Valley Borough Revised Local Plan 2016 policies T1 and T2.

23. At least the first 4.5 metres of the access track measured from the 
nearside edge of carriageway of the adjacent highway shall be 
surfaced in a non-migratory material prior to the use of the access 
commencing and retained as such at all times.
Reason:  In the interest of highway safety in accordance with Test 
Valley Borough Revised Local Plan 2016 policy T1.

24. No development shall take place until an updated biodiversity 
mitigation strategy has been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. Development shall proceed in 
accordance with the approved details, with all compensatory habitat 
and biodiversity enhancement features being permanently retained. 
Reason:  Details are required prior to commencement to avoid 
impacts to protected species, to maintain the favourable 
conservation status of dormice, and to conserve and enhance 
biodiversity in accordance with Test Valley Borough Revised Local 
Plan 2016 policy E5.

25. No deliveries of materials or removal of spoil during the 
construction of the development shall take place before 0915 or 
after 1500 on Mondays to Fridays, or before 0800 or after 1300 hours 
on Saturdays. There shall be no deliveries of materials or removal of 
spoil during the construction of the development on Sundays and 
public holidays. 
Reason:  In the interests of amenity in accordance with Test Valley 
Borough Revised Local Plan 2016 policy E8.

Notes to applicant:
1. In reaching this decision Test Valley Borough Council (TVBC) has 

had regard to paragraphs 186 and 187 of the National Planning 
Policy Framework and takes a positive and proactive approach to 
development proposals focused on solutions. TVBC work with 
applicants and their agents in a positive and proactive manner 
offering a pre-application advice service and updating 
applicants/agents of issues that may arise in dealing with the 
application and where possible suggesting solutions.

2. Attention is drawn to the requirements of the Agreement dated 
XXXXXX  under Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990 which affects this development.

3. A formal application for connection to the public sewage system 
and the water supply is required in order to service this 
development.  Please contact Southern Water, Sparrowgrove House, 
Sparrowgrove, Otterbourne, Hampshire, SO21 2SW (Tel: 0330 303 
0119 or www.southernwater.co.uk).

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 40

http://www.southernwater.co.uk/


4. Permission is required under the Highways Act 1980 to 
construct/alter/close a vehicular access. Please contact the Head of 
Highways, Hampshire County Council, Jacobs Gutter Lane 
Hounsdown, Totton, Southampton, SO40 9TQ. (0300 555 1388) or 
highways-transportwest@hants.gov.uk at least 6 weeks prior to 
work commencing.

5. Birds nests, when occupied or being built, receive legal protection 
under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended). It is 
highly advisable to undertake clearance of potential bird nesting 
habitat (such as hedges, scrub, trees, suitable outbuildings etc.) 
outside the bird nesting season, which is generally seen as 
extending from March to the end of August, although may extend 
longer depending on local conditions. If there is absolutely no 
alternative to doing the work in during this period then a thorough, 
careful and quiet examination of the affected area must be carried 
out before clearance starts. If occupied nests are present then work 
must stop in that area, a suitable (approximately 5m) stand-off 
maintained, and clearance can only recommence once the nest 
becomes unoccupied of its own accord.

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 41



APPENDIX B

Officer Update Report to Northern Area Planning Committee on 4 August 2016
___________________________________________________________________

APPLICATION NO. 16/00544/OUTN
SITE Land north of Walworth Road, Picket Piece, Andover, 

SP11 6LY,  ANDOVER TOWN (ST MARYS) 
COMMITTEE DATE 4 August 2016
ITEM NO. 7.
PAGE NO. 11-34.
AMENDMENTS Amended plans and information received;

 02.08.2016
 03.08.2016

1.0 AMENDMENTS
1.1 Revised indicative layout plans have been submitted (and included in this 

update paper), showing the provision of two possible road links through the 
application site and up to the common boundary with the adjacent site to the 
west.

1.2 Amended plans have also been submitted in respect of the proposed access, 
including showing vehicle tracking diagrams and the provision of pedestrian 
crossing points.  Conditions 3 and 19 of the main agenda report have been 
amended to reflect the submission of these plans, as set out below.

1.3 An updated ‘Ecological Appraisal and Phase 2 Surveys Report’ has been 
submitted to reflect the amendments made at paragraph 1.1 above.   This 
does not have any implications on the assessment made at paragraphs 8.25-
8.28 of the main agenda report.  Condition 24 of the main agenda report has 
however been amended, as set out below.

2.0 CONSULTATIONS
2.1 Highways; No objection, subject to conditions and financial contribution.

3.0 PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
3.1 Character and appearance

At paragraph 6.1 of the main agenda report, the Town Council raised concerns 
in respect of the acoustic fencing to be installed at the entrance to the site, 
commenting that it would feel very enclosed.  There is currently already closed 
board fencing at the entrance to the site, along the side boundaries of the two 
properties either side of the access. In general, the provision of fencing along 
property boundaries is not an incongruous feature along Walworth Road.  
Notwithstanding this, the Local Planning Authority retains the ability to the 
influence the specification (including size, design etc) of the proposed acoustic 
fencing via any future Reserved Matters application(s).

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 42



3.2 Highway network
It is set out at paragraph 8.14 of the main agenda report that discussions have 
been ongoing between the applicant and the Council’s Highway Officer in 
respect of the proposed vehicular access to the site.  Hampshire County 
Council as Highway Authority has also been involved in the discussions.  It has 
been confirmed that the submitted details in respect of the proposed access, 
including its width/radii etc, and the visibility to be provided, are acceptable.  
Amended plans have also been submitted to show that crossing points would 
be provided on Walworth Road for pedestrian/cycle access from the site to the 
southern side (set out at para. 8.15 of the main agenda report).  Amended 
plans submitted also demonstrate that an alternative route through the 
application site can be provided to allow access into the adjacent site to the 
west, avoiding an existing employment site (set out at para. 8.15 and 8.16 of 
the main agenda report).   It is considered that the proposals would provide 
safe and functional access to the highway for all users, and thereby accord 
with policy T1 of the Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan 2016 (RLP). 

3.3 Mitigation 
CIL
As of the 1 August 2016, the Council implemented the Community 
Infrastructure Levy, which raises funds for providing new infrastructure by 
levying a charge on new development.  Development within the allocated new 
neighbourhood at Picket Piece (as defined by policy COM6 and map E of the 
RLP) is nil rated for CIL, on the basis that more site specific infrastructure is 
likely to be necessary to make the development acceptable, and that this 
would not represent general infrastructure, as identified on the CIL Regulation 
123 List, that would otherwise be provided by other CIL liable development 
within the Borough.

3.4 Highways
Further to paragraph 8.20 of the main agenda report, it has been clarified that 
mitigation for the additional burden that the proposed development would place 
on the transport network can be provided through; (i) the provision of infilling 
the gaps in the local footway network along Walworth Road and improving the 
existing footway to cycleway standard, and; (ii) the provision of an island in 
London Road to enable future residents to safely access facilities at Picket 
Twenty by transport means other than a car.  These improvements would 
enable better connectivity between the application site and the development to 
the south of Walworth Road, the remainder of the allocated new 
neighbourhood at Picket Piece (as defined by policy COM6 and map E of the 
RLP), and facilities within the wider surrounding area. These site specific 
improvements would not be funded through CIL.  The improvements would 
accord with the CIL Regulations 2010, as set out at paragraphs 8.19 and 8.20 
of the main agenda report, and policies COM6, COM15 and T1 of the RLP. 
The recommendation reflects that the S106 Legal agreement has not yet been 
completed.

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 43



3.5 Public Open Space
It is set out at paragraph 8.34 that mitigation for the proposed development on 
Outdoor Sports Facilities within the Ward can be provided through a financial 
contribution towards the enhancement of the pavilion facilities at Andover 
Cricket Club.  Following further discussions with the Planning Policy Officer, it 
is noted that this enhancement project does not lie within the allocated new 
neighbourhood at Picket Piece and therefore constitutes general infrastructure 
as identified on the CIL Regulation 123 List, and is intended to be funded 
through CIL receipts.  Mitigation for the proposed development on Outdoor 
Sports Facilities can however be provided through a financial contribution 
towards improvements to the approved sports pitches and associated facilities 
within the development to the south of Walworth Road, which would be well 
connected to the application site, and would benefit the wider Picket Piece 
community.  These site specific improvements would not be funded through 
CIL.  The improvements would thereby accord with the CIL Regulations 2010, 
as set out at paragraphs 8.19 and 8.20 of the main agenda report, and policies 
COM6 and LHW1 of the RLP. The recommendation reflects that the S106 
Legal agreement has not yet been completed.

4.0 RECOMMENDATION
Delegate to the Head of Planning and Building that subject to the 
completion of a S106 legal agreement to secure financial contributions 
for transport/highways, public open space (including its maintenance), 
educational provisions, landscape maintenance and management 
arrangements, affordable housing and skills/training provision then 
OUTLINE PERMISSION subject to conditions 1-2, 4-18, 20-23 and 25, and 
notes 1-5 of the main agenda report recommendation, and amended 
conditions 3, 19 and 24 below:
3. The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except 

in complete accordance with the details shown on the submitted 
plans, numbers; 140126-01; 4797.002 Rev. B
Reason:  For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning.

19. No dwelling hereby permitted shall be occupied until the crossing 
points on Walworth Road as shown on drawing 4797.002 Rev B 
have been implemented to the satisfaction of the Local Planning 
Authority.
Reason:  This is required prior to the commencement of 
development in the interests of highway safety in accordance with 
Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan 2016 policy T1.

24. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in 
accordance with the mitigation measures set out in Section 5.0 
‘Conclusions and Recommendations’ of the submitted Ecological 
Appraisal and Phase 2 Surveys Report (Lindsey Carrington 
Ecological Services Ltd., update August 2016), unless varied by any 
relevant European Protected Species (EPS) license issued by 
Natural England.  All mitigation and compensation habitats shall be 
permanently maintained and retained in accordance with the 
approved details.  
Reason:  To avoid impacts to protected species, to maintain the 
favourable conservation status of dormice, and to conserve and 
enhance biodiversity in accordance with Test Valley Borough 
Revised Local Plan 2016 policy E5.

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 44



Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 45



Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 46



��� ��� ���� �	
� �� �  � �� ����� 	�� ��� 	 �� � ������
������ ����   !"#$%&' �(() (*

�   ') +�,) "( !$- .�/0���/� 
� 12 	�
� 	1	 3 �� � �	�
Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 47



Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 48



Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 49



Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 50



APPLICATION NO. 18/01615/FULLN
APPLICATION TYPE FULL APPLICATION - NORTH
REGISTERED 22.06.2018
APPLICANT Mr Arthur Tizard
SITE Plot 35, South Way, Walworth Business Park, SP10 

5LH, ANDOVER TOWN (ST MARYS) 
PROPOSAL Demolition of existing industrial building and erection 

of two industrial buildings, for B2 or B8 use, access 
from Walworth Road, and landscaping works.

AMENDMENTS Amended/additional plans and information received:
 01.08.2018
 05.09.2018
 19.09.2018
 03.10.2018

CASE OFFICER Miss Emma Jones

Background paper (Local Government Act 1972 Section 100D)

1.0 INTRODUCTION 
1.1 The application is presented to Northern Area Planning Committee because it 

is submitted by or on behalf of the Council, or any company in which the 
Council holds and interest, for its own development which is not minor.

2.0 SITE LOCATION AND DESCRIPTION
2.1 The application site is located within the established Walworth Business Park, 

within the settlement of Andover.  The proposal relates to the replacement of 
the existing commercial building and associated parking areas at the site with 
two industrial/warehouse buildings, together with the provision of a new 
vehicular access onto Walworth Road.  The site and the existing building are 
currently unoccupied, and access is restricted by the presence of hoardings on 
the site boundaries.  The site is relatively flat, and has been cleared of trees. 

3.0 PROPOSAL
3.1 Demolition of existing industrial building and erection of two industrial 

buildings, for B2 or B8 use, access from Walworth Road, and landscaping 
works.

3.2 The proposed development consists of the provision of two commercial units 
(referred to as 35A and 35B on the submitted plans) to replace the one existing 
building at the site, which would be demolished.  The occupiers of the 
proposed units are unknown at this time, and the new buildings would have the 
flexibility of having either a class B2 use (general industrial) or a class B8 use 
(storage or distribution), both with ancillary office space at the fronts of the 
buildings over two floors.  The proposed site layout plans reflect the different 
use class scenarios for the buildings in respect of car/HGV parking and 
manoeuvring provision.

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 51



3.3 Proposed unit 35A would have an overall floor space (inclusive of the ancillary 
office space) of approximately 2562 square metres, with the building having a 
width of approx. 42m, a length of approx. 53m, an eaves height of approx. 
11.5m, and a ridge height of approx. 14m.  Proposed unit 35B would have a 
floor space of approx. 3155 square metres (inclusive of the ancillary office 
space), with the building having a width of approximately 45m, a length of 
approx. 61m, an eaves height of approx. 11.5m, and a ridge height of approx. 
14m.  The materials to be used in the construction of the proposed buildings 
would be silver, grey and blue coloured metal cladding.

3.4 The application is accompanied by plans of the proposals, together with the 
following technical reports;

 Transport Assessment
 Travel Plan
 Preliminary Environmental Risk Assessment
 Flood Risk Assessment
 Soft landscape works maintenance and management proposals 

3.5 Amended/additional plans and information have been submitted during the 
course of the application, consisting of the following;

 Revised transport assessment/travel plan;
 Revised landscaping proposals;
 Amendments to accesses, including additional footway/pedestrian 

crossing provision;
 Clarification in respect of surface water drainage.

4.0 HISTORY
4.1 15/00616/ADVN; Advertising hoardings on 3 elevations – Consent – 

22.05.2015.

4.2 13/00220/FULLN; Erection of painted timber hoardings – Temporary 
permission – 20.03.2013. 

4.3 13/00112/DEMN; Demolition of warehouse with office accommodation, small 
garage and removal of car park – Prior approval not required.

4.4 11/02822/ADVN; Display of site marketing board – Consent - 13.02.2012.

4.5 08/01956/FULLN; External alterations which include remodelling and 
demolition of ancillary office space to provide 9 separate warehouse units with 
ancillary trade counters – Permission - 12.12.2008.

4.6 07/01094/OUTN; Outline - Erection of two buildings for the sale and display of 
motor vehicles, together with two buildings for the provision of a trade counter 
for the storage and sales of goods primarily to the trade and/or B8 uses with 
ancillary showrooms and office space with associated access and parking – 
Outline planning permission - 10.07.2007.

5.0 CONSULTATIONS
5.1 Landscape; No objection subject to conditions.

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 52



5.2 Trees; Comments as follows;
 Existing tree cover has been removed from site – this added to and 

formed integral component of overall estate structural landscaping;
 Proposed development, both options, include provision for new tree 

planting.  This must be secured.  To that end it would be appropriate to 
ensure service, drainage, exterior lighting and CCTV(if to be used)  
details are obtained as overlays with the proposed landscape plans to 
ensure all potential conflicts have been considered and designed out of 
the scheme;

 Proposed tree in greenspace to west of central northern access, 
specified as a Bird Cherry.  Appears to be space here to plant a 
potentially larger and longer lived species (Beech / Plane / Walnut / 
Tulip Tree) which would be worthy of consideration in preference to a 
smaller potentially shorter lived tree.

(Case Officer note:  Amended plans have been submitted showing the Bird 
Cherry to be replaced by a Beech.  The Tree Officer has confirmed that this 
has adequately addressed their comments.)

5.3 Highways (TVBC); Objection raising;
 The applicant has not provided the appropriate number of parking 

spaces required in terms of Policy T2 of the BLP. The proposal is for 
Unit 35A comprising of 350 sqm of B1 office space and 2212 sqm of 
mixed B2/B8 industrial and storage space. Unit 35B would comprise of 
380 sqm of B1 office space and 2775 sqm of mixed B2/B8 industrial and 
storage space. We need to know the exact size of the B2 industrial area 
and B8 storage area in each unit in order to determine the appropriate 
number of parking spaces for each unit if it is going to be mixed use;

 Access, visibility and internal manoeuvring spaces would be adequate 
with conditions;

 There is a requirement in Policy T2 of the BLP that 5% of the total 
number of parking spaces would be reserved for blue badge holders 
only;

 Cycle parking must be secure, enclosed and with adequate shelter.

(Case officer note: HCC as Highway Authority has confirmed that as the office 
elements are proposed to be ancillary to the B2/B8 uses, as opposed to being 
in a separate B1 office use, then the proposed parking provision is 
acceptable).  

5.4 Estates; Skills and training plan required.

5.5 Environmental Protection; No objection subject to conditions/notes in 
respect of external plant, contaminated land, and hours of construction.

5.6 Refuse/Recycling; No response.

5.7 HCC Highways; No objection subject to conditions and mitigation to be 
secured through a S106 legal agreement.

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 53



5.8 HCC Lead Local Flood Authority; The general principles for the surface 
water drainage proposals are acceptable; we would recommend that further 
information on the proposals be submitted as part of a more detailed design 
phase – condition recommended.

5.9 HCC Ecology; No objection subject to informative note in relation to bats.

6.0 REPRESENTATIONS Expired 30.07.2018
6.1 Andover Town Council; No objection.

7.0 POLICY
7.1 Government Policy/Guidance

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)
National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)

7.2 Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016)(RLP)
SD1 – Presumption in favour of sustainable development
COM2 – Settlement hierarchy
COM15 – Infrastructure
LE10 – Retention of employment land and strategic employment sites
E1 – High quality development in the Borough
E2 – Protect, conserve and enhance the landscape character of the Borough
E5 – Biodiversity
E7 – Water management
E8 – Pollution
LHW4 – Amenity
T1 – Managing movement
T2 – Parking standard
ST1 – Skills and training

7.3 Supplementary Planning Documents (SPD)
Infrastructure and Developer Contributions
Andover Town Access Plan

8.0 PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
8.1 The main planning considerations are:

 The principle of development
 Character and appearance
 Highway network
 Biodiversity
 Archaeology
 Water management
 Pollution and amenity
 Skills and training

8.2 The principle of development
The application site lies within the established Walworth Business Park within 
the settlement of Andover.  Policy COM2 of the RLP allows in principle for 
development and redevelopment within settlement boundaries, subject to 
being appropriate to other policies of the RLP (discussed further below).

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 54



8.3 Policy LE10 of the RLP specifically seeks to retain existing employment land 
within the Borough, including within identified strategic employment sites such 
as Walworth Business Park.  The proposal would comply with this in providing 
two industrial/warehouse buildings for employment purposes (B2/B8 use 
classes with associated office space) as replacements for the existing building 
at the site, which also has an employment use.

8.4 Character and appearance
Policies E1 and E2 of the RLP seek to protect the landscape of the Borough 
through the provision of high quality development that integrates with and 
respects/complements the character of the area, and through the 
retention/provision of appropriate landscaping and landscape features.

8.5 The site lies within the established Walworth Business Park, which contains a 
variety of industrial/commercial buildings of varying scales and designs.  The 
application site is surrounded on all sides by built form with a 
commercial/industrial character and appearance.  The site is situated on the 
lower part of the Walworth Business Park, with the land to the south, and the 
buildings upon it, rising away.  Walworth Business Park has a somewhat leafy 
nature given its context, with the Walworth Road frontage in particular being 
relatively verdant with deep grass verges and trees either side of the highway. 

8.6 The scale, design and appearance (including external materials) of the 
proposed buildings would be appropriate in the context of the site and its 
surroundings, particularly taking into consideration more recently constructed 
existing buildings in the vicinity.  Internally, there would be office spaces 
located to the front parts of the buildings, including at first floor level, which 
would result in the requirement for a substantial number of windows/glazing 
within the north west elevations of the buildings, fronting Walworth Road.  The 
resultant appearance of these elevations would be functional and uniform, but 
this would be in keeping with the setting and surroundings, in that other 
commercial/industrial buildings in the vicinity have office spaces fronting 
Walworth Road which are served by varying amounts of glazing/windows.  The 
proposals show the provision of a number of new trees along the northern and 
western boundaries of the site, which would maintain the existing landscape 
character that runs through the Business Park.  Grass verges and shrub 
planting around the perimeter of the site, as a continuation of those on the 
adjacent sites, would also be provided.  

8.7 Overall it is considered that the proposed development would integrate, 
respect and complement the character of the area, and would provide 
sufficient opportunities for new landscaping and landscape features to enable 
the proposed development to integrate into the landscape character of the 
area.  The proposed development would comply with policies E1 and E2 of the 
RLP.  

8.8 Highway network
Policy T1 of the RLP seeks to ensure that proposed developments are 
connected with existing and proposed pedestrian, cycle and public transport 
links to key destinations and networks, and that its impact on users of the 

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 55



networks is minimised.  The development, in terms of layout and access, 
should also be safe, attractive, functional and accessible to all, and should not 
impact adversely on the function, safety or character of and accessibility to the 
highway network.  Provision should also be made to support and promote the 
use of sustainable transport.  Policy T2 sets out that development will be 
required to provide parking in accordance with the plan standards. Annex G 
sets out the minimum residential car and cycle parking standards. 

8.9 RLP policy COM15 sets out that development will be permitted provided that 
the appropriate investment has been secured either in the form of works and/or 
financial contributions to mitigate the impact on existing infrastructure.  The 
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) regulations require any financial 
contributions and obligations to be; necessary to make the development 
acceptable in planning terms; directly related to the development; and fairly 
and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development.

8.10 Access
The proposed buildings would be accessed from Walworth Road (new access) 
and South Way (improved former access).  The proposed accesses are 
considered to be acceptable, providing safe and functional access to the wider 
highway network.   

8.11 Parking
Two layout plans have been submitted as part of the application to show the 
two proposed parking provision scenarios to serve the buildings in the event 
that they are used for either class B2 or class B8 purposes (both with ancillary 
office space).  In accordance with the parking standards set out in Annex G of 
the RLP, a class B2 use would require the provision of 57 car parking spaces 
for unit 35A, and 70 spaces for unit 35B.  A class B8 use would require the 
provision of 28 car parking spaces for unit 35A, and 35 spaces for unit 35B.  
The submitted parking layouts comply with these standards, including with the 
provision of 5% being disabled spaces, and the resultant plots would be laid 
out to ensure that they would be safe and functional for all users, including with 
adequate manoeuvring space.  Cycle parking/storage is also shown to be 
provided.

8.12 Highway safety and traffic generation
Personal Injury Accident data for the study area has been provided within the 
submitted Transport Assessment for the most recent 5 year period. There is no 
identifiable pattern of accidents that would suggest a deficiency in the safety of 
the highway network in the vicinity of the proposed development.  The 
submitted Transport Assessment also sets out the predicted trip generation 
from the proposed development, which is considered acceptable and the 
highway network, including surrounding junctions, is capable of supporting this.

8.13 Sustainable transport/infrastructure improvements
The submitted Transport Assessment sets out that it is anticipated that a 
significant proportion of the workforce would be recruited locally, and would be 
dependent on travelling shorter distances by foot and cycle.  The footways in 
the vicinity of the site are considered to be acceptable to provide pedestrian 

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 56



access to the site.  The new vehicular access onto South Way has also been 
amended to cater for pedestrians accessing the site from this highway, 
including an extended footway and the provision of crossing points.  There are 
bus stops within a reasonable walking distance of the site which have shelters, 
and the level of bus service is considered acceptable to serve the proposed 
development. While there is some cycle provision in the vicinity, there is no 
cycle provision from the west.  The provision of cycle infrastructure between 
the existing cycle facilities in Phoenix Park (with onward links to residential 
areas, the town centre and Tesco superstore) and the site would encourage 
the use of sustainable modes of transport, and a financial contribution is being 
sought from the applicant towards this infrastructure improvement, which 
complies with the CIL Regulations (set out above) and would be secured 
through a S106 legal agreement.  

8.14 A Framework Travel Plan has been submitted with the planning application 
which considers strategies for encouraging the use of sustainable modes of 
transport by those accessing the proposed development.  The content of the 
submitted Framework Travel Plan is acceptable in respect of this.  A Full 
Travel Plan (together with the payment of monitoring fees and surety 
mechanisms for its implementation to be secured by a S106 legal agreement 
and in compliance with the CIL Regulations) is required to be submitted when 
details of all occupiers of the site are known.

8.15 Subject to the completion of a S106 legal agreement to secure financial 
contributions towards highway infrastructure improvements and the 
monitoring/implementation of a travel plan, and subject to conditions, the 
proposed development would comply with policies T1, T2 and COM15 of the 
RLP.

8.16 Biodiversity
Policy E5 of the RLP requires development to conserve, and where possible 
restore and/or enhance biodiversity.

8.17 The existing building at the site is considered to have limited potential to 
support protected species, and any existing vegetation at the site is unlinked to 
surrounding vegetation, and is therefore unlikely to provide habitat to support 
dormice.  The proposal would comply with policy E5 of the RLP.

8.18 Water management
RLP policy E7 sets out that development will be permitted provided that 
supporting criteria relating to the water environment are satisfied where 
relevant, including in respect of flood risk and water consumption.

8.19 Surface water drainage
The site is located within flood zone 1, which is the flood zone with the lowest 
probability of flooding.  The application is supported by a Flood Risk 
Assessment which also includes proposals in respect of surface water 
drainage.   It is proposed that a sustainable drainage system would serve the 
site, to reduce the overall level of risk of flooding at the site and in the local 
area, and this would include the provision of soakaways.  The Lead Local 

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 57



Flood Authority (HCC) has confirmed that the submitted surface water 
drainage proposals are acceptable in principle, subject to further information 
being submitted as part of a more detailed design stage, as secured by a 
recommended condition.

8.20 Water consumption
Policy E7 requires all new non-residential development of 500sqm or more to 
achieve the BREEAM 'excellent' credit required for water consumption.  A 
condition is recommended in respect of this.

8.21 Foul sewage
The proposed development would be connected to mains drainage, which is in 
accordance with national planning guidance.

8.22 Subject to conditions, the proposed development would comply with policy E7 
of the RLP.

8.23 Amenity and pollution
Policy LHW4 of the RLP sets out that development will be permitted provided 
that; it provides for the privacy and amenity of its occupants and those of 
neighbouring properties; and it does not reduce the levels of daylight and 
sunlight reaching existing properties or private open space to below acceptable 
levels.  

8.24 Policy E8 of the RLP sets out that development will be permitted provided that 
it does not result in pollution which would cause unacceptable risks to human 
health, the natural environment or general amenity, and that development that 
would or could potentially generate pollution will only be permitted if it can be 
demonstrated that there would not be any adverse impact on human health, 
the natural environment or general amenity.  For the purposes of this policy, 
pollution includes noise and vibration, light and air.

8.25 The proposed development would be sufficiently separated from surrounding 
neighbouring sites, including residential properties, so as to have no adverse 
amenity impacts in respect of a loss of privacy, daylight or sunlight, and would 
comply with policy LHW4 of the RLP.

8.26 In taking into account the context of the site, situated within an established 
business park and surrounded by a variety of noise generating uses, it is not 
considered that the proposals would result in any adverse impacts in this 
respect. A condition is recommended to require details of any external plant 
that might be installed on the buildings, including noise data.  Subject to this, 
the proposed development would comply with policy E7 of the RLP.

8.27 Skills and training
Skills and training
Policy ST1 (Skills and Training) of the RLP sets out that where a development 
has a significant impact on the labour market, contributions towards the 
enhancement of skills training and the provision of apprenticeships within the 
local community will be required. Supporting paragraph 11.4 of the RLP 
recognises that in Andover, where the local labour market is relatively self-
contained, the obligation will be focused on improving the local labour market 
in terms of size and skill level.

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 58



8.28 A condition is recommended to require the submission of an employment and 
skills plan, which should reflect the Construction Industry Training Board 
(CITB) Client Based Approach to developing and implementing an 
Employment Skills Strategy on construction projects.  This would comply with 
policy ST1 of the RLP.

9.0 CONCLUSION
9.1 The proposed development would be acceptable in terms of its principle, and 

subject to conditions and financial contributions/obligations would be 
acceptable in respect of character and appearance, the highway network, 
biodiversity, archaeology, water management, pollution and amenity, and skills 
and training, and would comply with the relevant policies of the Test Valley 
Borough Revised Local Plan 2016.

10.0 RECOMMENDATION
Delegate to the Head of Planning and Building that subject to the 
completion of a S106 legal agreement to secure mitigation in respect of 
highway infrastructure/delivery of travel plan then PERMISSION subject 
to:
1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun within three 

years from the date of this permission.
Reason:  To comply with the provision of Section 91 of the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the 
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2. The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in 
complete accordance with the details shown on the submitted 
plans, numbers: 2369 PL100 A; 2369 PL102 E; 2369 PL103 E; 2369 
PL121; 2369 PL110; 2369 PL120; 2369 PL112 A; 2369 PL122 A; 2369 
PL111; 2369 PL 113; 2369 PL123; 18025/002 B; 18025/TK03 B; 
18025/001.
Reason:  For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning.

3. No development shall take place above DPC level of the 
development hereby permitted until samples and details of the 
materials to be used in the construction of all external surfaces 
hereby permitted have been submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. Development shall be carried out in 
accordance with the approved details.
Reason:  To ensure the development has a satisfactory external 
appearance in the interest of visual amenities in accordance with 
Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) Policy E1.

4. Notwithstanding the details submitted no development shall take 
place above DPC level of the development hereby permitted until full 
details of hard and soft landscape works have been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Details 
shall include, where appropriate: proposed finished levels or 
contours; means of enclosure; car parking layouts; other vehicle 
and pedestrian access and circulation areas; hard surfacing 
materials; minor artefacts and structures (e.g. furniture, play 
equipment, refuse or other storage units, signs, lighting, etc.); 

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 59



proposed and existing functional services above and below ground 
(e.g. drainage, power, communications cables, pipelines etc. 
indicating lines, manholes, supports.); retained historic landscape 
features and proposals for restoration, where relevant.
Soft landscape works shall include: planting plans; written 
specifications (including cultivation and other operations 
associated with plant and grass establishment); schedules of 
plants, noting species, plant sizes, proposed numbers/densities and 
tree pit details. The landscape works shall be carried out in 
accordance with the approved details.
Reason:  To improve the appearance of the site and enhance the 
character of the development in the interest of visual amenity and 
contribute to the character of the local area in accordance with Test 
Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) Policy E1 and E2.

5. Notwithstanding the details submitted no development shall take 
place above DPC level of the development hereby permitted until a 
schedule of landscape management and maintenance for a 
minimum period of 10 years has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The landscape management 
plan shall including long term design objectives, management 
responsibilities and maintenance schedules for all landscape areas 
and an implementation programme. The landscape implementation, 
management and maintenance shall be carried out in accordance 
with the approved details.
Reason:  To ensure the provision of amenity afforded by proper 
maintenance of existing and new landscape features as an 
improvement of the appearance of the site and to enhance the 
character of the development in the interest of visual amenity and 
contribute to the character of the local area in accordance with Test 
Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) Policy E1 and E2.                 

6. No development shall take place (other than any approved 
demolition and site clearance works) until a detailed surface water 
drainage strategy has been submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority, containing the following elements: 

 Where infiltration is used for drainage, evidence that a 
suitable number of infiltration tests have been completed. 
These need to be across the whole site; within different 
geologies and to a similar depth to the proposed infiltration 
devices. Tests must be completed according to the BRE 365 
method or another recognised method including British 
Standard BS 5930: 2015.

Reason:  Details are required prior to commencement to ensure the 
prevention of an increased risk of flooding and to ensure the 
improvement and protection of water quality, habitat and amenity in 
accordance with policy E7 of the Test Valley Borough Revised Local 
Plan 2016.

7. The units hereby permitted shall not be occupied until a scheme has 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority which specifies the provisions to be made for the control 
of noise emanating from the site, in accordance with the current BS 
4142 assessment. The scheme shall include:-

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 60



a) the background level(s) (LA90) for the period the development is 
in operation; and ensure that b) the rating level of the noise emitted 
from the development shall be at least consistent background level 
at the boundary of the nearest noise sensitive property at the times 
of the operation of the unit.  The development shall be operated in 
accordance with the approved scheme.
Reason:  In the interest of the amenities in the local area in 
accordance with Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) 
Policy E8.

8. No development shall take place (other than any approved 
demolition and site clearance works) until an assessment of the 
nature and extent of any contamination and a scheme for 
remediating the contamination has been submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The assessment must be 
undertaken by a competent person, and shall assess the presence 
of any contamination on the site, whether or not it originates on the 
site. The assessment shall comprise at least a desk study and 
qualitative risk assessment and, where appropriate, the assessment 
shall be extended following further site investigation work. In the 
event that contamination is found, or is considered likely, the 
scheme shall contain remediation proposals designed to bring the 
site to a condition suitable for the intended use. Such remediation 
proposals shall include clear remediation objectives and criteria, an 
appraisal of the remediation options, and the arrangements for the 
supervision of remediation works by a competent person. The site 
shall not be brought in to use until a verification report, for the 
purpose of certifying adherence to the approved remediation 
scheme, has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.
Reason:  Details are required prior to commencement to ensure a 
safe working environment in accordance with Test Valley Borough 
Revised Local Plan (2016) policy E8.

9. In the event that contamination is found at any time during 
demolition and/or construction works, the presence of such 
contamination shall be reported in writing to the Local Planning 
Authority without delay and development shall be suspended on the 
affected part of the site until a remediation scheme for dealing with 
that contamination has been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. The approved remediation scheme 
shall be implemented and, if requested, a verification report, for the 
purpose of certifying adherence to the approved remediation 
scheme, shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority prior to 
the site being brought in to use.
Reason:  To ensure a safe working environment in accordance with 
Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) policy E8.

10. No development shall take place until an Employment and Skills 
Plan to encourage and promote skills and training in the 
construction industry in accordance with the Construction Industry 
Training Board (CITB) Client Based Approach to developing and 
implementing an Employment Skills Strategy on Construction 

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 61



projects, Local Client Guidance - England, v2, CITB and the National 
Skills Academy 2016 has been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority.  Development shall be carried out 
in accordance with the approved details.
Reason:  Details are required prior to commencement in order to 
identify and provide skills needs and training delivery in accordance 
with Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan 2016 policy ST1.

11. The development shall be designed and built so that it achieves a 
standard equivalent to Building Research Establishment's 
Environmental Assessment Method (BREEAM) 'excellent' credit 
required for water consumption (reference Wat 1).  The development 
shall not be occupied until written evidence demonstrating that this 
level of water consumption is achieved for the development has 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.  
Reason:  In the interests of improving water usage efficiency in 
accordance with policy E7 of the Test Valley Borough Revised Local 
Plan 2016.
Note:  Evidence of a suitable BREEAM certificate or written evidence 
by a BREEAM accredited professional would both be potentially 
appropriate forms of submission.

12. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town & Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking 
and re-enacting that Order) no access, other than those shown on 
the approved plan(s), shall be formed to the site.
Reason:  In the interest of highway safety in accordance with Test 
Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) Policy T1.

13. Each unit hereby permitted shall not be occupied for either of the 
approved uses until the corresponding space has been laid out and 
provided for the parking and manoeuvring of vehicles to enable 
them to enter and leave the site in a forward gear in accordance with 
the approved plans and this space shall thereafter be reserved for 
such purposes at all times.
Reason:  In the interests of highway safety in accordance with Test 
Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) Policy T1.

14. Each unit hereby permitted shall not be occupied until provision for 
cycle parking/storage has been made to serve the same unit for its 
proposed use, in accordance with details to be submitted and 
approved in writing with the Local Planning Authority has been 
made. The approved scheme shall be maintained for this purpose at 
all times.
Reason:  In the interest of providing sufficient safe parking for 
cyclists and in accordance with the Test Valley Borough Revised 
Local Plan (2016) Policy T1.

15. No development shall take place until a Construction Traffic 
Management Plan has been submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. This should include; construction 
traffic routes, parking and turning provision to be made on site, 
measures to prevent mud from being deposited on the highway and 
a programme for construction. The agreed details shall be fully 
implemented before the development is commenced.

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 62



Reason:  Details are required prior to commencement in the 
interests of highway safety in accordance with the Test Valley 
Borough Revised Local Plan (2016) Policy T1.

Notes to applicant:
1. In reaching this decision Test Valley Borough Council (TVBC) has 

had regard to the National Planning Policy Framework and takes a 
positive and proactive approach to development proposals focused 
on solutions. TVBC work with applicants and their agents in a 
positive and proactive manner offering a pre-application advice 
service and updating applicants/agents of issues that may arise in 
dealing with the application and where possible suggesting 
solutions.

2. Bats and their roosts receive strict legal protection under the 
Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and the 
Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010 (as 
amended). Developments that affect legally protected species are 
also likely to be contrary to policy E5 of the Test Valley Revised 
Local Plan DPD. All work must stop immediately if bats, or evidence 
of bat presence (e.g. droppings, bat carcasses or insect remains), 
are encountered at any point during this development.  Should this 
occur, further advice should be sought from Natural England and/or 
a professional ecologist.

3. Separate permission is required under Section 278 of the Highways 
Act 1980 to construct/amend/close an access and/or footway. 
Please contact the Head of Highways, Hampshire County Council, 
Jacobs Gutter Lane, Hounsdown, Totton SOUTHAMPTON, SO40 
9TQ, Tel. No. 03005551388 or at roads@hants.gov.uk at least 12 
weeks prior to the access works commencing.

4. If the proposals include works to an ordinary watercourse, under the 
Land Drainage Act 1991, as amended by the Flood and Water 
Management Act 2010, prior consent from the Lead Local Flood 
Authority is required. This consent is required as a separate 
permission to planning.  

5. The Environmental Health Officer has advised that no work relating 
to the construction of the development hereby approved, including 
works of demolition or preparation prior to operations, should take 
place before the hours of 0730 nor after 1800 on Mondays to 
Fridays; before the hours of 0800 nor after 1300 on Saturdays; and 
at all on Sundays and public holidays. Best practicable means 
should also be used to prevent dust emissions from all demolition 
and construction activities (e.g. the use of water to suppress dust) 
to prevent causing a nuisance to people living and working in the 
vicinity of the site. 

6. Attention is drawn to the requirements of the Agreement dated 
XXXXXX under Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990 which affects this development.

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 63



Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 64



R 
O

 M
 A

 N
   

H 
O

 U
 S

 E

B 
U 

I L
 D

 B
 A

 S
 E

H 
I R

 E
 B

 A
 S

 E
E 

L 
E 

C
 T

 R
 I 

C
 B

 A
 S

 E

EX
IS

TIN
G

SU
B-

ST
A

TIO
N

W
  A

  L
  W

  O
  R

  T
  H

   
   

R 
 O

  A
  D

S  O  U  T  H      W  A  Y

W
  E

  S
  T

   
   

W
  A

  Y

W
  A

  L
  W

  O
  R

  T
  H

   
   

R 
 O

  A
  D

N O R T H     W
 A Y

S 
H 

E 
N

 T 
O

 N
   

H 
O

 U
 S

 E

O
 R

 V
 I 

S

D
 R

 E
 A

 M
 S

B 
E 

D
   

S 
U 

P 
E 

R 
S 

T 
O

 R
 E

O
 A

 K
 W

 O
 O

 D
 S

C
YC

LE
PA

RK
IN

G

29.4m DEEP YARD

TO
TA

L 
G

EA
 : 

33
,9

65
 S

Q
 F

T
(3

,1
55

.3
 S

Q
 M

 )
C

A
R 

PA
RK

IN
G

 : 
70

 S
PA

C
ES

(1
/4

5 
SQ

 M
)

PR
O

D
UC

TIO
N

 /
 S

TO
RA

G
E

G
EA

 : 
29

,8
75

 S
Q

 F
T 

28
.5

m
 D

EE
P 

YA
RD

UN
IT 

35
B

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 N

EW
 U

N
IT

TO
TA

L 
G

EA
 : 

27
,5

80
 S

Q
 F

T
(2

,5
62

.2
 S

Q
 M

 )
C

A
R 

PA
RK

IN
G

 : 
57

 S
PA

C
ES

(1
/4

5 
SQ

 M
)

UN
IT 

35
A

10
m

 T
O

 U
/S

 H
A

UN
C

H

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 N

EW
 U

N
IT

FI
RS

T 
FL

O
O

R 
 O

FF
IC

E
G

EA
 : 

3,
77

0 
SQ

 F
T 

PR
O

D
UC

TIO
N

 /
 S

TO
RA

G
E

G
EA

 : 
23

,8
10

 S
Q

 F
T 

FI
RS

T 
FL

O
O

R 
 O

FF
IC

E
G

EA
 : 

4,
09

0 
SQ

 F
T 

SE
C

UR
E 

YA
RD

10
m

20
m

30
m

40
m

50
m

10
m

SC
A

LE

NO
RT

H

UP

UP

10
m

 T
O

 U
/S

 H
A

UN
C

H
C

HA
IN

 L
IN

K 
FE

N
C

E 
TO

EA
ST

 B
O

UN
D

A
RY

C
HA

IN
 L

IN
K 

FE
N

C
E 

TO
SO

UT
H 

BO
UN

D
A

RY

SL
ID

IN
G

 G
A

TE
 T

O
SE

C
UR

E 
YA

RD

HE
RA

S 
TY

PE
 F

EN
C

E
TO

 S
EC

UR
E 

YA
RD

HE
RA

S 
TY

PE
 F

EN
C

E
TO

 S
EC

UR
E 

YA
RD

SL
ID

IN
G

 G
A

TE
 T

O
SE

C
UR

E 
YA

RD

HE
RA

S 
TY

PE
 F

EN
C

E
BE

TW
EE

N
 Y

A
RD

S

FF
L 

66
.5

0 
(+

/-
 3

00
M

M
)

FF
L 

66
.4

0 
(+

/-
 3

00
M

M
)

66
.3

2

66
.7

6

66
.8

3

66
.9

7

67
.1

0

67
.9

6
67

.6
3

68
.0

0

67
.0

4

66
.6

9

66
.4

2
66

.4
2

66
.4

5

66
.5

6

67
.0

6

67
.0

6

67
.4

0

66
.8

5

66
.7

9

66
.7

4

66
.7

0

66
.8

2

67
.1

5

BI
N

 S
TO

RE
 /

RE
C

YC
LI

N
G

BI
N

 S
TO

RE
 /

RE
C

YC
LI

N
G

N
EW

 S
EC

TIO
N

 O
F

RE
TA

IN
IN

G
 W

A
LL

C
YC

LE
PA

RK
IN

G

66
.5

4

66
.6

1

66
.7

5

66
.6

5

66
.4

3

66
.5

0

66
.7

7

67
.0

3

67
.3

1

67
.2

3
67

.3
4

66
.8

7

66
.7

8

G
A

RR
ET

T 
  M

  K
EE

w
w

w
.g

ar
re

ttm
ck

ee
.c

o.
uk

RI
LE

Y 
HO

US
E

T 
 0

16
28

 9
07

00
0

RI
LE

Y 
RO

A
D

M
A

RL
O

W
BU

C
KI

N
G

HA
M

SH
IR

E

d
rg

.n
o 

:
re

vi
sio

n 
:

A
LL

 D
IM

EN
SI

O
N

S 
TO

 B
E 

C
HE

C
KE

D
 O

N
 S

ITE

sc
al

e 
:

d
at

e 
:

co
nt

en
t :

sit
e 

:

pr
oj

ec
t :

cl
ie

nt
 :

c

KI
ER

 P
RO

PE
RT

Y 
LT

D
.

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 T

W
O

 U
N

IT
SP

EC
UL

A
TIV

E 
D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T

PL
O

T 
35

, W
A

LW
O

RT
H 

RO
A

D
W

A
LW

O
RT

H 
BU

SI
N

ES
S 

PA
RK

PL
A

N
 S

HO
W

IN
G

 P
O

SS
IB

LE
 T

W
O

 U
N

IT
D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

W
ITH

 B
2 

PA
RK

IN
G

1:
50

0 
@

 A
1

M
A

Y 
20

18

23
69

  P
L1

02
E

P 
L 

A
 N

 N
 I 

N
 G

   
D

 R
 A

 W
 I 

N
 G

D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T 
A

N
A

LY
SI

S

SI
TE

 A
RE

A
SI

TE
 A

RE
A

BU
IL

D
IN

G
 A

RE
A

 (G
EA

)
61

,5
45

 S
Q

 F
T 

(5
,7

17
.5

 S
Q

 M
)

C
O

V
ER

A
G

E
45

.1
%

C
A

R 
PA

RK
IN

G
12

5 
SP

A
C

ES
 (O

N
E 

SP
A

C
E 

/ 
46

 S
Q

 M
)

PL
O

T 
35

 - 
B2

 U
SE

 

3.
13

 A
C

RE
S 

(1
2,

68
2 

SQ
 M

)

TW
O

 U
N

IT 
SP

EC
UL

A
TIV

E 
D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

- B
2 

US
E

BA
SI

C
 A

M
EN

ITY
 P

RO
V

IS
IO

N

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 65



R 
O

 M
 A

 N
   

H 
O

 U
 S

 E

B 
U 

I L
 D

 B
 A

 S
 E

H 
I R

 E
 B

 A
 S

 E
E 

L 
E 

C
 T

 R
 I 

C
 B

 A
 S

 E

EX
IS

TIN
G

SU
B-

ST
A

TIO
N

W
  A

  L
  W

  O
  R

  T
  H

   
   

R 
 O

  A
  D

S  O  U  T  H      W  A  Y

W
  E

  S
  T

   
   

W
  A

  Y

W
  A

  L
  W

  O
  R

  T
  H

   
   

R 
 O

  A
  D

N O R T H     W
 A Y

S 
H 

E 
N

 T 
O

 N
   

H 
O

 U
 S

 E

O
 R

 V
 I 

S

D
 R

 E
 A

 M
 S

B 
E 

D
   

S 
U 

P 
E 

R 
S 

T 
O

 R
 E

O
 A

 K
 W

 O
 O

 D
 S

C
YC

LE
PA

RK
IN

G

N
EW

 S
EC

TIO
N

 O
F

RE
TA

IN
IN

G
 W

A
LL

29.4m DEEP YARD
SE

C
UR

E 
YA

RD
TO

TA
L 

G
EA

 : 
33

,9
65

 S
Q

 F
T

(3
,1

55
.3

 S
Q

 M
 )

C
A

R 
PA

RK
IN

G
 : 

40
 S

PA
C

ES
(1

/7
9 

SQ
 M

)

PR
O

D
UC

TIO
N

 /
 S

TO
RA

G
E

G
EA

 : 
29

,8
75

 S
Q

 F
T 

28
.5

m
 D

EE
P 

YA
RD

UN
IT 

35
B

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 N

EW
 U

N
IT

TO
TA

L 
G

EA
 : 

27
,5

80
 S

Q
 F

T
(2

,5
62

.2
 S

Q
 M

 )
C

A
R 

PA
RK

IN
G

 : 
33

 S
PA

C
ES

(1
/7

8 
SQ

 M
)

UN
IT 

35
A

10
m

 T
O

 U
/S

 H
A

UN
C

H

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 N

EW
 U

N
IT

FI
RS

T 
FL

O
O

R 
 O

FF
IC

E
G

EA
 : 

3,
77

0 
SQ

 F
T 

PR
O

D
UC

TIO
N

 /
 S

TO
RA

G
E

G
EA

 : 
23

,8
10

 S
Q

 F
T 

FI
RS

T 
FL

O
O

R 
 O

FF
IC

E
G

EA
 : 

4,
09

0 
SQ

 F
T 

SE
C

UR
E 

YA
RD

10
m

20
m

30
m

40
m

50
m

10
m

SC
A

LE

C
YC

LE
PA

RK
IN

G

NO
RT

H

UP

UP

10
m

 T
O

 U
/S

 H
A

UN
C

H
HE

RA
S 

TY
PE

 F
EN

C
E

TO
 S

EC
UR

E 
YA

RD

SL
ID

IN
G

 G
A

TE
 T

O
SE

C
UR

E 
YA

RD

C
HA

IN
 L

IN
K 

FE
N

C
E 

TO
EA

ST
 B

O
UN

D
A

RY

C
HA

IN
 L

IN
K 

FE
N

C
E 

TO
SO

UT
H 

BO
UN

D
A

RY

FF
L 

66
.5

0 
(+

/-
 3

00
M

M
)

FF
L 

66
.4

0 
(+

/-
 3

00
M

M
)

66
.3

2

66
.5

4

66
.6

1

66
.7

5
66

.7
6

66
.8

3

66
.9

7

67
.1

0

67
.9

6
67

.6
3

68
.0

0

67
.0

4

66
.6

9

66
.6

5
66

.4
2

66
.4

2

66
.4

3

66
.5

0

66
.4

5

66
.5

6

67
.0

6

67
.0

6

67
.0

3

67
.4

0

67
.2

3
67

.3
4

66
.8

7

66
.8

5

66
.7

4

66
.7

0

66
.8

2

67
.1

5

66
.7

8

66
.8

3

SL
ID

IN
G

 G
A

TE
 T

O
SE

C
UR

E 
YA

RD

HE
RA

S 
TY

PE
 F

EN
C

E
TO

 S
EC

UR
E 

YA
RD

BI
N

 S
TO

RE
 /

RE
C

YC
LI

N
G

BI
N

 S
TO

RE
 /

RE
C

YC
LI

N
G

66
.7

7

67
.3

1

G
A

RR
ET

T 
  M

  K
EE

w
w

w
.g

ar
re

ttm
ck

ee
.c

o.
uk

RI
LE

Y 
HO

US
E

T 
 0

16
28

 9
07

00
0

RI
LE

Y 
RO

A
D

M
A

RL
O

W
BU

C
KI

N
G

HA
M

SH
IR

E

d
rg

.n
o 

:
re

vi
sio

n 
:

A
LL

 D
IM

EN
SI

O
N

S 
TO

 B
E 

C
HE

C
KE

D
 O

N
 S

ITE

sc
al

e 
:

d
at

e 
:

co
nt

en
t :

sit
e 

:

pr
oj

ec
t :

cl
ie

nt
 :

c

KI
ER

 P
RO

PE
RT

Y 
LT

D
.

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 T

W
O

 U
N

IT
SP

EC
UL

A
TIV

E 
D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T

PL
O

T 
35

, W
A

LW
O

RT
H 

RO
A

D
W

A
LW

O
RT

H 
BU

SI
N

ES
S 

PA
RK

PL
A

N
 S

HO
W

IN
G

 P
O

SS
IB

LE
 T

W
O

 U
N

IT
D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

W
ITH

 B
8 

PA
RK

IN
G

1:
50

0 
@

 A
1

M
A

Y 
20

18

23
69

  P
L1

03
E

P 
L 

A
 N

 N
 I 

N
 G

   
D

 R
 A

 W
 I 

N
 G

D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T 
A

N
A

LY
SI

S

SI
TE

 A
RE

A
SI

TE
 A

RE
A

BU
IL

D
IN

G
 A

RE
A

 (G
EA

)
61

,5
45

 S
Q

 F
T 

(5
,7

17
.5

 S
Q

 M
)

C
O

V
ER

A
G

E
45

.1
%

C
A

R 
PA

RK
IN

G
73

 S
PA

C
ES

 (O
N

E 
SP

A
C

E 
/ 

78
 S

Q
 M

)

PL
O

T 
35

 - 
B8

 U
SE

 

3.
13

 A
C

RE
S 

(1
2,

68
2 

SQ
 M

)

TW
O

 U
N

IT 
SP

EC
UL

A
TIV

E 
D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

- B
2 

US
E

BA
SI

C
 A

M
EN

ITY
 P

RO
V

IS
IO

N

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 66



W

A

L

W

O

R

T

H

 
R

O

A

D

SOUTH WAY

U
N

I
T

 
3

5
B

U
N

I
T

 
3

5
A

S
E

R
V

I
C

E
 
Y

A
R

D

S
E

R
V

I
C

E
 
Y

A
R

D

E
X

I
S

T
I
N

G
 
S

U
B

 
S

T
A

T
I
O

N

C
Y

C
L

E
 
P

A
R

K
I
N

G

C
Y

C
L

E

P
A

R
K

I
N

G

1
n

o
.
 
F

a
g

u
s
 
s
y
l
v
a

t
i
c
a

 
P

u
r
p

u
r
e

a

5
n

o
.
 
T

i
l
i
a

 
c
o

r
d

a
t
a

 
'
G

r
e

e
n

s
p

i
r
e

'

4
n

o
.
 
T

i
l
i
a

 
c
o

r
d

a
t
a

 
'
G

r
e

e
n

s
p

i
r
e

'

1
n

o
.
 
A

c
e

r

c
a

m
p

e
s
t
r
e

3
n

o
.
 
P

y
r
u

s
 
c
a

l
l
e

r
y
a

n
a

'
C

h
a

n
t
i
c
l
e

e
r
’

1
n

o
.
 
A

c
e

r

c
a

m
p

e
s
t
r
e

1
n

o
.
 
A

c
e

r

c
a

m
p

e
s
t
r
e

1
n

o
.
 
F

a
g

u
s
 
s
y
l
v
a

t
i
c
a

 
P

u
r
p

u
r
e

a

1
n

o
.
 
A

c
e

r
 
c
a

m
p

e
s
t
r
e

 
'
S

t
r
e

e
t
w

i
s
e

'

1
n

o
.
 
A

c
e

r
 
c
a

m
p

e
s
t
r
e

 
'
S

t
r
e

e
t
w

i
s
e

'

1
n

o
.
 
F

a
g

u
s
 
s
y
l
v
a

t
i
c
a

P
u

r
p

u
r
e

a

K
E

Y

E
X

I
S

T
I
N

G
 
T

R
E

E
S

/
V

E
G

E
T

A
T

I
O

N

T
O

 
B

E
 
R

E
T

A
I
N

E
D

 
A

N
D

 
P

R
O

T
E

C
T

E
D

N
A

T
I
V

E
 
H

E
D

G
E

R
O

W

(
3
0
0

m
m

 
d
e

p
t
h

 
o
f
 
t
o
p

s
o
i
l
)

P
l
a

n
t
e

d
 
a

t
 
4

5
0
m

m
 
c
e
n
t
r
e
s
 
i
n

 
a
 
d
o
u

b
l
e

 
s
t
a
g

g
e
r
e
d
 
r
o
w

.

R
o
w

s
 
t
o
 
b
e

 
5
0

0
m

m
 
a
p

a
r
t
.

B
a
c
k
 
r
o
w

 
 
a
l
o
n
g
s
i
d
e

 
o
r
n

a
m

e
n
t
a
l
 
p
l
a

n
t
i
n
g

 
b
e

d
/
n

a
t
i
v
e
 
t
h
i
c
k
e
t
 
p
l
a

n
t
i
n
g
 
t
o
 
b

e

1
0
0

%
 
C

r
a
t
a
e
g

u
s
 
m

o
n
o

g
y
n
a

.
 
R

e
m

a
i
n
i
n
g
 
s
p
e

c
i
e
s
 
t
o

 
b
e

 
r
a
n

d
o
m

l
y
 
m

i
x
e
d

 
i
n

g
r
o

u
p
s
 
o

f
 
3
-
5
 
i
n
 
f
r
o
n

t
 
r
o
w

.

%
S

p
e

c
i
e
s

S
i
z
e

A
g
e

R
o
o
t
/
P

o
t
 
S

i
z
e

2
0

%
 

C
o

r
y
l
u
s
 
a
v
e

l
l
a
n
a

 
4
0
0
-
6
0

0
m

m
 
 
1
+

1
 
 
O

G

5
0

%
 

C
r
a

t
a

e
g
u
s
 
m

o
n
o
g
y
n
a
 

4
0
0
-
6
0

0
m

m
 
 
1
+

1
 
 
O

G

1
0
%

 
I
l
e
x
 
a

q
u
i
f
o
l
i
u
m

4
0
0
-
6
0

0
m

m
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
L

1
5
%

P
r
u
n

u
s
 
s
p
i
n
o
s
a

 
4
0
0
-
6
0

0
m

m
 
 
1
+

1
 
 
O

G

5
%

 
R

o
s
a
 
c
a
n

i
n
a

 
4
0
0
-
5
0

0
m

m
 
 
1
+

0
 
 
O

G

S
P

E
C

I
M

E
N

 
S

H
R

U
B

S

(
3
0
0

m
m

 
d
e

p
t
h

 
o
f
 
t
o
p

s
o
i
l
)

S
p
e

c
i
e
s

 
 
S

u
p
p
l
y
 
S

i
z
e

S
i
z
e

A
m

e
l
a

n
c
h

i
e
r
 
c
a

n
a
d
e
n

s
i
s

 
 
8
0

0
-
1
0
0
0

m
m

1
0
L

C
o
r
n

u
s
 
a

l
b
a

 
'
S

i
b
i
r
i
c
a
'

 
 
8
0

0
-
1
0
0
0

m
m

1
0
L

V
i
b

u
r
n

u
m

 
x
 
b
u
r
k
w

o
o
d
i
i

 
 
6
0

0
-
8
0
0
m

m
1
0
L

L
O

W
 
G

R
O

U
N

D
C

O
V

E
R

 
P

L
A

N
T

I
N

G

(
3
0
0

m
m

 
d
e

p
t
h

 
o
f
 
t
o
p

s
o
i
l
)

U
l
t
i
m

a
t
e
 
p

l
a
n
t
 
h
e

i
g
h

t
 
i
s
 
b

e
l
o

w
 
1
m

.

S
p
e

c
i
e
s

S
u

p
p
l
y
 
S

i
z
e

 
 
P

o
t
 
S

i
z
e

S
p

a
c
i
n
g

B
e
r
b

e
r
i
s
 
v
e

r
r
u
c
u
l
o
s
a

2
0
0
-
3
0
0

m
m

 
 
2
L

4
5
0
m

m
 
c
/
s

C
o
r
n

u
s
 
s
t
o
l
o
n

i
f
e
r
a
 
'
K

e
l
s
e

y
i
i
'

3
0
0
-
4
0
0

m
m

 
 
2
L

4
5
0
m

m
 
c
/
s

C
o
t
o

n
e

a
s
t
e

r
 
d
a

m
m

e
r
i
 
'
C

o
r
a
l
 
B

e
a
u
t
y
'

4
0
0
-
6
0
0

m
m

 
 
3
L

5
0
0
m

m
 
c
/
s

H
e
b
e

 
p
i
n
g
u
i
f
o
l
i
a

 
'
S

u
t
h
e

r
l
a

n
d
i
i
'

2
0
0
-
3
0
0

m
m

 
 
3
L

5
0
0
m

m
 
c
/
s

L
o
n

i
c
e
r
a

 
p
i
l
e

a
t
a

3
0
0
-
4
0
0

m
m

 
 
2
L

5
0
0
m

m
 
c
/
s

P
o
t
e

n
t
i
l
l
a

 
f
r
u
i
t
i
c
o
s
a
 
'
P

r
i
m

r
o
s
e
 
B

e
a
u
t
y
'

2
0
0
-
3
0
0

m
m

 
 
3
L

5
0
0
m

m
 
c
/
s

P
r
u
n

u
s
 
l
a

u
r
o
c
e

r
a
s
u
s
 
'
O

t
t
o
 
L
u
y
k
e
n
'

3
0
0
-
4
0
0

m
m

 
 
3
L

5
0
0
m

m
 
c
/
s

R
o
s
a
 
'
R

e
d
 
M

e
i
d
l
a
n
d

'
3

0
0
-
4
0
0

m
m

 
 
3
L

4
5
0
m

m
 
c
/
s

V
i
n

c
a

 
m

i
n

o
r
 
'
A

l
b
a
'

2
0
0
-
3
0
0

m
m

 
 
2
L

4
0
0
m

m
 
c
/
s

H
E

A
V

Y
 
S

T
A

N
D

A
R

D
 
T

R
E

E
S

1
2
-
1

4
c
m

 
s
t
e
m

 
g
i
r
t
h

3
.
5

-
4
.
2

5
m

 
h
e
i
g
h
t

1
.
8

-
2
.
1

m
 
c
l
e
a
r
 
s
t
e
m

R
o
o
t
 
w

r
a
p

p
e
d

S
p
e

c
i
e
s

A
c
e
r
 
c
a
m

p
e
s
t
r
e

A
c
e
r
 
c
a
m

p
e
s
t
r
e
 
'
S

t
r
e
e
t
w

i
s
e

'

P
y
r
u

s
 
c
a

l
l
e
r
y
a
n

a
 
'
C

h
a

n
t
i
c
l
e
e
r
’

E
X

T
R

A
 
H

E
A

V
Y

 
S

T
A

N
D

A
R

D
 
T

R
E

E
S

1
8
-
2

0
c
m

 
s
t
e
m

 
g
i
r
t
h

4
.
5

-
6
.
5
m

 
h

e
i
g

h
t

1
.
8

-
2
.
1

m
 
c
l
e
a
r
 
s
t
e
m

R
o
o
t
b
a
l
l
e

d

S
p
e

c
i
e
s

F
a
g

u
s
 
s
y
l
v
a

t
i
c
a
 
P

u
r
p
u
r
e
a

T
i
l
i
a

 
c
o

r
d
a
t
a
 
'
G

r
e

e
n
s
p
i
r
e
'

C
L

O
S

E
 
M

O
W

N
 
G

R
A

S
S

(
1
5
0

m
m

 
d
e

p
t
h

 
o
f
 
t
o
p

s
o
i
l
)

B
U

L
B

S
 
P

L
A

N
T

E
D

W
I
T

H
I
N

 
G

R
A

S
S

S
I
T

E
 
B

O
U

N
D

A
R

Y

E
X

I
S

T
I
N

G
 
T

R
E

E
S

/
V

E
G

E
T

A
T

I
O

N

T
O

 
B

E
 
R

E
M

O
V

E
D

D
 O

   
N

 O
 T

   
S

 C
 A

 L
 E

   
F 

R
 O

 M
   

T 
H

 I 
S

   
D

 R
 A

 W
 I 

N
 G

C
 O

 P
 Y

 R
 I 

G
 H

 T
   

 R
 E

 S
 E

 R
 V

 E
 D

N
O

R
T

H

C
O

N
TR

A
C

T

D
A

TE

IS
S

U
E

 

D
R

A
W

N

C
H

E
C

K
E

D

O
R

IG
 S

H
E

E
T

A
1

S
C

A
LE

D
R

A
W

IN
G

C
LI

E
N

T

P
R

O
JE

C
T

D
R

G
 N

O
.

R
E

V

C
A

D
 F

IL
E

B
ar

ry
 C

hi
nn

 A
ss

oc
ia

te
s 

Li
m

ite
d:

   
H

ar
bu

ry
 R

oa
d,

   
D

ep
pe

rs
 B

rid
ge

,  
 S

ou
th

am
,  

 W
ar

w
ic

ks
hi

re
   

 C
V4

7 
2S

Z
T 

+
44

 (0
)1

92
6 

61
40

31
  F

 +
44

 (0
)1

92
6 

61
44

33
   

E
 g

en
@

bc
a-

la
nd

sc
ap

e.
co

m
  W

 w
w

w
.b

ca
-la

nd
sc

ap
e.

co
m

K
I
E

R
 
P

R
O

P
E

R
T

Y
 
L
T

D
.

P
L
O

T
 
3
5
,
 
W

A
L
W

O
R

T
H

B
U

S
I
N

E
S

S
 
P

A
R

K
,
 
A

N
D

O
V

E
R

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
 
C

O
N

C
E

P
T

 
P

L
A

N

1
8

6
7

/
1

8

0
8

/
1

6
/
1

8

P
L

A
N

N
I
N

G

1
:
2

5
0

1
8

6
7

-
1

8
-
0

1
.
d

w
g

J
M

M
B

0
1

B

R
E

V
 
N

O
T

E
D

A
T

E
 
A

U
T

H

F
a

g
u

s
 
s
y
l
v
a

t
i
c
a

 
'
P

u
r
p

u
r
e

a
'

P
y
r
u

s
 
c
a

l
l
e

r
y
a

n
a

 
'
C

h
a

n
t
i
c
l
e

e
r
’

T
i
l
i
a

 
c
o

r
d

a
t
a

 
'
G

r
e

e
n

s
p

i
r
e

'

T
R

E
E

 
S

P
E

C
I
E

S

P
o

t
e

n
t
i
l
l
a

 
f
r
u

i
t
i
c
o

s
a

 
'
P

r
i
m

r
o

s
e

 
B

e
a

u
t
y
'

L
o

n
i
c
e

r
a

 
p

i
l
e

a
t
a

R
o

s
a

 
'
R

e
d

 
M

e
i
d

l
a

n
d

'
H

e
b

e
 
p

i
n

g
u

i
f
o

l
i
a

 
'
S

u
t
h

e
r
l
a

n
d

i
i
'

P
r
u

n
u

s
 
l
a

u
r
o

c
e

r
a

s
u

s
 
'
O

t
t
o

 
L

u
y
k
e

n
'

N
a

t
i
v
e

 
M

i
x
e

d
 
S

p
e

c
i
e

s
 
H

e
d

g
e

r
o

w

L
O

W
 
G

R
O

U
N

D
C

O
V

E
R

 
S

P
E

C
I
E

S
L

A
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

 
D

E
S

I
G

N
 
S

T
R

A
T

E
G

Y
 
S

T
A

T
E

M
E

N
T

T
h

e
 
l
a

n
d

s
c
a

p
e

 
d

e
s
i
g

n
 
p

r
o

p
o

s
a

l
s
 
f
o

r
 
t
h

e
 
s
i
t
e

 
h

a
v
e

 
b

e
e

n
 
d

e
v
e

l
o

p
e

d
 
w

i
t
h

 
t
h

e
 
f
o

l
l
o

w
i
n

g
 
a

i
m

s
 
a

n
d

 
o

b
j
e

c
t
i
v
e

s
 
t
o

 
e

n
s
u

r
e

 
t
h

a
t
 
t
h

e
 
s
c
h

e
m

e
 
p

r
o

v
i
d

e
s
 
a

 
b

e
n

e
f
i
t
 
t
o

 
t
h

e
 
e

n
v
i
r
o

n
m

e
n

t
 
a

n
d

 
s
u

c
c
e

s
s
f
u

l
l
y
 
i
n

t
e

g
r
a

t
e

s

t
h

e
 
n

e
w

 
d

e
v
e

l
o

p
m

e
n

t
 
i
n

t
o

 
i
t
s
 
l
o

c
a

t
i
o

n
:

·
T

o
 
e

n
s
u

r
e

 
t
h

e
 
s
u

c
c
e

s
s
f
u

l
 
e

s
t
a

b
l
i
s
h

m
e

n
t
 
a

n
d

 
r
e

t
e

n
t
i
o

n
 
o

f
 
e

f
f
e

c
t
i
v
e

 
l
a

n
d

s
c
a

p
e

 
b

o
u

n
d

a
r
y
 
p

l
a

n
t
i
n

g
,
 
p

a
r
t
i
c
u

l
a

r
l
y
 
a

l
o

n
g

 
W

a
l
w

o
r
t
h

 
R

o
a

d
 
a

n
d

 
S

o
u

t
h

 
W

a
y
.

·
T

o
 
s
e

c
u

r
e

 
a

 
l
o

n
g

 
t
e

r
m

 
f
u

t
u

r
e

 
f
o

r
 
t
h

e
 
e

x
i
s
t
i
n

g
 
t
r
e

e
s
 
a

n
d

 
n

e
w

 
t
r
e

e
 
a

n
d

 
h

e
d

g
e

 
p

l
a

n
t
i
n

g
 
w

i
t
h

 
p

a
r
t
i
c
u

l
a

r
 
e

m
p

h
a

s
i
s
 
u

p
o

n
 
a

c
h

i
e

v
i
n

g
 
e

n
h

a
n

c
e

m
e

n
t
 
o

f
 
e

c
o

l
o

g
i
c
a

l
 
p

o
t
e

n
t
i
a

l
,
 
c
o

n
s
e

r
v
a

t
i
o

n
 
a

n
d

 
v
i
s
u

a
l
 
a

m
e

n
i
t
y
.

·
T

o
 
a

c
h

i
e

v
e

 
r
a

p
i
d

 
e

s
t
a

b
l
i
s
h

m
e

n
t
 
o

f
 
t
h

e
 
p

l
a

n
t
 
m

a
t
e

r
i
a

l
 
w

i
t
h

 
r
e

s
u

l
t
a

n
t
 
t
o

t
a

l
 
g

r
o

u
n

d
 
c
o

v
e

r
,
 
t
h

e
r
e

b
y
 
s
u

p
p

r
e

s
s
i
n

g
 
w

e
e

d
 
g

r
o

w
t
h

 
a

n
d

 
r
e

d
u

c
i
n

g
 
m

a
i
n

t
e

n
a

n
c
e

 
r
e

q
u

i
r
e

m
e

n
t
s
.

·
T

o
 
r
e

t
a

i
n

 
t
h

e
 
n

a
t
u

r
a

l
 
g

r
o

w
t
h

 
f
o

r
m

 
a

n
d

 
m

a
x
i
m

i
s
e

 
t
h

e
 
s
e

a
s
o

n
a

l
 
p

o
t
e

n
t
i
a

l
 
o

f
 
i
n

d
i
v
i
d

u
a

l
 
s
p

e
c
i
e

s
 
b

y
 
t
h

e
 
p

r
u

n
i
n

g
 
m

e
t
h

o
d

s
 
a

d
o

p
t
e

d
.

·
T

o
 
m

a
n

a
g

e
 
t
h

e
 
l
a

n
d

s
c
a

p
e

 
i
n

 
a

 
m

a
n

n
e

r
 
c
o

n
v
i
v
i
a

l
 
w

i
t
h

 
t
h

e
 
s
a

f
e

t
y
 
o

f
 
s
i
t
e

 
u

s
e

r
s
,
 
s
u

c
h

 
a

s
 
m

a
i
n

t
a

i
n

i
n

g
 
v
i
s
i
b

i
l
i
t
y
 
s
p

l
a

y
s
 
a

n
d

 
t
h

e
 
r
e

m
o

v
a

l
 
o

f
 
d

e
a

d
,
 
d

y
i
n

g
 
o

r
 
d

i
s
e

a
s
e

d
 
t
r
e

e
 
b

r
a

n
c
h

e
s
.

T
h

e
 
b

o
u

n
d

a
r
y
 
t
r
e

a
t
m

e
n

t
s
 
f
o

r
 
t
h

e
 
s
i
t
e

 
a

r
e

 
k
e

y
 
t
o

 
t
h

e
 
s
u

c
c
e

s
s
f
u

l
 
a

s
s
i
m

i
l
a

t
i
o

n
 
o

f
 
t
h

e
 
p

r
o

p
o

s
e

d
 
d

e
v
e

l
o

p
m

e
n

t
 
i
n

t
o

 
t
h

e
 
s
u

r
r
o

u
n

d
i
n

g
 
c
h

a
r
a

c
t
e

r
 
o

f
 
W

a
l
w

o
r
t
h

 
B

u
s
i
n

e
s
s
 
P

a
r
k
 
w

i
t
h

 
t
h

e
 
r
e

d
e

v
e

l
o

p
m

e
n

t
 
o

f
 
P

l
o

t
 
3

5

p
r
o

v
i
d

i
n

g
 
a

n
 
o

p
p

o
r
t
u

n
i
t
y
 
t
o

 
r
e

i
n

f
o

r
c
e

 
a

n
d

 
e

n
h

a
n

c
e

 
t
h

e
 
i
d

e
n

t
i
t
y
 
o

f
 
W

a
l
w

o
r
t
h

 
R

o
a

d
 
f
r
o

n
t
a

g
e

.
 
A

n
 
a

t
t
r
a

c
t
i
v
e

 
b

o
u

n
d

a
r
y
 
t
r
e

a
t
m

e
n

t
 
i
s
 
p

r
o

p
o

s
e

d
 
w

i
t
h

 
w

i
d

e
 
a

m
e

n
i
t
y
 
g

r
a

s
s
 
v
e

r
g

e
s
 
p

l
a

n
t
e

d
 
w

i
t
h

 
s
p

r
i
n

g
 
b

u
l
b

s
 
a

n
d

E
x
t
r
a

 
H

e
a

v
y
 
S

t
a

n
d

a
r
d

 
T

r
e

e
s
 
b

e
h

i
n

d
 
w

h
i
c
h

 
w

i
l
l
 
s
i
t
 
a

 
n

a
t
i
v
e

 
m

i
x
e

d
 
s
p

e
c
i
e

s
 
h

e
d

g
e

r
o

w
.

S
h

o
u

l
d

 
e

x
i
s
t
i
n

g
 
u

n
d

e
r
g

r
o

u
n

d
 
s
e

r
v
i
c
e

s
 
p

r
o

h
i
b

i
t
 
t
h

e
 
p

l
a

n
t
i
n

g
 
o

f
 
t
h

e
 
p

r
o

p
o

s
e

d
 
t
r
e

e
s
 
i
n

 
t
h

e
 
l
o

c
a

t
i
o

n
s
 
a

s
 
s
h

o
w

n
,
 
t
h

e
y
 
a

r
e

 
t
o

 
b

e
 
r
e

-
p

o
s
i
t
i
o

n
e

d
 
w

i
t
h

 
a

n
 
a

p
p

r
o

p
r
i
a

t
e

 
r
o

o
t
 
b

a
r
r
i
e

r
 
p

r
o

t
e

c
t
i
o

n
 
i
n

s
t
a

l
l
e

d
 
w

i
t
h

i
n

 
t
h

e

t
r
e

e
 
p

i
t
s
 
t
o

 
p

r
e

v
e

n
t
 
r
o

o
t
 
s
p

r
e

a
d

 
t
o

w
a

r
d

s
 
s
e

r
v
i
c
e

 
r
u

n
s
.

A
t
 
t
h

e
 
a

c
c
e

s
s
 
p

o
i
n

t
s
 
o

f
f
 
W

a
l
w

o
r
t
h

 
R

o
a

d
 
/
S

o
u

t
h

 
W

a
y
 
a

n
d

 
i
n

t
o

 
t
h

e
 
c
a

r
 
p

a
r
k
 
m

o
r
e

 
f
o

r
m

a
l
 
p

l
a

n
t
i
n

g
 
i
s
 
p

r
o

p
o

s
e

d
 
w

i
t
h

 
l
o

w
 
g

r
o

u
n

d
c
o

v
e

r
 
p

l
a

n
t
i
n

g
s
,
 
s
p

e
c
i
m

e
n

 
s
h

r
u

b
s
 
a

n
d

 
H

e
a

v
y
 
S

t
a

n
d

a
r
d

 
t
r
e

e
s
.
 
T

h
e

 
l
a

n
d

s
c
a

p
e

p
l
a

n
t
i
n

g
 
t
y
p

e
s
 
a

n
d

 
t
h

e
 
s
p

e
c
i
e

s
 
t
o

 
b

e
 
u

s
e

d
 
t
h

r
o

u
g

h
o

u
t
 
t
h

e
 
d

e
v
e

l
o

p
m

e
n

t
 
h

a
v
e

 
b

e
e

n
 
c
h

o
s
e

n
 
f
o

r
 
t
h

e
i
r
 
a

m
e

n
i
t
y
 
v
a

l
u

e
,
 
s
u

i
t
a

b
i
l
i
t
y
 
t
o

 
t
h

e
 
s
o

i
l
 
c
o

n
d

i
t
i
o

n
s
 
a

n
d

 
l
o

c
a

l
 
l
a

n
d

s
c
a

p
e

 
c
h

a
r
a

c
t
e

r
.

A
 
-
 
U

p
d

a
t
e

d
 
f
o

l
l
o

w
i
n

g
 
c
o

m
m

e
n

t
s
 
f
r
o

m
 
T

V
B

C
2

4
-
0

8
-
1

8
 
J
M

B
 
-
 
U

p
d

a
t
e

d
 
t
o

 
l
a

t
e

s
t
 
a

r
c
h

i
t
e

c
t
s
 
l
a

y
o

u
t

1
2

-
0

9
-
1

8
 
J
M

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 67



M
ET

A
LL

IC
 S

IN
US

O
ID

A
L 

C
LA

D
D

IN
G

 D
A

RK
 G

RE
Y

G
RE

Y 
TIN

TE
D

 A
N

TI 
SU

N
 

G
LA

SS
 D

A
RK

 G
RE

Y

G
RE

Y 
TIN

TE
D

 A
N

TI 
SU

N
 

G
LA

SS
 D

A
RK

 G
RE

Y

M
ET

A
LL

IC
 S

IN
US

O
ID

A
L 

C
LA

D
D

IN
G

 D
A

RK
 G

RE
Y

M
ET

A
LL

IC
 S

IN
US

O
ID

A
L 

C
LA

D
D

IN
G

 D
A

RK
 G

RE
Y

M
ET

A
LL

IC
 F

IN
IS

H 
FL

A
T 

PA
N

EL
 D

A
RK

 B
LU

E

M
ET

A
LL

IC
 S

IN
US

O
ID

A
L

C
LA

D
D

IN
G

 D
A

RK
 G

RE
Y

M
ET

A
LL

IC
 H

A
LF

 R
O

UN
D

 
C

LA
D

D
IN

G
 S

IL
V

ER

FI
RE

 E
SC

A
PE

 D
O

O
R

M
ET

A
LL

IC
 F

IN
IS

H 
FL

A
T 

PA
N

EL
 D

A
RK

 B
LU

E

G
RE

Y 
TIN

TE
D

 A
N

TI-
SU

N
G

LA
SS

 D
A

RK
 G

RE
Y

M
ET

A
L 

FI
RE

 E
SC

A
PE

 D
O

O
RS

C
O

LO
UR

: S
IL

V
ER

 R
A

L:
90

06

M
ET

A
LL

IC
 S

IN
US

O
ID

A
L 

C
LA

D
D

IN
G

 D
A

RK
 G

RE
Y

M
ET

A
LL

IC
 F

IN
IS

H 
FL

A
T 

PA
N

EL
 D

A
RK

 B
LU

E

M
A

IN
 E

N
TR

A
N

C
E

PA
TH

W
A

Y

PA
TH

W
A

Y

PA
TH

W
A

Y

B 
U 

I L
 D

 B
 A

 S
 E

H 
I R

 E
 B

 A
 S

 E

E 
L 

E 
C

 T
 R

 I 
C

 B
 A

 S
 E

76
.2

2 
EA

V
ES

 L
EV

EL

B 
U 

I L
 D

 B
 A

 S
 E

H 
I R

 E
 B

 A
 S

 E

E 
L 

E 
C

 T
 R

 I 
C

 B
 A

 S
 E

67
.3

4

76
.2

2 
EA

V
ES

 L
EV

EL

PA
TH

W
A

Y

S 
O

 U
 T

 H
   

   
W

 A
 Y

UN
IT 

3B
 S

EC
UR

E 
YA

RD

PA
TH

W
A

Y

M
ET

A
LL

IC
 S

IN
US

O
ID

A
L

C
LA

D
D

IN
G

 D
A

RK
 G

RE
Y

UN
IT 

3A
 S

EC
UR

E 
YA

RD
W

 A
 L

 W
 O

 R
 T

 H
   

R 
O

 A
 D

W
 A

 L
 W

 O
 R

 T
 H

   
R 

O
 A

 D

W
 A

 L
 W

 O
 R

 T
 H

   
R 

O
 A

 D

UN
IT 

35
A

 - 
FR

O
N

T 
EL

EV
A

TIO
N

UN
IT 

35
A

 - 
SE

RV
IC

E 
YA

RD
 E

LE
V

A
TIO

N

UN
IT 

35
A

 - 
SI

D
E 

EL
EV

A
TIO

N

UN
IT 

35
A

 - 
SI

D
E 

EL
EV

A
TIO

N

LO
A

D
IN

G
 D

O
O

R
LE

V
EL

 A
C

C
ES

S
LO

A
D

IN
G

 D
O

O
R

LE
V

EL
 A

C
C

ES
S

LO
A

D
IN

G
 D

O
O

R
LE

V
EL

 A
C

C
ES

S

FI
RE

 E
SC

A
PE

 2

FI
RE

 E
SC

A
PE

 1

FI
RE

 E
SC

A
PE

5m

SC
A

LE
5m

10
m

15
m

20
m

25
m

G
A

RR
ET

T 
  M

  K
EE

w
w

w
.g

ar
re

ttm
ck

ee
.c

o.
uk

RI
LE

Y 
HO

US
E

T 
 0

16
28

 9
07

00
0

RI
LE

Y 
RO

A
D

M
A

RL
O

W
BU

C
KI

N
G

HA
M

SH
IR

E

d
rg

.n
o 

:
re

vi
sio

n 
:

A
LL

 D
IM

EN
SI

O
N

S 
TO

 B
E 

C
HE

C
KE

D
 O

N
 S

ITE

sc
al

e 
:

d
at

e 
:

co
nt

en
t :

sit
e 

:

pr
oj

ec
t :

cl
ie

nt
 :

c

KI
ER

 P
RO

PE
RT

Y 
LT

D
.

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 T

W
O

 U
N

IT
SP

EC
UL

A
TIV

E 
D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T

PL
O

T 
35

, W
A

LW
O

RT
H 

RO
A

D
W

A
LW

O
RT

H 
BU

SI
N

ES
S 

PA
RK

UN
IT 

35
A

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 E

LE
V

A
TIO

N
S

1:
20

0 
@

 A
1

M
A

Y 
20

18

23
69

 - 
PL

11
2

A

P 
L 

A
 N

 N
 I 

N
 G

   
D

 R
 A

 W
 I 

N
 G

N
O

TE
S 

: 

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 68



UN
IT 

35
A

 - 
G

RO
UN

D
 F

LO
O

R 
PL

A
N

UN
IT 

35
A

 - 
RO

O
F 

PL
A

N

UN
IT 

35
A

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 N

EW
 U

N
IT

RO
O

F 
LI

G
HT

S 
10

%

RO
O

F 
PI

TC
H 

6 
D

EG
RE

ES

RO
O

F 
G

UT
TE

R

RO
O

F 
G

UT
TE

R

UN
IT 

35
A

10
m

 T
O

 U
/S

 H
A

UN
C

H

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 N

EW
 U

N
IT

TO
TA

L 
G

EA
 : 

27
,5

80
 S

Q
 F

T

PR
O

D
UC

TIO
N

 /
 S

TO
RA

G
E

LI
N

E 
O

F 
FI

RS
T 

FL
O

O
R

O
FF

IC
E 

O
V

ER

ST
A

IR
C

A
SE

 2

UP
UP

G
EA

 : 
23

,8
10

 S
Q

 F
T 

G
RO

UN
D

 F
LO

O
R

FO
R 

LI
FT

PO
SS

IB
LE

 A
RE

A

TE
A

 P
O

IN
T

PO
SS

IB
LE

&
 S

HO
W

ER
D

D
A

 T
O

IL
ET

LO
A

D
IN

G
 D

O
O

R
LE

V
EL

 A
C

C
ES

S
LO

A
D

IN
G

 D
O

O
R

LE
V

EL
 A

C
C

ES
S

LO
A

D
IN

G
 D

O
O

R
LE

V
EL

 A
C

C
ES

S
D

O
O

R
FI

RE
 E

SC
A

PE

D
O

O
R

FI
RE

 E
SC

A
PE

FI
RE

 E
SC

A
PE

 2

ST
A

IR
C

A
SE

 1

M
A

IN
 E

N
TR

A
N

C
E

FI
RE

 E
SC

A
PE

 1

5m

SC
A

LE
5m

10
m

15
m

20
m

25
m

G
A

RR
ET

T 
  M

  K
EE

w
w

w
.g

ar
re

ttm
ck

ee
.c

o.
uk

RI
LE

Y 
HO

US
E

T 
 0

16
28

 9
07

00
0

RI
LE

Y 
RO

A
D

M
A

RL
O

W
BU

C
KI

N
G

HA
M

SH
IR

E

d
rg

.n
o 

:
re

vi
sio

n 
:

A
LL

 D
IM

EN
SI

O
N

S 
TO

 B
E 

C
HE

C
KE

D
 O

N
 S

ITE

sc
al

e 
:

d
at

e 
:

co
nt

en
t :

sit
e 

:

pr
oj

ec
t :

cl
ie

nt
 :

c

KI
ER

 P
RO

PE
RT

Y 
LT

D
.

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 T

W
O

 U
N

IT
SP

EC
UL

A
TIV

E 
D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T

PL
O

T 
35

, W
A

LW
O

RT
H 

RO
A

D
W

A
LW

O
RT

H 
BU

SI
N

ES
S 

PA
RK

UN
IT 

35
A

G
RO

UN
D

 F
LO

O
R 

&
 R

O
O

F 
PL

A
N

1:
20

0 
@

 A
1

M
A

Y 
20

18

23
69

 - 
PL

11
0

P 
L 

A
 N

 N
 I 

N
 G

   
D

 R
 A

 W
 I 

N
 G

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 69



M
A

LE
 T

O
IL

ET

FE
M

A
LE

 T
O

IL
ET

O
FF

IC
E 

A
C

C
O

M
M

O
D

A
TIO

N
G

EA
 : 

3,
77

0 
SQ

 F
T 

D
N

D
N

RE
FU

G
E

W
HE

EL
C

HA
IR

RE
FU

G
E

W
HE

EL
C

HA
IR

ST
O

RE

IF
 R

EQ
UI

RE
D

 B
Y 

O
C

C
UP

IE
R

PO
SS

IB
LE

 A
RE

A
 F

O
R 

LI
FT

ST
A

IR
C

A
SE

 2

UP
UP

M
A

IN
 E

N
TR

A
N

C
E

ST
O

RE
FU

TU
RE

 O
FF

IC
ES

W
A

RE
HO

US
E 

/ 
D

IS
TR

IB
UT

IO
N

ST
A

IR
C

A
SE

 1

5m

SC
A

LE

5m
10

m
15

m
20

m
25

m

&
 S

HO
W

ER
D

D
A

 T
O

IL
ET

ST
A

IR
C

A
SE

 2
ST

A
IR

C
A

SE
 1

IF
 R

EQ
UI

RE
D

 B
Y 

O
C

C
UP

IE
R

PO
SS

IB
LE

 A
RE

A
 F

O
R 

LI
FT

G
A

RR
ET

T 
  M

  K
EE

w
w

w
.g

ar
re

ttm
ck

ee
.c

o.
uk

RI
LE

Y 
HO

US
E

T 
 0

16
28

 9
07

00
0

RI
LE

Y 
RO

A
D

M
A

RL
O

W
BU

C
KI

N
G

HA
M

SH
IR

E

d
rg

.n
o 

:
re

vi
sio

n 
:

A
LL

 D
IM

EN
SI

O
N

S 
TO

 B
E 

C
HE

C
KE

D
 O

N
 S

ITE

sc
al

e 
:

d
at

e 
:

co
nt

en
t :

sit
e 

:

pr
oj

ec
t :

cl
ie

nt
 :

c

KI
ER

 P
RO

PE
RT

Y 
LT

D
.

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 T

W
O

 U
N

IT
SP

EC
UL

A
TIV

E 
D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T

PL
O

T 
35

, W
A

LW
O

RT
H 

RO
A

D
W

A
LW

O
RT

H 
BU

SI
N

ES
S 

PA
RK

UN
IT 

35
A

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 O

FF
IC

E 
PL

A
N

S

1:
10

0 
@

 A
1

M
A

Y 
20

18

23
69

 - 
PL

11
1

P 
L 

A
 N

 N
 I 

N
 G

   
D

 R
 A

 W
 I 

N
 G

D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T 
A

N
A

LY
SI

S

SI
TE

 A
RE

A
SI

TE
 A

RE
A

BU
IL

D
IN

G
 A

RE
A

 (G
EA

)
61

,5
45

 S
Q

 F
T 

(5
,7

17
.5

 S
Q

 M
)

C
O

V
ER

A
G

E
45

.1
%

C
A

R 
PA

RK
IN

G
12

5 
SP

A
C

ES
 (O

N
E 

SP
A

C
E 

/ 
46

 S
Q

 M
)

PL
O

T 
35

 - 
B2

 U
SE

 

3.
13

 A
C

RE
S 

(1
2,

68
2 

SQ
 M

)

TW
O

 U
N

IT 
SP

EC
UL

A
TIV

E 
D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

- B
2 

US
E

BA
SI

C
 A

M
EN

ITY
 P

RO
V

IS
IO

N

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 70



10000

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 B

UI
LD

IN
G

G
RO

UN
D

 F
LO

O
R 

- P
RO

D
UC

TIO
N

 /
 S

TO
RA

G
E

TO U/S HAUNCH

S 
E 

C
 T

 I 
O

 N
   

A

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 B

UI
LD

IN
G

G
RO

UN
D

 F
LO

O
R 

- P
RO

D
UC

TIO
N

 /
 S

TO
RA

G
E

FI
RS

T 
FL

O
O

R 
O

FF
IC

E
2800

S 
E 

C
 T

 I 
O

 N
   

B

2800

G
A

RR
ET

T 
  M

  K
EE

w
w

w
.g

ar
re

ttm
ck

ee
.c

o.
uk

RI
LE

Y 
HO

US
E

T 
 0

16
28

 9
07

00
0

RI
LE

Y 
RO

A
D

M
A

RL
O

W
BU

C
KI

N
G

HA
M

SH
IR

E

d
rg

.n
o 

:
re

vi
sio

n 
:

A
LL

 D
IM

EN
SI

O
N

S 
TO

 B
E 

C
HE

C
KE

D
 O

N
 S

ITE

sc
al

e 
:

d
at

e 
:

co
nt

en
t :

sit
e 

:

pr
oj

ec
t :

cl
ie

nt
 :

c

KI
ER

 P
RO

PE
RT

Y 
LT

D
.

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 T

W
O

 U
N

IT
SP

EC
UL

A
TIV

E 
D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T

PL
O

T 
35

, W
A

LW
O

RT
H 

RO
A

D
W

A
LW

O
RT

H 
BU

SI
N

ES
S 

PA
RK

UN
IT 

35
A

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 S

EC
TIO

N
S 

A
 &

 B

1:
10

0 
@

 A
1

M
A

Y 
20

18

23
69

 - 
PL

11
3

P 
L 

A
 N

 N
 I 

N
 G

   
D

 R
 A

 W
 I 

N
 G

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 71



M
ET

A
LL

IC
 S

IN
US

O
ID

A
L 

C
LA

D
D

IN
G

 D
A

RK
 G

RE
Y

G
RE

Y 
TIN

TE
D

 A
N

TI 
SU

N
 

G
LA

SS
 D

A
RK

 G
RE

Y

G
RE

Y 
TIN

TE
D

 A
N

TI 
SU

N
 

G
LA

SS
 D

A
RK

 G
RE

Y

M
ET

A
LL

IC
 S

IN
US

O
ID

A
L

C
LA

D
D

IN
G

 D
A

RK
 G

RE
Y

M
ET

A
LL

IC
 S

IN
US

O
ID

A
L 

C
LA

D
D

IN
G

 D
A

RK
 G

RE
Y

M
ET

A
LL

IC
 F

IN
IS

H 
FL

A
T 

PA
N

EL
 D

A
RK

 B
LU

E

M
ET

A
LL

IC
 S

IN
US

O
ID

A
L 

C
LA

D
D

IN
G

 D
A

RK
 G

RE
Y

M
ET

A
LL

IC
 H

A
LF

 R
O

UN
D

 
C

LA
D

D
IN

G
 S

IL
V

ER

FI
RE

 E
SC

A
PE

 D
O

O
R

M
ET

A
LL

IC
 F

IN
IS

H 
FL

A
T 

PA
N

EL
 D

A
RK

 B
LU

E

G
RE

Y 
TIN

TE
D

 A
N

TI 
SU

N
 

G
LA

SS
 D

A
RK

 G
RE

Y

66
.7

5

PA
TH

W
A

Y

67
.4

0

67
.0

7

PA
TH

W
A

Y

B 
U 

I L
 D

 B
 A

 S
 E

H 
I R

 E
 B

 A
 S

 E

E 
L 

E 
C

 T
 R

 I 
C

 B
 A

 S
 E

76
.2

2 
EA

V
ES

 L
EV

EL

UN
IT 

3A
 S

EC
UR

E 
YA

RD

PA
TH

W
A

Y

W
 A

 L
 W

 O
 R

 T
 H

   
R 

O
 A

 D

W
 A

 L
 W

 O
 R

 T
 H

   
R 

O
 A

 D

M
ET

A
LL

IC
 S

IN
US

O
ID

A
L 

C
LA

D
D

IN
G

 D
A

RK
 G

RE
Y

G
RE

Y 
TIN

TE
D

 A
N

TI 
SU

N
 

G
LA

SS
 D

A
RK

 G
RE

Y

M
ET

A
LL

IC
 S

IN
US

O
ID

A
L 

C
LA

D
D

IN
G

 D
A

RK
 G

RE
Y

M
ET

A
LL

IC
 S

IN
US

O
ID

A
L 

C
LA

D
D

IN
G

 D
A

RK
 G

RE
Y

M
ET

A
LL

IC
 S

IN
US

O
ID

A
L 

C
LA

D
D

IN
G

 D
A

RK
 G

RE
Y

M
ET

A
LL

IC
 H

A
LF

 R
O

UN
D

 
C

LA
D

D
IN

G
 S

IL
V

ER

FI
RE

 E
SC

A
PE

 D
O

O
R

UN
IT 

3A
 

UN
IT 

35
B 

- F
RO

N
T 

EL
EV

A
TIO

N

UN
IT 

35
B 

- S
ER

V
IC

E 
YA

RD
 E

LE
V

A
TIO

N

UN
IT 

35
B 

- S
ID

E 
EL

EV
A

TIO
N

UN
IT 

35
B 

- R
EA

R 
EL

EV
A

TIO
N

5m

SC
A

LE

5m
10

m
15

m
20

m
25

m

G
A

RR
ET

T 
  M

  K
EE

w
w

w
.g

ar
re

ttm
ck

ee
.c

o.
uk

RI
LE

Y 
HO

US
E

T 
 0

16
28

 9
07

00
0

RI
LE

Y 
RO

A
D

M
A

RL
O

W
BU

C
KI

N
G

HA
M

SH
IR

E

d
rg

.n
o 

:
re

vi
sio

n 
:

A
LL

 D
IM

EN
SI

O
N

S 
TO

 B
E 

C
HE

C
KE

D
 O

N
 S

ITE

sc
al

e 
:

d
at

e 
:

co
nt

en
t :

sit
e 

:

pr
oj

ec
t :

cl
ie

nt
 :

c

KI
ER

 P
RO

PE
RT

Y 
LT

D
.

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 T

W
O

 U
N

IT
SP

EC
UL

A
TIV

E 
D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T

PL
O

T 
35

, W
A

LW
O

RT
H 

RO
A

D
W

A
LW

O
RT

H 
BU

SI
N

ES
S 

PA
RK

UN
IT 

35
B

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 E

LE
V

A
TIO

N
S

1:
20

0 
@

 A
1

M
A

Y 
20

18

23
69

 - 
PL

12
2

A

P 
L 

A
 N

 N
 I 

N
 G

   
D

 R
 A

 W
 I 

N
 G

N
O

TE
S 

: 

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 72



UP

UN
IT 

35
B

10
m

 T
O

 U
/S

 H
A

UN
C

H

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 N

EW
 U

N
IT

TO
TA

L 
G

EA
 : 

33
,9

65
 S

Q
 F

T

G
EA

 : 
29

,8
75

 S
Q

 F
T 

PR
O

D
UC

TIO
N

 /
 S

TO
RA

G
E

G
RO

UN
D

 F
LO

O
R

UP

FO
R 

LI
FT

PO
SS

IB
LE

 A
RE

ATE
A

 P
O

IN
T

PO
SS

IB
LE

&
 S

HO
W

ER
D

D
A

 T
O

IL
ET

LI
N

E 
O

F 
FI

RS
T 

FL
O

O
R

O
FF

IC
E 

O
V

ER

RO
O

F 
LI

G
HT

S 
10

%

RO
O

F 
G

UT
TE

R

RO
O

F 
G

UT
TE

R

UN
IT 

35
B 

- G
RO

UN
D

 F
LO

O
R 

PL
A

N
UN

IT 
35

B 
- R

O
O

F 
PL

A
N

5m

SC
A

LE
5m

10
m

15
m

20
m

25
m

G
A

RR
ET

T 
  M

  K
EE

w
w

w
.g

ar
re

ttm
ck

ee
.c

o.
uk

RI
LE

Y 
HO

US
E

T 
 0

16
28

 9
07

00
0

RI
LE

Y 
RO

A
D

M
A

RL
O

W
BU

C
KI

N
G

HA
M

SH
IR

E

d
rg

.n
o 

:
re

vi
sio

n 
:

A
LL

 D
IM

EN
SI

O
N

S 
TO

 B
E 

C
HE

C
KE

D
 O

N
 S

ITE

sc
al

e 
:

d
at

e 
:

co
nt

en
t :

sit
e 

:

pr
oj

ec
t :

cl
ie

nt
 :

c

KI
ER

 P
RO

PE
RT

Y 
LT

D
.

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 T

W
O

 U
N

IT
SP

EC
UL

A
TIV

E 
D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T

PL
O

T 
35

, W
A

LW
O

RT
H 

RO
A

D
W

A
LW

O
RT

H 
BU

SI
N

ES
S 

PA
RK

UN
IT 

35
B

G
RO

UN
D

 F
LO

O
R 

&
 R

O
O

F 
PL

A
N

1:
20

0 
@

 A
1

M
A

Y 
20

18

23
69

 - 
PL

12
0

P 
L 

A
 N

 N
 I 

N
 G

   
D

 R
 A

 W
 I 

N
 G

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 73



D
N

RE
FU

G
E

W
HE

EL
C

HA
IR

RE
FU

G
E

W
HE

EL
C

HA
IR

O
FF

IC
E 

A
C

C
O

M
M

O
D

A
TIO

N
G

EA
 : 

4,
09

0 
SQ

 F
T 

M
A

LE
 T

O
IL

ET

FE
M

A
LE

 T
O

IL
ET

D
N

UP

M
A

IN
 E

N
TR

A
N

C
E

UP

FU
TU

RE
 O

FF
IC

ES

ST
O

RE

ST
O

RE
&

 S
HO

W
ER

D
D

A
 T

O
IL

ET

W
A

RE
HO

US
E 

/ 
D

IS
TR

IB
UT

IO
N

5m

SC
A

LE

5m
10

m
15

m
20

m
25

m

ST
A

IR
C

A
SE

 2
ST

A
IR

C
A

SE
 1

IF
 R

EQ
UI

RE
D

 B
Y 

O
C

C
UP

IE
R

ST
A

IR
C

A
SE

 2
ST

A
IR

C
A

SE
 1

IF
 R

EQ
UI

RE
D

 B
Y 

O
C

C
UP

IE
R

PO
SS

IB
LE

 A
RE

A
 F

O
R 

LI
FT

IF
 R

EQ
UI

RE
D

 B
Y 

O
C

C
UP

IE
R

PO
SS

IB
LE

 A
RE

A
 F

O
R 

LI
FT

G
A

RR
ET

T 
  M

  K
EE

w
w

w
.g

ar
re

ttm
ck

ee
.c

o.
uk

RI
LE

Y 
HO

US
E

T 
 0

16
28

 9
07

00
0

RI
LE

Y 
RO

A
D

M
A

RL
O

W
BU

C
KI

N
G

HA
M

SH
IR

E

d
rg

.n
o 

:
re

vi
sio

n 
:

A
LL

 D
IM

EN
SI

O
N

S 
TO

 B
E 

C
HE

C
KE

D
 O

N
 S

ITE

sc
al

e 
:

d
at

e 
:

co
nt

en
t :

sit
e 

:

pr
oj

ec
t :

cl
ie

nt
 :

c

KI
ER

 P
RO

PE
RT

Y 
LT

D
.

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 T

W
O

 U
N

IT
SP

EC
UL

A
TIV

E 
D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T

PL
O

T 
35

, W
A

LW
O

RT
H 

RO
A

D
W

A
LW

O
RT

H 
BU

SI
N

ES
S 

PA
RK

UN
IT 

35
B

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 O

FF
IC

E 
PL

A
N

S

1:
10

0 
@

 A
1

M
A

Y 
20

18

23
69

 - 
PL

12
1

P 
L 

A
 N

 N
 I 

N
 G

   
D

 R
 A

 W
 I 

N
 G

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 74



10000

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 B

UI
LD

IN
G

G
RO

UN
D

 F
LO

O
R 

- P
RO

D
UC

TIO
N

 /
 S

TO
RA

G
E

C
A

R 
PA

RK
IN

G

TO U/S HAUNCH

S 
E 

C
 T

 I 
O

 N
   

APR
O

PO
SE

D
 B

UI
LD

IN
G

G
RO

UN
D

 F
LO

O
R 

- P
RO

D
UC

TIO
N

 /
 S

TO
RA

G
E

FI
RS

T 
FL

O
O

R 
O

FF
IC

E

2800

S 
E 

C
 T

 I 
O

 N
   

B

5m

SC
A

LE

5m
10

m
15

m
20

m
25

m

2800

G
A

RR
ET

T 
  M

  K
EE

w
w

w
.g

ar
re

ttm
ck

ee
.c

o.
uk

RI
LE

Y 
HO

US
E

T 
 0

16
28

 9
07

00
0

RI
LE

Y 
RO

A
D

M
A

RL
O

W
BU

C
KI

N
G

HA
M

SH
IR

E

d
rg

.n
o 

:
re

vi
sio

n 
:

A
LL

 D
IM

EN
SI

O
N

S 
TO

 B
E 

C
HE

C
KE

D
 O

N
 S

ITE

sc
al

e 
:

d
at

e 
:

co
nt

en
t :

sit
e 

:

pr
oj

ec
t :

cl
ie

nt
 :

c

KI
ER

 P
RO

PE
RT

Y 
LT

D
.

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 T

W
O

 U
N

IT
SP

EC
UL

A
TIV

E 
D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T

PL
O

T 
35

, W
A

LW
O

RT
H 

RO
A

D
W

A
LW

O
RT

H 
BU

SI
N

ES
S 

PA
RK

UN
IT 

35
B

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 S

EC
TIO

N
S 

A
 &

 B

1:
10

0 
@

 A
1

M
A

Y 
20

18

23
69

 - 
PL

12
3

P 
L 

A
 N

 N
 I 

N
 G

   
D

 R
 A

 W
 I 

N
 G

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 75



C
YC

LE
PA

RK
IN

G
FI

RS
T 

FL
O

O
R 

 O
FF

IC
E

G
EA

 : 
3,

77
0 

SQ
 F

T 

BO
UN

D
A

RY
 O

F 
LA

N
D

 O
W

N
ED

&
 D

IR
EC

TL
Y 

M
A

N
A

G
ED

 B
Y 

TV
BC

66
.6

1

66
.7

5
66

.7
6

66
.8

3
66

.7
7

67
.0

6

66
.7

0

KEEP

CLEAR

7
0
0
0

R
1
0
0
0
0

R
1
0
0
0
0

R 
O

 M
 A

 N
   

H 
O

 U
 S

 E

W
  A

  L
  W

  O
  R

  T
  H

   
   

R 
 O

  A
  D

W
  A

  L
  W

  O
  R

  T
  H

   
   

R 
 O

  A
  D

N O R T H     W
 A Y

S 
H 

E 
N

 T 
O

 N
   

H 
O

 U
 S

 E

O
 R

 V
 I 

S

D
 R

 E
 A

 M
 S

C
YC

LE
PA

RK
IN

G

PR
O

D
UC

TIO
N

 /
 S

TO
RA

G
E

G
EA

 : 
29

,8
75

 S
Q

 F
T 

28
.5

m
 D

EE
P 

YA
RD

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 N

EW
 U

N
IT

TO
TA

L 
G

EA
 : 

27
,5

80
 S

Q
 F

T
(2

,5
62

.2
 S

Q
 M

 )
C

A
R 

PA
RK

IN
G

 : 
57

 S
PA

C
ES

(1
/4

5 
SQ

 M
)

UN
IT 

35
A

10
m

 T
O

 U
/S

 H
A

UN
C

H

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 N

EW
 U

N
IT

FI
RS

T 
FL

O
O

R 
 O

FF
IC

E
G

EA
 : 

3,
77

0 
SQ

 F
T 

PR
O

D
UC

TIO
N

 /
 S

TO
RA

G
E

G
EA

 : 
23

,8
10

 S
Q

 F
T 

FI
RS

T 
FL

O
O

R 
 O

FF
IC

E
G

EA
 : 

4,
09

0 
SQ

 F
T 

C
YC

LE
PA

RK
IN

G

BO
UN

D
A

RY
 O

F 
LA

N
D

 O
W

N
ED

&
 D

IR
EC

TL
Y 

M
A

N
A

G
ED

 B
Y 

TV
BC

NO
RT

H

UP

UP

SL
ID

IN
G

 G
A

TE
 T

O
SE

C
UR

E 
YA

RD

HE
RA

S 
TY

PE
 F

EN
C

E
TO

 S
EC

UR
E 

YA
RD

FF
L 

66
.2

0

FF
L 

66
.4

0

66
.3

2

66
.5

4

66
.6

1

66
.7

5
66

.7
6

66
.8

3

66
.9

7

67
.1

0

66
.6

9

66
.6

5
66

.4
2

66
.4

2

66
.4

3

66
.5

0

66
.4

5

66
.5

6

66
.7

7

67
.0

6

67
.0

6

67
.0

3

66
.7

9

66
.7

4

66
.7

0

66
.8

2

67
.1

5

66
.7

8

KEEP

CLEAR

2
.
4
m

 
x
 
1
2
0
m

 
v
i
s
i
b

i
l
i
t
y
 
s
p

l
a
y

2
.
4
m

 
x
 
1
2
0
m

 
v
i
s
i
b

i
l
i
t
y
 
s
p

l
a
y

K
i
e
r
 
P
r
o

p
e
r
t
y
 
D

e
v
e
l
o

p
m

e
n
t
s

L
i
m

i
t
e
d

P
l
o

t
 
3
5
,
 
W

a
l
w

o
r
t
h
 
B
u
s
i
n
e
s
s

P
a
r
k
,
 
A

n
d

o
v
e
r

W
a
l
w

o
r
t
h
 
R

o
a
d

 
S
i
t
e
 
A

c
c
e
s
s

P
r
o

p
o

s
a
l
s
 
a
n
d

 
V

i
s
i
b

i
l
i
t
y
 
S
p

l
a
y
s

-R
e
v
:

D
r
n
:

D
a
t
e
:

0
1
/
0
6
/
2
0
1
8

I
P

D
e
t
a
i
l
s

F
i
r
s
t
 
i
s
s
u
e

D
r
a
w

i
n
g

 
R

e
v
i
s
i
o

n
s

O
r
d

n
a
n
c
e
 
S
u
r
v
e
y
 
L
i
c
e
n
c
e
 
n
u
m

b
e
r
:
 
1
0
0
0
5
7
3
6
0

C
h
k
:

T
G

1
8
0
2
5
/
0
0
1

-

A
s
 
s
h
o

w
n
@

A
3

D
r
a
w

i
n
g

 
N

u
m

b
e
r
:

S
c
a
l
e
:

R
e
v
i
s
i
o

n
:

T
i
t
l
e

P
r
o

j
e
c
t

C
l
i
e
n
t

N
o

t
e
s

7
 
W

e
y
 
C

o
u
r
t
,
 
M

a
r
y
 
R

o
a
d

,
 
G

u
i
l
d

f
o

r
d

,
 
S
u
r
r
e
y
,
 
G

U
1
 
4
Q

U
 
 
 
 
T
e
l
:
 
0
1
4
8
3
 
3
9
7
8
8
8

G
a
t
e
s
h
e
a
d

 
I
B
C

,
 
M

u
l
g

r
a
v
e
 
T
e
r
r
a
c
e
,
 
G

a
t
e
s
h
e
a
d

,
 
N

E
8
 
1
A

N
 
 
 
 
T
e
l
:
 
0
1
9
1
 
3
3
8
 
7
2
2
0

w
e
b

:
 
w

w
w

.
m

i
l
e
s
t
o

n
e
t
p

.
c
o

.
u
k

IN
DIC

AT
IV

E

V
i
s
i
b

i
l
i
t
y
 
S
p

l
a
y
s
 
1
:
1
,
0
0
0
@

A
3

A
c
c
e
s
s
 
D

e
t
a
i
l
 
1
:
2
5
0
@

A
3

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 76



R
9
0
0
0

R
9
0
0
0

7
0
0
0

R
e
c
o

n
s
t
r
u
c
t
i
o

n
 
o

f
 
a
c
c
e
s
s

r
e
q

u
i
r
e
d

 
t
o

 
r
e
s
o

l
v
e

p
o

n
d

i
n
g

 
w

i
t
h
i
n
 
b

e
l
l
m

o
u
t
h

a
n
d

 
s
u
r
f
a
c
e
 
c
o

n
d

i
t
i
o

n

E
x
i
s
t
i
n
g

 
g

u
l
l
y
 
i
n
 
c
e
n
t
r
e
 
o

f

b
e
l
l
m

o
u
t
h
 
(
l
o

c
a
t
i
o

n
 
s
h
o

w
n

i
n
d

i
c
a
t
i
v
e
l
y
)
 
t
o

 
b

e
 
r
e
l
o

c
a
t
e
d

D
a
m

a
g

e
d

 
c
h
a
n
n
e
l
 
b

l
o

c
k
s

w
i
t
h
i
n
 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 
t
o

 
b

e
 
r
e
m

o
v
e
d

o
r
 
r
e
p

a
i
r
e
d

P
r
o

v
i
d

e
 
d

r
o

p
p

e
d

 
k
e
r
b

 
c
r
o

s
s
i
n
g

w
i
t
h
 
t
a
c
t
i
l
e
 
p

a
v
i
n
g

 
t
o

 
H

a
m

p
s
h
i
r
e

C
o

u
n
t
y
 
C

o
u
n
c
i
l
 
U

n
c
o

n
t
r
o

l
l
e
d

P
e
d

e
s
t
r
i
a
n
 
C

r
o

s
s
i
n
g

 
S
t
a
n
d

a
r
d

D
e
t
a
i
l
 
H

C
C

1
0
/
C

/
0
6
5
 
R

e
v
 
-

R 
O

 M
 A

 N
   

H 
O

 U
 S

 E

B 
U 

I L
 D

 B
 A

 S
 E

H 
I R

 E
 B

 A
 S

 E
E 

L 
E 

C
 T

 R
 I 

C
 B

 A
 S

 E

EX
IS

TIN
G

SU
B-

ST
A

TIO
N

S  O  U  T  H      W  A  Y

W
  E

  S
  T

   
   

W
  A

  Y

W
  A

  L
  W

  O
  R

  T
  H

   
   

R 
 O

  A
  D

N O R T H     W
 A Y

S 
H 

E 
N

 T 
O

 N
   

H 
O

 U
 S

 E

O
 A

 K
 W

 O
 O

 D
 S

C
YC

LE
PA

RK
IN

G

N
EW

 S
EC

TIO
N

 O
F

RE
TA

IN
IN

G
 W

A
LL

29.4m DEEP YARD

SE
C

UR
E 

YA
RD

28
.5

m
 D

EE
P 

YA
RD

TO
TA

L 
G

EA
 : 

27
,5

80
 S

Q
 F

T
(2

,5
62

.2
 S

Q
 M

 )
C

A
R 

PA
RK

IN
G

 : 
33

 S
PA

C
ES

(1
/7

8 
SQ

 M
)

UN
IT 

35
A

10
m

 T
O

 U
/S

 H
A

UN
C

H

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 N

EW
 U

N
IT

FI
RS

T 
FL

O
O

R 
 O

FF
IC

E
G

EA
 : 

3,
77

0 
SQ

 F
T 

PR
O

D
UC

TIO
N

 /
 S

TO
RA

G
E

G
EA

 : 
23

,8
10

 S
Q

 F
T 

SE
C

UR
E 

YA
RD

10
m

NO
RT

H

UP

HE
RA

S 
TY

PE
 F

EN
C

E
TO

 S
EC

UR
E 

YA
RD

SL
ID

IN
G

 G
A

TE
 T

O
SE

C
UR

E 
YA

RD

FF
L 

66
.5

0 
(+

/-
 3

00
M

M
)

66
.3

2

66
.5

4

66
.6

1

66
.7

5

67
.9

6
67

.6
3

68
.0

0

67
.0

4

66
.6

9

66
.6

5
66

.4
2

66
.4

2

66
.4

3

66
.5

0

66
.4

5

66
.5

6

67
.3

1

67
.2

3
67

.3
4

66
.7

0

SL
ID

IN
G

 G
A

TE
 T

O
SE

C
UR

E 
YA

RD

HE
RA

S 
TY

PE
 F

EN
C

E
TO

 S
EC

UR
E 

YA
RD

BI
N

 S
TO

RE
 /

RE
C

YC
LI

N
G

BI
N

 S
TO

RE
 /

RE
C

YC
LI

N
G

R
9
0
0
0

R
9
0
0
0

7
0
0
0

2
.
4
m

 
x
 
9
0
m

 
v
i
s
i
b

i
l
i
t
y
 
s
p

l
a
y

2
.
4
m

 
x
 
9
0
m

 
v
i
s
i
b

i
l
i
t
y
 
s
p

l
a
y

R
e
v
:

D
r
n
:

D
a
t
e
:

D
e
t
a
i
l
s

D
r
a
w

i
n
g

 
R

e
v
i
s
i
o

n
s

O
r
d

n
a
n
c
e
 
S
u
r
v
e
y
 
L
i
c
e
n
c
e
 
n
u
m

b
e
r
:
 
1
0
0
0
5
7
3
6
0

C
h
k
:

B

D
r
a
w

i
n
g

 
N

u
m

b
e
r
:

S
c
a
l
e
:

R
e
v
i
s
i
o

n
:

T
i
t
l
e

P
r
o

j
e
c
t

C
l
i
e
n
t

N
o

t
e
s

7
 
W

e
y
 
C

o
u
r
t
,
 
M

a
r
y
 
R

o
a
d

,
 
G

u
i
l
d

f
o

r
d

,
 
S
u
r
r
e
y
,
 
G

U
1
 
4
Q

U
 
 
 
 
T
e
l
:
 
0
1
4
8
3
 
3
9
7
8
8
8

G
a
t
e
s
h
e
a
d

 
I
B
C

,
 
M

u
l
g

r
a
v
e
 
T
e
r
r
a
c
e
,
 
G

a
t
e
s
h
e
a
d

,
 
N

E
8
 
1
A

N
 
 
 
 
T
e
l
:
 
0
1
9
1
 
3
3
8
 
7
2
2
0

w
e
b

:
 
w

w
w

.
m

i
l
e
s
t
o

n
e
t
p

.
c
o

.
u
k

IN
DI

CA
TI

VE

V
i
s
i
b

i
l
i
t
y
 
S
p

l
a
y
s
 
1
:
1
,
0
0
0
@

A
3

A
c
c
e
s
s
 
D

e
t
a
i
l
 
1
:
2
5
0
@

A
3

K
i
e
r
 
P
r
o

p
e
r
t
y
 
D

e
v
e
l
o

p
m

e
n
t
s

L
i
m

i
t
e
d

P
l
o

t
 
3
5
,
 
W

a
l
w

o
r
t
h
 
B
u
s
i
n
e
s
s

P
a
r
k
,
 
A

n
d

o
v
e
r

S
o

u
t
h
 
W

a
y
 
S
i
t
e
 
A

c
c
e
s
s

P
r
o

p
o

s
a
l
s
 
a
n
d

 
V

i
s
i
b

i
l
i
t
y
 
S
p

l
a
y
s

-
1
4
/
0
8
/
2
0
1
8

I
P

F
i
r
s
t
 
i
s
s
u
e

T
G

1
8
0
2
5
/
0
0
2

A
s
 
s
h
o

w
n
@

A
3

South Way

A
1
1
/
0
9
/
2
0
1
8

I
P

U
p

d
a
t
e
d

 
s
i
t
e
 
l
a
y
o

u
t

T
G

B
0
2
/
1
0
/
2
0
1
8

I
P

A
d

d
 
d

r
o

p
p

e
d

 
k
e
r
b

 
p

e
d

e
s
t
r
i
a
n
 
c
r
o

s
s
i
n
g

T
G

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 77



Max Legal Articulated Vehicle (16.5m)

M
a
x
 
L
e
g
a
l
 
A

r
t
i
c
u
l
a
t
e
d
 
V

e
h
i
c
l
e
 
(
1
6
.
5
m

)

K
i
e
r
 
P
r
o

p
e
r
t
y
 
D

e
v
e
l
o

p
m

e
n
t
s

L
i
m

i
t
e
d

P
l
o

t
 
3
5
,
 
W

a
l
w

o
r
t
h
 
B
u
s
i
n
e
s
s

P
a
r
k
,
 
A

n
d

o
v
e
r

-R
e
v
:

D
r
n
:

D
a
t
e
:

1
4
/
0
8
/
2
0
1
8

I
P

D
e
t
a
i
l
s

F
i
r
s
t
 
i
s
s
u
e

D
r
a
w

i
n
g

 
R

e
v
i
s
i
o

n
s

O
r
d

n
a
n
c
e
 
S
u
r
v
e
y
 
L
i
c
e
n
c
e
 
n
u
m

b
e
r
:
 
1
0
0
0
5
7
3
6
0

C
h
k
:

T
G

1
8
0
2
5
/
T
K
0
3

B

1
:
2
5
0
@

A
3

D
r
a
w

i
n
g

 
N

u
m

b
e
r
:

S
c
a
l
e
:

R
e
v
i
s
i
o

n
:

T
i
t
l
e

P
r
o

j
e
c
t

C
l
i
e
n
t

7
 
W

e
y
 
C

o
u
r
t
,
 
M

a
r
y
 
R

o
a
d

,
 
G

u
i
l
d

f
o

r
d

,
 
S
u
r
r
e
y
,
 
G

U
1
 
4
Q

U
 
 
 
 
T
e
l
:
 
0
1
4
8
3
 
3
9
7
8
8
8

G
a
t
e
s
h
e
a
d

 
I
B
C

,
 
M

u
l
g

r
a
v
e
 
T
e
r
r
a
c
e
,
 
G

a
t
e
s
h
e
a
d

,
 
N

E
8
 
1
A

N
 
 
 
 
T
e
l
:
 
0
1
9
1
 
3
3
8
 
7
2
2
0

w
e
b

:
 
w

w
w

.
m

i
l
e
s
t
o

n
e
t
p

.
c
o

.
u
k

IN
DI

CA
TI

VE

N
o

t
e
s

13
.6

5.
79

0.
10

6

M
ax

 9
0°

 H
or

iz
M

ax
 1

0°
 V

er
t

6.
4

1.
4

1.
4

2.
8

4.
5

1.
39

2.
7

1.
4

M
ax

 L
eg

al
 A

rt
ic

ul
at

ed
 V

eh
ic

le
 (1

6.
5m

)
O

ve
ra

ll 
Le

ng
th

16
.5

00
m

O
ve

ra
ll 

W
id

th
2.

50
0m

O
ve

ra
ll 

Bo
dy

 H
ei

gh
t

3.
63

2m
M

in
 B

od
y 

Gr
ou

nd
 C

le
ar

an
ce

0.
39

6m
M

ax
 T

ra
ck

 W
id

th
2.

50
0m

Lo
ck

 to
 L

oc
k 

Ti
m

e
6.

00
s

Ke
rb

 to
 K

er
b 

Tu
rn

in
g 

Ra
di

us
6.

87
0m

S
w

e
p

t
-
P
a
t
h
 
A

n
a
l
y
s
i
s
 
-
 
M

a
x

L
e
g

a
l
 
A

r
t
i
c
u
l
a
t
e
d

 
V

e
h
i
c
l
e
 
-

S
o

u
t
h
 
W

a
y
 
A

c
c
e
s
s

South Way

South Way

A
1
1
/
0
9
/
2
0
1
8

I
P

U
p

d
a
t
e
d

 
t
o

 
r
e
f
l
e
c
t
 
S
t
a
g

e
 
1
 
R

S
A

 
c
o

m
m

e
n
t
s

T
G

B
0
3
/
1
0
/
2
0
1
8

I
P

U
p

d
a
t
e
d

 
o

f
f
-
s
i
t
e
 
h
i
g

h
w

a
y
 
w

o
r
k
s

T
G

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 78



APPLICATION NO. 18/02019/LBWN
APPLICATION TYPE LISTED BUILDING WORKS - NORTH
REGISTERED 03.08.2018
APPLICANT Mr and Mrs Li
SITE Farley Farm, Farley Street, Nether Wallop, SO20 8EL, 

NETHER WALLOP 
PROPOSAL Removal of granary
AMENDMENTS None
CASE OFFICER Mrs Samantha Owen

Background paper (Local Government Act 1972 Section 100D)

1.0 INTRODUCTION 
1.1 The application is presented to Northern Area Planning Committee because it 

is contrary to the provisions of the approved Development Plan, adverse third 
party representations have been received and the recommendation is for 
consent.

2.0 SITE LOCATION AND DESCRIPTION
2.1 The 0.66 hectare site lies within the river valley and rural village of Nether 

Wallop.  The land rises up from the river and highway towards the east, where 
levels rise more steeply towards the open countryside beyond.  Farley Farm is 
an older brick and flint residential property with substantial single storey and 
two storey extensions to the rear.  It sits in a very large plot, much of which is 
grassed, with substantial hedges and trees to the edges.  It contains several 
outbuildings and structures, including the collapsed Granary which is Grade II 
listed.  The site is located outside of the Nether Wallop Conservation Area.  
There is a gated vehicular access on to Farley Street towards the south west.  
A public footpath adjoins the site at a higher level, beyond the north east 
boundary.

3.0 PROPOSAL
3.1 The application seeks the removal of the Grade II listed granary which has 

collapsed in situ on the site.  The granary was constructed of timber with a 
thatched roof with the whole building elevated upon staddle stones.

4.0 HISTORY
4.1 18/02005/FULLN - Erection of 2 dwellings with detached carports, alterations 

to the existing outbuilding and associated works.  Permit: 21.09.2018.

4.2 TVN.LB.00737/2 – Repair/Renovation of grain store and insertion of window in 
gable end.  Consent 29.11.2004.
Statement accompanying the application shows the Granary to be in a poor 
state of repair in terms of the roof which was covered by a plastic tarpaulin but 
concludes that the main structure is relatively sound.

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 79



5.0 CONSULTATIONS
5.1 Ecology: I have no comments to make. The building has largely collapsed and 

will have no reasonable likelihood of supporting protected species.

5.2 Historic England
The granary at Farley Farm dates from the 18th century.  It is listed as a 
thatched roofed and timber framed structure on staddle stones.  It was listed 
grade 2 in 1984 because of it architectural and historic interest.  Over the last 
15 years, or so, the building has not been maintained or repaired and this has 
ultimately resulted in its complete collapse.  This application is for the removal 
of the remaining fragments of the building.

It is highly unusual to receive an application for the complete demolition of a 
listed building.  This would normally be considered as ‘substantial harm’, in the 
terms of the NPPF and the expectation would be that substantial public 
benefits be delivered to outweigh the harm.  Alternatively the NPPF sets out 
tests to be satisfied for the substantial harm to be justified (see para. 195).  In 
this instance the conservation value of the remaining fragments and of 
rebuilding the granary must be considered.  The heritage statement by Forum 
Heritage Services which accompanies the application assesses the condition 
of the remaining timbers.  It would appear that very little remains and of that 
very little is serviceable and therefore if the granary was rebuilt it would 
essentially be a replica.  We seem to be in the very sad situation where the 
granary is simply beyond saving.  On the basis that there would be little 
heritage value in rebuilding the granary I do not object to the proposal to 
demolish it.  Should consent for demolition be granted and the works are 
carried out it is important that the owner informs the Listing Team of Historic 
England so that National Heritage List for England can be updated.  

Recommendation
Historic England supports the application on heritage grounds.
We consider that the application meets the requirements of the NPPF, in 
particular paragraph numbers 190, 191, 193 and 194.

In determining this application you should bear in mind the statutory duty of 
section 16(2) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 
1990 to have special regard to the desirability of preserving listed buildings or 
their setting or any features of special architectural or historic interest which 
they possess.

5.3 Design and Conservation: 
The Council was aware that the granary had collapsed prior to the applications 
for erections of new dwellings on this site being submitted. The matter had 
previously been investigated, and it was concluded that the failure had taken 
place prior to the applicant’s purchase of the site. The application for the 
removal of the remains of the granary is judged on its own merits, and the 
following conclusions do not take account of the current applications for 
development of the site. 

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 80



The application has demonstrated that the building was in poor condition for a 
considerable duration, and finally collapsed due to storm damage c. 2016. 
Consent had been granted for a programme of repairs in 2004, but these 
works evidently were not carried out. 

In terms of the possibility of rebuilding the granary, it was judged at the time 
the collapse was brought to the Council’s attention that this would not be 
possible, and the application has illustrated the same. The extent of the 
collapse was such that it is unlikely any of the thatch would have been capable 
of salvage for use. As can be seen from the 1993 and 2004 photographs 
submitted with the application, and as was observed on site by Officers, a 
significant proportion of the cladding timbers were modern replacements. Of 
the historic structural timbers, very few were in a condition where they would 
be capable of reuse. This was observed on site, and is shown in figures 5-8 of 
the Heritage Statement. Thus, only a very small percentage, if any, of the 
significant historic fabric from the collapsed granary would be viable for use in 
rebuilding the structure, and what would be created, therefore, would be a 
modern facsimile. 

There are no other listed structures on the site, and the farmhouse is not listed 
as it has been substantially altered and extended. No other former farm 
buildings remain. Therefore a replica granary would not add sufficient value to 
an understanding of this site to justify its creation. 

There has been harm to the historic environment, and the significance of the 
listed granary resulting from its protracted period of decline and eventual 
collapse. However, it is not considered this is recoverable, and therefore the 
proposed removal of the remains would maintain the status quo, and thus 
meets the requirements of Policy E9 of the RLP.

6.0 REPRESENTATIONS Expired 31.08.2018
6.1  1 x letter from Hawthorn Cottage, Heathman Street, Nether Wallop

 Planning Application was submitted to TVBC in 2004 seeking 
renovations, supporting documents at the time described the condition 
as being “reasonably sound,” disappointing therefore that a Grade II 
Listed Structure has been permitted to deteriorate.

 Comments were raised to TVBC Enforcement at the most recent 
change in ownership in 2016 when the granary appeared to have 
suffered further significant damage.

 TVBC’s own RLP acknowledges that the historic sites and buildings of 
the borough are a finite resource and once lost cannot be replaced.  It is 
hoped that the passive oversight shown in this instance that has 
allowed the granary to deteriorate will not be applied to other buildings.

7.0 POLICY
7.1 Government Guidance

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)
National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 81



7.2 Test Valley Borough Revised Local Plan (2016)(RLP)
E5 – Biodiversity
E9 - Heritage

8.0 PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
8.1 The main planning considerations are (i) Loss of the heritage asset and (ii) 

Ecology

8.2 (i) Loss of the heritage asset.
The application is unusual in that it seeks authorisation from the Council to 
remove a collapsed listed building from site.  The building was blown over in 
the storms of early 2016 and since then has lain in a ruinous state on the site.  
The Heritage Statement accompanying the application indicates that the 
collapse has resulted in the loss of large amounts of the historic structure 
meaning that re- building of the granary is not considered appropriate as it 
would require large amounts of new material and would result in a replica 
building that would not add sufficient value to the understanding of the site to 
justify its rebuilding.  

8.3 Both Historic England and the Conservation Officer accept its loss.  It should 
be noted that this should not act as any sort of precedent for other listed 
building owners as if a listed building is intentionally damaged or demolished 
the Council has powers to remedy this and prosecute where necessary.  
Although policy E9 of the RLP and the NPPF seek to preserve listed buildings 
this is clearly no longer possible with the granary in its current condition.  This 
material consideration is therefore considered decisive in respect of this issue.

8.4 (ii) Ecology
Policy E5 of the RLP requires development to conserve, and where possible 
restore and/or enhance biodiversity.  The collapsed building would have no 
reasonable likelihood of supporting protected species and the County Ecologist 
has no comments to make.  The application thereby complies with policy E5.

9.0 CONCLUSION
9.1 The preservation of the listed building is no longer achievable due to its 

ruinous condition and as such the Council is unable to continue to seek its 
preservation as a listed building.  The application is therefore recommended 
for approval.

10.0 RECOMMENDATION
CONSENT 
Note to applicant:
1. In reaching this decision Test Valley Borough Council (TVBC) has 

had regard to the National Planning Policy Framework and takes a 
positive and proactive approach to development proposals 
focused on solutions. TVBC work with applicants and their agents 
in a positive and proactive manner offering a pre-application 
advice service and updating applicants/agents of issues that may 
arise in dealing with the application and where possible suggesting 
solutions.

Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 82



Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 83



Test Valley Borough Council - Northern Area Planning Committee - 25 October 2018

Page 84


	Agenda
	6 Information Notes
	7 16/00544/OUTN - 03.03.2016
	16_00544_OUTN NAPC Plan 1
	16_00544_OUTN NAPC Plan 2
	16_00544_OUTN NAPC Plan 3
	16_00544_OUTN NAPC Plan 4
	16_00544_OUTN NAPC Plan 5
	16_00544_OUTN NAPC Plan 6

	8 18/01615/FULLN - 22.06.2018
	18_01615_FULLN NAPC Plan 1
	18_01615_FULLN NAPC Plan 2
	18_01615_FULLN NAPC Plan 3
	18_01615_FULLN NAPC Plan 4
	Sheets and Views
	01


	18_01615_FULLN NAPC Plan 5
	18_01615_FULLN NAPC Plan 6
	18_01615_FULLN NAPC Plan 7
	18_01615_FULLN NAPC Plan 8
	18_01615_FULLN NAPC Plan 9
	18_01615_FULLN NAPC Plan 10
	18_01615_FULLN NAPC Plan 11
	18_01615_FULLN NAPC Plan 12
	18_01615_FULLN NAPC Plan 13
	18_01615_FULLN NAPC Plan 14
	18_01615_FULLN NAPC Plan 15

	9 18/02019/LBWN - 03.08.2018
	18_02019_LBWN NAPC Plan 1
	18_02019_LBWN NAPC Plan 2


